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Corporate Profile
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C.banner International Holdings Limited

T R A R A

Vision To be a leading international integrated retailer and
branded group of mid-to-premium ladies’ footwear in
China

Brand Values Elegance, Charm, Fashionable

CORPORATE PROFILE

C.banner International Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “C.banner”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is the leading international
integrated retailer and retailer of mid-to-premium women’s formal and

casual footwear in the PRC.

The Group distributes self-developed brands and licensed brands products
through department stores and independent retail stores in different cities,
ranging from first-tier to third-tier cities in the PRC, and is also proactive in
developing online business as to further expand its customer base as well as
sales and distribution network. In addition, the Group also acts as an OEM
or ODM manufacturer for international shoes companies dealing in export

markets.

Striving to be the leading branded group of mid-to-premium ladies’ footwear
in the PRC, the Group upholds a diversified brand strategy and product
portfolio as to diversify its footwear offerings and enter diversified market
segments. The Group is popular for its brand values of elegance, charm and
fashionable in the market, and operates self-developed brands, including
C.banner, EBLAN, sundance, MIO, Badgley Mischka and natursun, and
licensed brands, including United Nude and Steve Madden.
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SELF-DEVELOPED BRANDS

Cherrer=sx

7EBLAN @

BADGLEY
MISCHKA

natursun

is one of the leading brands in the mid-to-premium
formal and casual segment in the PRC, offers a
range of mid-to-premium fashion, business and

business casual footwear.

is comparatively more youthful, colorful and

energetic in its designs.

is the most casual in appearance, in line with its

younger customer profile.

offers a range of trendy and high-quality ladies

footwear for most young female customers.

is a well-known fashion brand, offers fashion

ladies footwear to be worn in important occasions.

is committed to comfort technology research
for the creation of comfortable and fashionable

footwear targeted at office ladies in China.

LICENSED BRANDS

LI UNITED NUDE ™

STEVE MADDEN

Its simple, elegant and creative style is no

substitute.

is a US-based trendy footwear brand with a wide
coverage of footwear, socks, handbags, and

accessories of avant-garde style.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Yixi (Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Wei (President)
Mr. Huo Li

Mr. Yuan Zhenhua

(Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Miao Bingwen

Mr. Wu Guangze
(resigned on 4 April 2018)
Mr. Ngan Wing Ho
(resigned on 4 April 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson

Mr. Li Xindan

Mr. Zhang Zhiyong

Mr. Zheng Hongliang

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Huo Li

Ms. So Lai Shan

(appointed on 30 August 2018)
Ms. Mok Ming Wai

(resigned on 30 August 2018)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson (Chairman)

Mr. Miao Bingwen
Mr. Li Xindan

Mr. Zhang Zhiyong
Mr. Zheng Hongliang

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Li Xindan (Chairman)
Mr. Miao Bingwen

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson
Mr. Zhang Zhiyong

Mr. Zheng Hongliang

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chen Yixi (Chairman)
Mr. Li Xindan

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson
Mr. Zhang Zhiyong

Mr. Zheng Hongliang

Mr. Wu Guangze

(resigned on 4 April 2018)
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Corporate Information

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. So Lai Shan

(appointed on 30 August 2018)
Ms. Mok Ming Wai
(resigned on 30 August 2018)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF

BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 2904, 29th Floor

Far East Finance Center
16 Harcourt Road
Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
1028

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.cbanner.com.cn

LEGAL ADVISER
Sidley Austin

Level 39

Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central, Hong Kong
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AUDITOR
Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited

Certified Public Accountants

SHARE REGISTRARS

Principal Share Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
Estera Management (Bermuda) Limited

Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Agricultural Bank of China, Nanjing Xinjiekou sub-branch

China Merchants Bank, Nanjing Chengxi sub-branch
Bank of China, Nanjing Economic Development Zone sub-branch
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Financial Highlights
apL RS

Revenue

Gross profit

(Loss)/profit before tax

Income tax expense

Net (loss)/profit for the year

Net (loss)/profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Gross profit margin
Operating (loss)/profit margin
Net (loss)/profit margin

(Loss)/earnings per share
— Basic (RMB cents)

— Diluted (RMB cents)

Bank balances and cash
Borrowings

Liquidity ratio
Gearing ratio

Average inventory turnover period
Average receivables turnover period
Average payable turnover period

Note: Liquidity ratio = current assets/current liabilities; gearing ratio = notes payable

and bank loans/total assets

Year ended 31 December

BE12 H31 HIL4ERE

2018 2017
20184 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TE NG T
g 2,923,659 3,063,524
EH] 1,672,795 1,863,207
FRBLAT (E518) i F (377,987) 80,906
TS B 3 (6,267) (64,215)
FRGFL () (384,254) 16,691
EN/NEIL G ERER DN
JEAG (5180, 4] (387,029) 20,492
% %
EFZE 57.2 60.8
K (Bs1R) /Rl (12.9) 2.6
I Ukt8),/ FlE=R (13.1) 0.5
B Ok18),FF
o ZNONEL 78 (18.81) 1.00
. T AUNEL ) (18.81) 1.00
SRITHS R S 4 314,216 540,059
o 303,183 1,146,098
% %
WS A R 204.9 153.6
BEEAMLR 11.7 28.9
Days Days
H# H %
VA A 216.2 2453
V-5 B SRR TE A 43.3 46.3
) AT B TE A 48.9 54.9
Wik MBEA = WEERE B B AR IR =
IS R SRAT YR

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



S 5 4k 22

Financial Highlights

= IR

T 0 BB A PR A F]



10

Chen Yixi plizs e



Chairman’s Statement

B e

‘Implement global branding strategy
and build creative integrated retail

platform.”

BT A ER R SRS o S AR5 A
FHF R o ]

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors™) of the
Company, I am pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

In the year under review, the Company adapted to adverse market conditions
with its continued efforts in building a diverse product and brand portfolio
and thorough execution of our global branding and an international retail
group. The Company pursued growth in the footwear market by targeting the
leisure shoes market, as ‘leisure’ had grown into an increasingly important
concept in the consumption behaviour of the China market in recent years.
The Company also reoriented its marketing efforts towards consumers
of more modest backgrounds with premium design, quality products and
attractive prices to tap into lower tier markets that present great room for

future growth.

In 2018, global economic growth and goods trade took a hit due to high
international trade tensions. The situation was particularly severe for China
as the political instability had led to a weak Renminbi against the strong
US dollar. Industrial production and export growth both decelerated in the
year under review. However, it is worthy to note that China continued to
record a higher import growth than export growth, which shows that market
consumption continues to be resilient in the harsh macro environment.
Furthermore, trade surplus for China in 2018 stood higher than the market
consensus. It is apparent that the impact of New Retail reached beyond the
China market and is affecting the overall retail market on a global level. It is
expected that its development will continue to encourage consumption and

drive retail sales.
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Chairman’s Statement

FR

The footwear industry in China is in slow recovery from the blow brought
by the entrance of international brands and cross-border e-commerce, but
according to statistics released by the National Bureau of Statistics, the
growth rate for total retail sales of consumer goods was 9.0% in 2018,
reflecting that China remains to be a promising market. Although the
Company were able to mitigate part of the adversities of the less-than-ideal
market conditions with its branding, marketing and sales strategies, the shift
in consumption behaviour required further consolidation and refinements
of retail channels and sales-driving strategies, and a delay is to be expected
before said strategies take effect and results could be reflected in sales
figures. However, the Company has been able to identify new market trends
and needs in time from data collected across its well-established retail

network; it is in a prime position to navigate the unstable market.

The Company has undergone a period of ambitious business expansion
over the past few years with the introduction of new footwear brands, retail
outlets, online sales channels, and the establishment of the Joint Venture
company with Madden Asia Holding Limited. The diverse business has
been able to divert market risks for the Company, but it also requires
careful consolidation to further cultivate a mature, integrated retail sales
experience in order to continue to capture future opportunities. The Company
has allocated particular efforts in forging an exception online and offline
shopping experience for consumers in 2018 in order to redirect and translate
online and offline convenience and integration into sales performance. The
comprehensive retail network will continue to grow in various aspects,
while the continued implementation of innovative marketing strategies will

enhance sales and brand awareness.

Looking forward, the recent cuts of production capacity and stricter pollution
control initiatives will likely lead to lower business investment growth.
However, this also means that strong consumer spending growth will, in
turn, play a bigger economic role in 2019. More households are moving into
the middle-class income bracket, meaning that consumer base will become
more complex. Fashion will be an important part that forms the identity of
the increasingly sophisticated Chinese consumer base. It is expected that this

will create benefit the footwear industry as well.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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In the future, the Company plans to continue integration of its online and
offline retail platforms to accelerate growth, boost sales, as well as to
enhance overall brand awareness. Data analysis will be carried out on sales
data to generate profound, instant and accurate insights on consumers’ needs
and preferences, such that the Company can continue to optimise the retail
network and improve sales performance. New distribution channels will be
explored to achieve market share increment. The Company will also continue
to implement its global branding strategy to increase brand popularity in both

Greater China and overseas markets.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to express sincerest gratitude to
shareholders, business partners, management, staff and other stakeholders’
invaluable support for our achievements in the past year. We look forward to

another year of development to create greater values for our shareholders.

CHEN Yixi

Chairman

PRC, 29 March 2019
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Report of the Directors
HHEFHRE

The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 48 to the consolidated financial

statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
is set out in the “Financial Highlights”, “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 8, pages 10 to 13 and pages

32 to 47 respectively of this annual report.

A description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group can
be found in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 10 to 13 and note 4 to the
financial statements on pages 131 to 133 of this annual report. An analysis
using financial key performance indicators can be found in the Financial
Highlights on page 8 and Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 32

to 47 of this annual report.

The Group is committed to enhancing governance, promoting employee benefits
and development, protecting the environment and giving back to society in
order to fulfill social responsibility and achieve sustainable growth. Discussions
on the Group’s environmental policies and performance, compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group and

relationships with key stakeholders are provided below.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group recognises the importance of good environmental stewardship
and endeavours to increase its utilization rate of energy, water and materials.
In the meantime, the Group minimises the use of natural resources and
optimises its production process while enhancing efficiency and reducing the
use of energy and chemicals of every unit of products. It also adopts various
environmental measures and promotes waste reduction as well as recycling

and reuse.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group is mainly engaged in mid-to-premium ladies footwear brands and
retail of toys in the PRC. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
has complied with all relevant laws and regulations concerning labour rights,
environmental protection, product safety and health, information privacy and

regulatory requirements that have significant impacts on the Company.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY
STAKEHOLDERS

Employees

The Group considers its employees as important and valuable assets, and
is committed to providing a pleasant working environment and promoting
work-life balance. It also offers competitive remuneration packages and
provides a harmonious working environment to its staff members so
as to maintain a high retention rate. In addition, the Group organises a
comprehensive training programme to enhance employees’ capability and

efficiency in daily operation.

Customers

The Group considers customers as a major stakeholder and is committed to
providing comprehensive and high quality customer services. The Group
has established good relationship with many renowned international brands
so as to provide customers with the best services and high-quality and safe

products.

Suppliers

The Group prudently selects its suppliers and builds long-term business
relationship with numbers of suppliers. Such suppliers have to meet certain
assessment criteria of the Group and comply with anti-bribery policies

launched by the Group.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

on page 78 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board did not recommend a final dividend for the year ended 31

December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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Report of the Directors
=l

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 25
June 2019 to Friday, 28 June 2019, both days inclusive, in order to determine
the identity of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) who are
entitled to attend the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
be held on Friday, 28 June 2019. All transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712- 1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 24 June 2019.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s five largest suppliers

accounted for 21.7% (2017: 36.9%) of the Group’s total purchases and the
Group’s largest supplier accounted for 5.9% (2017: 17.8%) of the Group’s

total purchases.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s sale to its five largest
customers accounted for 8.8% (2017: 6.2%) of the Group’s total sale and the
Group’s largest customer accounted for 2.5% (2017: 1.7%) of the Group’s

total sale.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest

customers and suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2018.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 13 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the share capital and share options of the Company
during the year are set out in note 37 and note 39 to the consolidated financial

statements.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to approximately RMB227.2 million (as at 31 December 2017:
RMB631.3 million).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Yixi (Chairman)

Mr. Zhao Wei (President)

Mr. Huo Li

Mr. Yuan Zhenhua (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Miao Bingwen

Mr. Wu Guangze (resigned on 4 April 2018)
Mr. Ngan Wing Ho (resigned on 4 April 2018)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson

Mr. Li Xindan

Mr. Zhang Zhiyong

Mr. Zheng Hongliang

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-
laws”), Mr. Zhao Wei, Mr. Miao Bingwen and Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company and, being eligible, had offered themselves for re-election as

Directors.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group are

set out on pages 67 to 71 of this annual report.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”) from each of the independent non-executive Directors and

the Company considers such Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without

payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party subsisting

during or at the end of the year ended 31 December 2018.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year ended 31 December 2018.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument
policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance of the Directors and senior management and

comparable market practices.
The Company has adopted a share option scheme and a share award scheme

as incentive to eligible employees, details of the schemes are set out in the

sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme” below.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid individuals

are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office
or otherwise in relation thereto. There is appropriate directors’ and officers’

liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) (i)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or (ii) which were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered into the register maintained by the Company, or
(ii1) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:
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EHTHE

Total number of

Approximate

percentage of

shares/underlying interest in

Name of Director Nature of interest shares held the Company

I[EcY 2 A 2 ) 4 i

HREMEH 25 R R B8 T A 4 8 BEAIE 43 1L

Mr. Chen Yixi (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 750,000,000 36.11%
BRI EESEAE (FfRE 1) A i P R A (long position)
()

Mr. Miao Bingwen (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 80,000,000 3.85%
BRI (F5E2) Z A E R A (long position)
()

Beneficial owner 20,000,000 0.96%
Hamdia A (long position)
(4FA)

Mr. Huo Li Beneficial owner 979,000 0.05%
e fgct 2PN (long position)
R

Mr. Zhao Wei Beneficial owner 520,000 0.03%
i A e JEE TR/ ZEDN (long position)
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Notes:

1. Mr. Chen Yixi is the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of Hongguo
International Group Limited (“Hongguo”) which holds 750,000,000 shares of the
Company in long position, among which Hongguo has charged 370,000,000 shares
and 350,000,000 shares in favour of Timely Assets Global Limited and Cheer Hope
Holdings Limited, respectively.

2. Mr. Miao Bingwen is the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of Sure
Manage Investments Limited (“Sure Manage™) which holds 80,000,000 shares of the
Company in long position.

Save as disclosed above, and as at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors

or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short position in

the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would be required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock

Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which

would be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the

register referred to therein, or otherwise notified to the Company and the

Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, no time during the year
ended 31 December 2018 were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, or their respective spouse
or children under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES
As at 31 December 2018, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the

following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company)
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares which fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

2 BB U e oy B A B ey o 2
e 2 SR A

R20184F 12 H31 H » #EEF G » LN A
& (GEF AN B EEATBN B BRI R A B
FABR B Gy M AR 48 58 75 MO B e 9] 38 XV
T2 K343 T T e A s m) I RE A BOR A
SRR RS J5 S M A5 101 56 336 IR ZE R0 BRI R% 1%
ST AR A APPSR A AR BOR B AT

Approximate

Total number of percentage of

shares/underlying interest in

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest shares held the Company

Fii s ety AR ] 4

e 8T Y& 1 e H TR A P 3 8 BATE

Hongguo (Note 1) Beneficial owner 750,000,000 36.11%
Hongguo (P& 1) JEE L TN (long position)
(#47)

Central Huijin Investment Ltd (Note 2) Person having a security interest in shares 380,000,000 18.30%
e B A A TR A A (Ff3E 2) BB FEA R BRI A (long position)
()

China Construction Bank Corporation (Note 2) Person having a security interest in shares 380,000,000 18.30%
o B e SR AT R AT PR ) (BfFE2) PO (R RE G A (long position)
(#A)

Cheer Hope Holdings Limited (Note 2) Person having a security interest in shares 380,000,000 18.30%
Cheer Hope Holdings Limited (fff32) B RS A A (long position)
(fFa)

China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. (Note 3)  Interest in a controlled corporation 493,750,000 23.77%
w0 T R A PR A T (B 3) ST (long position)
(H8)

41,250,000 1.99%
(short position)
(RA)

Timely Assets Global Limited (Note 3) Person having a security interest in shares 370,000,000 17.81%
Timely Assets Global Limited (3% 3) BB F5 A R BTG A (long position)
(fF )

Beneficial owner 123,750,000 7.94%
R TN (long position)
()

41,250,000 3.97%
(short position)
(RA)
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Total number of

EHETRE

Approximate

percentage of

shares/underlying interest in

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest shares held the Company

Fiis ety AR 2 vl

e 8T Y& 1 HESE TR TR A P 5 48 R ONEp i

Arch Capital Group Ltd (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 127,387,086 6.13%
Arch Capital Group Ltd (7% 4) VR R S (long position)
(#F47)

ADM Galleus Fund II Limited (Notes 4 and 5) Interest in a controlled corporation 127,387,086 6.13%
ADM Galleus Fund 1T Limited (¥ff3F 4 & 5) SR I AR (long position)
(4F5)

ADM Investment Management Limited (Note 6) Interest in a controlled corporation 127,387,086 6.13%
ADM Investment Management Limited (fff3 6) YR A (long position)
(F8)

UTAH Retirement Systems (Note 5) Interest in a controlled corporation 127,387,086 6.13%
UTAH Retirement Systems (Fff 3 5) SR R AR (long position)
()

Utah State Retirement Investment Fund (Note 5) Interest in a controlled corporation 127,387,086 6.13%
Utah State Retirement Investment Fund (Fff3E5) SR W A (long position)
(1)

Eight Dragons Investments Limited (Notes 4 and 5) Person having a security interest in shares 127,387,086 6.13%
Eight Dragons Investments Limited (Fff 3 4 % 5) B REA R 1A (long position)
(#A)

OCI International Holdings Limited (Note 7) Person having a security interest in shares 131,000,000 6.31%
OCI International Holdings Limited (3% 7) H R R RER A (long position)
()

T 0 BB B A B A F]

= IR
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Notes:

Hongguo has charged 370,000,000 shares and 350,000,000 shares in favour of Timely
Assets Global Limited and Cheer Hope Holdings Limited, respectively.

Cheer Hope Holdings Limited has a security interest in 380,000,000 shares of the
Company. Central Huijin Investment Ltd. holds 57.11% shareholding in China
Construction Bank Corporation. China Construction Bank Corporation holds 100%
shareholding in CCB International Group Holdings Limited, which in turn holds
100% shareholding in CCB Financial Holdings Limited. CCB Financial Holdings
Limited holds 100% shareholding in CCB International (Holdings) Limited, which
in turn holds 100% shareholding in CCBI Investments Limited. CCBI Investments
Limited holds 100% shareholding in Cheer Hope Holdings Limited. Therefore, the
above entities are deemed to be interested in 380,000,000 shares of the Company, in

which Cheer Hope Holdings Limited is interested.

Timely Assets Global Limited has a security interest in 370,000,000 shares of
the Company and is the beneficial owner of 123,750,000 shares of the Company
in long position and 41,250,000 shares of the Company in short position. Timely
Assets Global Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Huarong International
Holdings Limited. China Huarong International Holdings Limited is owned as
to 88.10% and 11.90% by Huarong Real Estate Co., Ltd. and Huarong Zhiyuan
Investment & Management Co., Ltd. respectively, which are both wholly owned by
China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd.. China Huarong Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. is owned as to 63.36% by Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China.
Therefore, the above entities are deemed to be interested in 493,750,000 shares of the
Company in long position and 41,250,000 shares of the Company in short position in
which Timely Assets Global Limited is interested.

Eight Dragons Investments Limited has a security interest in 127,387,086 shares of
the Company. Arch Capital Group Ltd holds 100% shareholding in Arch Reinsurance
Ltd. Arch Reinsurance Ltd holds 43.70% shareholding in ADM Galleus Fund II
Limited, which in turn holds 74.95% shareholding in Eight Dragons Investments
Limited. Therefore, the above entities are deemed to be interested in 127,387,086

shares of the Company, in which Eight Dragons Investments Limited is interested.
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Eight Dragons Investments Limited has a security interest in 127,387,086 shares
of the Company. UTAH Retirement Systems holds 100% shareholding in Utah
State Retirement Investment Fund. Utah State Retirement Investment Fund holds
54.90% shareholding in ADM Galleus Fund II Limited, which in turn holds 74.95%
shareholding in Eight Dragons Investments Limited. Therefore, the above entities
are deemed to be interested in 127,387,086 shares of the Company, in which Eight

Dragons Investments Limited is interested.

Eight Dragons Investments Limited has a security interest in 127,387,086 shares of
the Company. According to the notice of disclosure of interests dated 18 January 2018
submitted by ADM Investment Management Limited, it holds 100% shareholding
in ADM Galleus Fund II Limited, which in turn holds 74.95% sharcholding in
Eight Dragons Investments Limited. Therefore, the above entities are deemed
to be interested in 127,387,086 shares of the Company, in which Eight Dragons

Investments Limited is interested.

OCT International Holdings Limited holds 100% of OCI Capital (BVI) Limited,
which in turn holds 100% of OCI Capital Limited. OCI Capital Limited has a
security interest in 131,000,000 shares of the Company. Therefore, OCI International
Holdings Limited is deemed to be interested in the 131,000,000 shares of the
Company, in which OCI Capital Limited is interested.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors were not
aware of any persons (who were not Directors or chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to Section

336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF

LISTED SECURITIES
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Review Period”), neither the

Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of

the Company’s listed securities during the Review Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the laws
of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to

existing Shareholders.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Directors (including our independent non-executive
Directors) believe that the related party transactions set out in the note 46 to
the consolidated financial statements are carried out in the ordinary course of

business and on normal commercial terms.

During the year under review, save for the lease agreement between the
Group and Hongguo Industry Group Corporation which is an associate of
certain Directors, no other transaction listed in note 46 to the consolidated
financial statements constituted connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
transaction under the above lease agreement is exempt from the relevant
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’

approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

W EScHigg E 4 > R20184F12H31H > B
RENZBATAT N A (Glf F 38 5 AR A 7] B AT
N B ) AL & ey sSord B B A b > AT AR5
SR MO B ES XV A 2 B 3 A T R
HORE 25 SR A - SRR R F5 S B 115 336
WRZE RO BRI 8% 0 SCRTHE A2 w) e 7 9 4
IR -

WEE - R b

AR ZE20184F 12 31 H IR4ERE (T e @i 1) >
AR ) m AT o] o 2 NI M S o
AR BT ETaE S o

B e b

AR (A% AR 2 7 )
IR T AR S - AR R T BT
SR L 1958 05 A 4

FerA PR 5

AL B E 2018 4512 H 31 B 1L 4 7 /) BH W 22
Gt R SR A B iR I 5k 46 - 2R (UHE
WS IERATESR) B8 > 556 MR R M 46
BT BHIAE 5 T By H OB s T - Wi — ik
[EES S GIIAD

TR [l AR T > BRASSE I B T 5 2 i 4
VBRI EE A IR AR L A E AN - iR
SR IS AR M RE 46 51171 2 FAt 22 5y 34 A AL
ETTRRIGE 14A BT B AC by R AR R 10
Sy o LR o s IH N A2 S R ey BT
BUTECT AR H i~ SRR B~ O M B S R
ILHEZKRE o



NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING
Each of Mr. Chen Yixi and Hongguo (the “Substantial Shareholders™) has

executed a deed of non-competition through which they have irrevocably and
unconditionally warranted and undertaken to the Company not to, directly
or indirectly engage, participate or hold any right or interest in or render any
services to or otherwise be involved in any business in competition with or
likely to be in competition with the business of design, manufacture and sale
of footwear and other businesses as conducted by the Group; or take any
action which constitutes an interference with or a disruption to the business
activities of the Group including, but not limited to, solicitation of customers,

suppliers or personnel of the Group.

The Substantial Shareholders have confirmed to the Company of their
compliance with the deed of non-competition during the year under review

for disclosure in this annual report.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status of
compliance and confirmed the Substantial Shareholders’ compliance of the

deed of non-competition.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
on 26 August 2011 which has become effective upon the Company’s listing
on 23 September 2011. Subject to early termination by the Company in
general meeting or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and

effective for a period of 10 years commencing on 26 August 2011.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain or otherwise
maintain on-going business relationship with the eligible persons whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group;
and to motivate the eligible persons to optimize their performance efficiency

for the benefit of the Group.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, offer
to grant an option to any employees, executives, officers, directors (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive directors) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, any advisers, consultants, suppliers,
customers and agents and related entities who, in the sole opinion of the

Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Group.
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The subscription price shall be a price determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
shares on the date of the grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the

nominal value of the shares.

The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the respective share options must be
made within 30 days from the date of grant with a non-refundable payment of
HK$1.00 from each grantee. An option may be exercised at any time during
a period to be determined by the Board, which shall not in any event exceed
ten years from the date of grant. The Share Option Scheme does not specify
any minimum holding period but the Board has the authority to determine the
minimum period for which a share option in respect of some or all of the shares

forming the subject of the share options must be held before it can be exercised.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme must not exceed 30% of the total issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the
date of commencement of the listing of the shares on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. The Company may seek approval of the Shareholders in general
meeting for refreshing the 10% limit under the Share Option Scheme save
that the total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme under the limit as
refreshed shall not exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the

date of approval of the limit.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares in issue as at the date of grant. Where any further grant of options to a
participant would result in the total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all the options granted and to be granted to such person
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such further grant representing in
aggregate over 1% of the total number of shares in issue, such further grant
must be separately approved by the Shareholders in general meeting with

such participant and his associates abstaining from voting.
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Since the effective date of the Share Option Scheme, no share options had
been granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme and there was no outstanding share option under the Share Option
Scheme as at 31 December 2018. As at the date of this annual report, the
number of securities of the Company available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme was 200,000,000, representing approximately 9.63% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME
On 31 August 2015, the Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share

Award Scheme”) to recognize the contribution of certain employees of the
Group and to provide them with incentives in order to retain them for the
continual operation and development of the Group and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group. A summary of the Share

Award Scheme is as follows:

(a)  Duration: Subject to any early termination as may be determined by
the Board pursuant to the rules to the Share Award Scheme, the Share
Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of ten (10) years

commencing on 31 August 2015;

(b) Maximum aggregate nominal value of shares to be awarded to a
selected employee: Shall not exceed one (1) percent of the issued share

capital of the Company from time to time; and

(c)  Limit: The Board shall not make any further award of shares which
will result in the nominal value of the shares awarded by the Board
under the Share Award Scheme exceeding ten (10) percent of the

issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

Details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 31 August 2015 and 19 October 2015. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Company has granted 3,726,000 awarded
shares (2017: Nil) to selected employees.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares, or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares, were entered into by the Company during or at the end of the Review

Period.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed together with the management and
external auditor the accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group

and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in
Appendix 10 — Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) under the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry
has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed that they

had complied with such code of conduct during the Review Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on

pages 48 to 66 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share

capital was held by the public at all times during the Review Period.
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AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as the auditor of the Company with
effect from 11 July 2018. Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited has been
appointed as the auditor of the Company with effect from 25 July 2018 to fill

the casual vacancy.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited shall retire in the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Grant Thornton Hong
Kong Limited as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Chen Yixi

Chairman

PRC, 26 April 2019
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW
In 2018, trade relations between China and the United States pushed

international tension to new heights, resulting in tense market environment.
Global economic growth was adversely affected and projected to moderate
from 3% in 2018 to 2.9% in 2019, and 2.8% in 2020 to 2021. Due to strong
momentum in 2017, global goods trade slowed markedly in the first half of
2018, but has seen partial recovery since. It is, however, expected to grow
faster than global GDP due to rising interest rates in advanced economies
and economic rebalancing in China, which would contribute to slower global

investment and trade growth.

Following the macro environment, industrial production and export growth
have decelerated in China, reflecting easing global manufacturing activities.
China’s import growth continued to outpace export growth, which shows
resilient consumption. It is clear that the emergence of New Retail in China

is impacting the retail market on a global level.

Under global instability, the footwear industry continued to face challenges
in 2018, which were amplified by global political instability and weak
RMB against the strong US dollar. However, according to the National
Bureau of Statistics, in 2018, total retail sales of consumer goods reported
a growth rate of 9.0%; specifically for the clothing, shoes, hats, needles,
and textiles category, retail sales was RMB1,370.70 billion, representing a
8.0% growth rate. The footwear market is in slow recovery. It is also going
through structural challenges in light of the increased market presence
of international brands and cross-border e-commerce. It should be noted,
however, that despite adverse operating conditions, China remains to be a
promising market for the footwear industry, especially for mid to premium

brands with reputable and quality products.
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On the other hand, the toy industry shows brighter prospects. Despite global
economic slowdown, China’s toy retail is expected to see ongoing growth
due to increasing disposable income and stronger motives to pursue quality
of life. The market also shows a tendency to shift away from traditional
medium to low end battery-operated toys, construction sets and decorative
toys, and towards innovative upmarket electronic toys, intelligent toys, plush
toys and decorative cloth toys. The National Health and Family Planning
Commission also expects birth rate to climb in the coming years, meaning
that the toys market possesses enormous potential to be developed, while
supply is still relatively limited; much of the market remains untapped,
such as toys catered for adults, which has an estimated value of RMB20
billion according to the China Toy Association. China’s toy retail market
is fragmented, meaning that it does not have apparent market leaders. Sales
channels shows great variations from shopping centre offering mainly mid to
high end international brand toys to supermarkets and hypermarkets offering
medium to low priced toys in addition to new sales channels such as online

shops.

In Adverse Conditions
Despite apparent challenges from micro and macro environments, the
Company was able to adopt timely measures against adverse market

conditions to combat and mitigate operational difficulties.

As ‘leisure’ has become an increasingly important concept in the lives
of many Chinese consumers, the leisure shoes market also boomed in
recent years with style and comfort as the two main priorities in the sector.
Consumers of the market are typically between the age of 18 and 45 who
has a higher demand for brand culture and individuality, most of which are
students or office workers. In light of the needs of the market, the Company
defined a clear brand story complete with high quality products with

authentic features to target worldwide customers.

In comparison, high tier markets in the footwear industry are more saturated
over years of development; lower tier markets would be the major driving
factor in the foreseeable future. The Company has hence shifted its marketing
direction to target consumers of common backgrounds with premium

designs, quality products, and attractive prices.
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With a sophisticated and fashionable brand image as a leading international
integrated retailer and branded group of mid to medium women’s footwear
in China, the Company leverages on its reputation to strengthen customer
relationships and market positions. Innovation allows the Company to stay
competitive among consumers who expect a trendy inventory. It is dedicated
to take on the global fashion industry and commence its branding strategy
to forge C.banner as an international retail group with an innovative and

integrated retail platform.

With the Company’s extensive shoes retail network, the Company was able
to stimulate inventory turnover and boost sales of outlets and other online
platforms by launching strategic sales and joint promotions at appropriate
times. The sales network covers the majority of first, second and third tier
cities with bright sales prospects. The broad network of proprietary retail
outlets in department stores and shopping malls features the Group’s self-
developed and licensed brands products in addition to selected authorised

distributors.

In the year under review, the Group reduced 245 proprietary shoes retail
outlets and 39 third-party shoes retail outlets respectively. The reduction of
proprietary shoes retrial outlets, among others, is mainly due to the expiration
of certain licensed brand distribution agreements. As of 31 December 2018,
the Group oversaw a network of 1,417 proprietary retail outlets and 293
third-party retail outlets across China, maintaining a strong presence in over
31 provinces, municipalities and autonomous regions. The Group continued
to further optimize its retail networks comprising both online and offline
stores and strategically cooperated with retailers such as department stores,
shopping malls and outlets to increase market share in order to enhance same

store sales growth of each offline store and actively promote online sales.
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The following table shows the Group’s geographic distribution of shoes

i AL vt i S 4 e

RIS e S5 A Y [ A

outlets:
Badgley
Mischka Licensed
C.banner EBLAN Sundance MIO BEMokEE  Natusun  Brands
THE e KEi% KRR i L& b i
Third-party Third-party Proprietary  Third-party
Distribution Regions Proprietary outlets  Proprietary outlets  Proprietary outlets outlets  Proprietary  Proprietary  Proprietary
outlets FEyi] outlets Lyl outlets L=yl Lyl outlets outlets outlets Total
BN HRZE BEE  ARZEE TEE  ARZEN FEN FEE HEREE AEZEE AEZER At
Northeast AR 104 B 4 8 11 14 10 - 4 3 )
Beijing B8 1) 3 16 2 2 7 | 3 1 6 3 9
Tianjin KR 78 09 7 2 1 6 - 1 9 3 196
Northwest s A 68 55 M 6 - - 3 1 8 4 209
Central China #iifilm 39 16 8 - 1 7 - 1 - 3 75
Eastern China ERRE 1m 8 7 2 W) 41 1 3 3 9 382
Zhejiang LR 76 3 19 1 2 12 1 - 8 5 17
Shanghai LR 55 - 16 - - 4 - 2 14 4 95
Southwest [iesp] 100 2 26 1 - 14 5 3 - 5 156
Southern China R % 6 16 - - 14 - 3 6 8 149
Total it 825 18 285 n 4 113 53 15 88 4 1,710
Notes: FffaE -
(1) Northeast region includes Jilin province, Liaoning province and Heilongjiang (1)  HCbHLB @G HEME « B LBETE
province;
(2)  Beijing region includes Beijing, Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region, Zhangjiakou  (2) bt EIL KRSl HiA R - WAL & Rk
city and Qinhuangdao city in Hebei province; F O RREEET
(3)  Tianjin region includes Tianjin, Shandong province and Hebei province (except — (3)  RFEHbIEALE R ~ IWHE KL E L& m
Zhangjiakou city and Qinhuangdao city); RE T K2 R ETERSN)
(4)  Northwest region includes Shanxi province, Shaanxi province, Qinghai province,  (4) Vb AR L TE - BRVE A HIEE -
Gansu province, Henan province, Xinjiang Autonomous Region and Ningxia HoWEE o HEAEL R
Autonomous Region;
(5)  Central China region includes Hunan province and Hubei province; (5)  FEPHRAREME A AL E
(6)  Eastern China region includes Jiangsu province (except Wuxi city and Suzhou city),  (6)  FEHUHLIE MG IIHEE (MESHTT AR TTERSN) ~ %
Anhui province and Jiangxi province; HAE RILVEE
(7)  Zhejiang region includes Zhejiang province and Wuxi city and Suzhou city in Jiangsu — (7)  #i VTS A5 B VT LA ST RE 75 10 S 85 T K

province;

i
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(8) Shanghai region includes Shanghai;

) Southwest region includes Sichuan province, Guizhou province, Yunnan province,

Chonggqing city and Tibet Autonomous Region; and

(10)  Southern China region includes Guangdong province, Hainan province, Guangxi

Autonomous Region and Fujian province.

Consolidation for Hamleys

Hamleys operates in 18 countries across the globe and during the year under
review, opened 41 new stores globally (including 4 proprietary stores and 37
franchised stores). During the year, Hamleys also closed 12 stores (including

6 proprietary stores and 6 franchised stores).

2018 was another challenging year for UK retail with regular reports of
store closures, business failures, job losses and the worst Christmas trading
performance for 10 years. However, despite continued market uncertainty
and softening consumer demand, Hamleys consistently outperformed the
market and delivered profit improvement through relentless execution of its

strategic transformation plan.

As a result of the aforementioned, like-for-like sales growth for Hamleys UK

in the year under review was 3.5%.
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As of 31 December 2018, there were a total of 158 Hamleys stores
comprising 30 proprietary stores and 128 franchised stores. The following

table shows the geographic distribution of these stores:

Management Discussion and Analysis
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#A20184F 12 A 31 H > Hamleys A 3L H 158
JEH > 4G 30 K BETEIE X 128 FAFF RS
JE o TN A R RS R 0 3 [

Proprietary Franchised

stores stores Total
Country B % ER=E 2= J] R R s MGt
United Kingdom L 27 - 27
China h 3 - 3
Czech Republic e LA — 2 2
Egypt B - 3 3
India Ep - 71 71
Japan H A< — 2 2
Jordan #H - 5 5
Malaysia )5y i - 7 7
Mexico = PG FF - 6 6
Philippines JEHEH - 3 3
Poland ) — 1 1
Qatar W - 1 1
Russia k2 - 9 9
Saudi Arabia s TEnAlE - 1 1
Singapore TN - 2 2
South Africa Ik - 10 10
Turkey T HH - 1 1
The United Arab Emirates BTHLA 5 P R - 4 4
Total At 30 128 158
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Strategic Branding Initiatives

Product diversification and enrichment is a core focus for the Company
to implement its branding strategy. Each step that the Company has taken
during the year under review continues to shape the brand’s DNA and
enhance its core competitiveness, including continued adjustment of its

product range according to the latest market trends.

Recent upgrades to the Company’s management system were able to
enhance its design capability and reinforce its brand image. Data analyses
were carried out on sales data to better interpret latest fashion trends so that
the Company can come up with quality new products that better fits target
consumers’ needs. Led by experienced design directors and design managers,
the Company’s research and development teams initiate in-house trainings
for staff from time to time to enhance the overall designs of all product lines,

which will, in turn, reinforce the brand image of the Company.

Exceptional Online and Offline Consumption Experience
Accelerating the optimization of national layout of its proprietary and
licensed brands has enhanced the Company’s brand awareness, particularly

through various online and offline promotion measures.

As 020 concepts continue to take hold in the market, the Company bumped
up its effort in online creative marketing strategies to enhance consumers’
overall consumption experience. New media platforms such as WeChat
official account were used to reach a wider range of consumers and convey
marketing information with higher efficiency, including product information
and brand promotions. The Company continued to launch various online
sales promotions on its online flagship stores to further its O20 initiatives.
New online platforms are being explored to identify their business potentials.
For the offline consumption experience, the Company continued renovation
of its physical stores and implemented marketing strategies such as VIP
shopping schemes, sales promotions, outdoor advertisements, production
of product catalogues and brochures, which has successfully raised brand

awareness of the Company and maintained consumer loyalty.

The Company has built a solid foundation and an extensive retail network
over years of development with a strategic layout of self-developed and
licensed brand stores in China’s first, second and third-tier cities. In the year
under review, the Company continued to optimise both its online and offline
retail network, carrying out strategic cooperation with third party retailers at

the same time to maximise its market share and presence.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s total revenue decreased
by 4.6% to RMB2,923.7 million, compared to the same period of last
year. Gross profit decreased by 10.2% to RMB1,672.8 million. The Group
recorded the loss before tax of RMB378.0 million, and loss attributable to
owners of the Company of RMB387.0 million, respectively. The losses are
mainly attributable to the impairment loss recognized in respect of goodwill

and other intangible assets.

Revenue
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s total revenue decreased
by 4.6% to RMB2,923.7 million, compared to RMB3,063.5 million for the

same period of last year.

The Group’s revenue mix comprises income from retail and wholesale of
shoes (“Retail and Wholesale”), contract manufacturing of shoes (“Contract
Manufacturing”) and retail of toys. The revenue distribution of Retail and

Wholesale, Contract Manufacturing and retail of toys is set out as follows:
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2018 2017
20184 20174
% of Total % of Total

Revenue Revenue % Growth

RMB (°000) 4Bz RMB (000) L%k zs s
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Retail and Wholesale EL Y EIRIES 2,048,973 70.1 2,290,276 74.8 -10.5
Contract

Manufacturing B S 229,104 7.8 138,506 45 65.4

Retail of Toys TR T 645,582 22.1 634,742 20.7 1.7

Total 5t 2,923,659 100 3,063,524 100 -4.6

The decrease in Retail and Wholesale is mainly attributable to the decrease in
same store sales of shoes as compared with last year, the closure of inefficient
shoes outlets and the expiration of certain licensed brand distribution

agreements.
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Profitability

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the gross profit decreased by
10.2% from approximately RMB1,863.2 million in 2017 to approximately
RMB1,672.8 million, the gross profit margin was 57.2%, a decline of 3.6

percentage points from 60.8% in last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, distribution and selling expenses
amounted to RMB1,520.7 million, a decrease of 3.9%, compared to
expenses of RMB1,583.2 million last year. Distribution and selling expenses

accounted for 52.0% of total revenue, compared to 51.7% in last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, administrative and general expenses
amounted to RMB166.4 million, a decrease of RMB50.6 million compared
to the same period of last year. This decrease was mainly attributable to the
closure of certain toy stores operated by Hamleys Nordic by the Group in the
year of 2017. Administrative and general expenses accounted for 5.7% of

total revenue, compared to 7.1% in last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s other income and
expenses and other gains and losses recorded a net loss of RMB303.4 million
as compared to a net gain of RMB67.4 million last year. Other income
and expenses and other gains and losses mainly included impairment loss
recognized in respect of goodwill and other intangible assets, government
subsidies, interest income on bank deposits and net foreign exchange gain.
The decrease was mainly attributable to the impairment loss recognized in
respect of goodwill and other intangible assets, which amount to RMB154.3

million and RMB185.5 million respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded finance costs of
RMB54.7 million, compared to RMB65.9 million last year. The decrease was

mainly attributable to the decrease in bank borrowings.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded income tax
expense of RMB6.3 million, compared to RMB64.2 million last year. The

decrease was mostly attributable to the decrease in profit before taxation.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded loss attributable
to owners of the Company of RMB387.0 million as compared to profit
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately RMB20.5 million
recorded in 2017. The loss was mainly attributable to the impairment loss

recognized in respect of goodwill and other intangible assets.
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Impairments of goodwill and other intangible assets
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company recorded impairments
of goodwill and other intangible assets of RMB154.3 million and RMB185.5

million respectively (the “Impairments”).

The nature and breakdown of the goodwill and other intangible assets are
set out in notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements. As
disclosed in notes 15, 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statement, the
Impairments are related to the brand with indefinite useful life and goodwill
which both arose from the acquisition of Hamleys Global Group Holdings
Limited (the “Hamleys Global Group”) and its subsidiaries in November

2015.

Consumers’ confidence remained depressed due to gaining uncertainty
surrounding Brexit as the UK nears the deadline to finalise a deal with the
EU. Additionally, Bank of England increased interest rates in August 2018 to
the highest level for more than 9 years, further squeezing consumer spending.

The Company considered that these circumstances led to the Impairments.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company performed impairment assessment on
the Hamleys Global Group. The recoverable amount of the Hamleys Global
Group is determined based on value in use calculation. The total amount
of impairment loss was RMB339.8 million, which is mainly due to the key
assumption long term growth rate adjust to 2% (2017: 5%). The amount of
impairment loss is first allocated to reduce the carrying amount of goodwill
arising from the acquisition of the Hamleys Global Group of RMB154.3
million. The remaining impairment loss of RMB185.5 million is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of Hamleys Global Brand and recognised in the

provision for impairment of intangible asset.

The Company has prepared an independent valuation for value in use of

Hamleys Global Holdings Limited, the valuation is summarised as below.

Valuer: RHL Appraisal Limited

Valuation methodology: The valuation was carried out on value in use basis
according to Hong Kong Accounting Standard
36-Impairment of Assets (“HKAS 36”). According
to HKAS 36, the recoverable amount of a CGU is
the higher of its fair value less cost to sell or its
value in use. Value in use is the present value of
the future cash flows expected to be derived from
a CGU.

Key assumptions: Long term growth rate: 2%

Discount rates: 15%
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Liquid Assets, Financial Resources and Capital Expenditure
As of 31 December 2018, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
RMB314.2 million, compared to RMB540.1 million at the end of last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, net cash generated from operating
activities was RMB169.6 million, an increase of RMB55.1 million as

compared to RMB114.5 million as of the end of last year.

The Group recorded a net cash inflow of RMB452.4 million from investing
activities for the full year, compared to an outflow of RMB631.9 million in
2017. The inflow was primarily due to the income received from disposal of

held for sale assets of RMB569.9 million.

Net cash used in financing activities was RMB843.7 million in 2018,
compared to a net cash from financing activities of RMB449.1 million in

2017. This was mostly attributable to the repayment of bank borrowings.

As of 31 December 2018, the net current assets of the Group were RMB754.3
million, compared to RMB872.4 million at the end of last year, a decrease of

13.5% or RMB118.1 million.

Gearing ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio, computed by dividing total loans and borrowings
by total assets, was 11.7% as at 31 December 2018 compared with 28.9% as
at 31 December 2017.

Capital structure

The Group’s operations were financed mainly by shareholder’s equity, bank
facilities available to the Group and internal resources. The Group will
continue to adopt its treasury policy of placing its cash and cash equivalent
as interest bearing deposits. The Group’s loans and cash and cash equivalents
were mainly denominated in RMB, Hong Kong dollars, GBP and USD. The
Group’s bank borrowings denominated in USD as at 31 December 2018
amounted to RMB233.3 million.
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Pledge of Asset

At 31 December 2018, the Company’s equity interest in Mayflower
(Nanjing) Enterprise Limited, Dongguan Mayflower Footwear Corporation
Limited, Nanjing Soft Garment & Footwear Co., Ltd, Xuzhou C.banner
Shoes Limited, Hamleys Global Holdings Limited, Hamleys Toys (China)
Co., Ltd and Hamleys Toys (Nanjing) Co., Ltd have been pledged to secure
the bank borrowings of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any substantial or contingent liabilities as of 31

December 2018.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group’s sales are mainly denominated in RMB, while its Contract
Manufacturing is mainly denominated in USD and its retail of toys is mainly
denominated in GBP. The Contract Manufacturing accounted for 7.8% of
total revenue, while the retail of toys accounted for 22.1% of total revenue.
Nevertheless, the Board will keep monitoring the impact of the exchange rate
on our business closely and take appropriate measures to mitigate the impact

where necessary.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded a RMB1.8 million
loss from currency exchange, compared to a RMB10.8 million gain last
year. The Group did not hold any derivative instruments for hedging against

foreign exchange risk.

Disposal of the Company’s interest in EtonKids Educational Group
Limited

On 29 December 2017, the Company entered into sale and purchase
agreements with Allied Way International Enterprise Limited and Hongkong
Hongxing Investment Management Limited (the “Purchasers”), pursuant
to which the Company conditionally agreed to sell, and the Purchasers
conditionally agreed to purchase, 6,319,820 ordinary shares of EtonKids
Educational Group Limited (“EtonKids”), representing approximately
45.78% of the issued share capital of EtonKids, for an aggregate cash
consideration of US$89,499,900 (the “Disposal”). All the conditions
precedent under the sale and purchase agreements had been fulfilled and

completion of the Disposal took place on 17 May 2018.
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Convertible bonds and notes

Convertible bonds and notes issued in August 2017

On 4 August 2017, the Company issued convertible bonds and notes, each
in the principal amount of US$50 million, to Cheer Hope Holdings Limited
(“Cheer Hope”). Mr. Chen Yixi had unconditionally and irrevocably
guaranteed to Cheer Hope the punctual discharge by the Company of its
obligations of whatever nature under the subscription agreement in relation
to the issue of the convertible bonds and the notes and other ancillary
transaction documents and promised to pay on demand each sum (together
with interest on such sum accrued both before and after the date of demand
until the date of payment) which the Company was liable to pay under the
subscription agreement and other ancillary transaction documents. Pursuant
to the subscription agreement, the bond instrument and the note instrument,
it shall be an event of default if Mr. Chen Yixi ceased to (i) be beneficially
interested (directly or indirectly) in at least 30% of the issued Shares of the
Company and the single largest Shareholder of the Company; or (ii) be the
chairman and executive Director of the Company. If an event of default under
the subscription agreement occurs, the convertible bonds and the notes were,
and they shall become, immediately due and repayable. In January 2018, the
Company redeemed convertible bonds and notes each in the principal amount
of US$10 million, and subsequently on 17 May 2018, the Company had,
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the convertible bonds and the notes,
given notice to the holders of the convertible bonds and the notes respectively
that the Company would redeem the convertible bonds and the notes each in
the aggregate principal amount of US$40,000,000 that remained outstanding
in full on 17 May 2018 before their maturity each at a total redemption price
of US$41,742,223 (together with outstanding interests thereon up to the early
redemption date). Upon completion of the early redemption, the convertible

bonds and the notes had been fully cancelled.
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Convertible bonds and notes issued in January 2018

On 17 January 2018, the Company issued convertible bonds and notes, each
in the principal amount of US$10 million, to OCI Capital Limited. Pursuant
to the relevant subscription agreement, it shall be an event of default if Mr.
Chen Yixi ceased to (i) be beneficially interested (directly or indirectly)
in at least 30% of the issued Shares of the Company and the single largest
Shareholder of the Company; or (ii) be the chairman and executive Director
of the Company. If an event of default under the subscription agreement
occurs, the convertible bonds and the notes were, and they shall become,
immediately due and repayable. On 3 May 2018, the Company had, pursuant
to the terms and conditions of the convertible bonds and the notes, given
notice to the holders of the convertible bonds and the notes respectively
that the Company would redeem the convertible bonds and the notes
each in the aggregate principal amount of US$10,000,000 that remained
outstanding in full on 3 May 2018 before their maturity at a total redemption
price of US$10,526,463.86 and US$10,426,463.86 respectively (together
with outstanding interests thereon up to the early redemption date). Upon
completion of the early redemption, the convertible bonds and the notes had

been fully cancelled.

Human Resources

As of 31 December 2018, the Group had 9,268 employees (31 December
2017: 10,457 employees). The Group provides its employees with
competitive remuneration packages including mandatory pension funds,
insurance and medical benefits. In addition, the Group pays discretionary
bonuses to qualified employees according to the business performance and

their individual work performance.

Dividend
The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year

ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).
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Outlook

Supported by ongoing stable public infrastructure investment and sizable
consumption, China’s GDP growth for 2018 recorded 6.6%., though it should
be noted that in 2018 to 2019, business investment growth is likely to suffer
further decline due to production capacity cuts and stricter pollution controls,
while strong consumer spending growth will play a bigger economic role. As
more households move into the middle-class income bracket, it is expected
that consumer complexity will increase, and fashion will form a sizeable part

of the identity of an increasingly sophisticated Chinese consumer base.

2018 has been a challenging year for the footwear industry. Although leading
players in the industry has generally seen an increase in sales, some smaller
market participants were wiped out of the industry completely. However, the
Company remains cautiously hopeful in the foreseeable future as China’s
economic operations is shifting gears, and it is expected that these changes
will reinforce and support a steady and sound development momentum. The
Company will continue to navigate through the harsh market environment

with its well established growth momentum.

With its comprehensive retail network comprised of both online and offline
platforms, premium consumption experience continues to be a strength of
the Company in challenging times. The Company will continue to develop
the potentials of its online business, accelerating growth to boost sales and
enhance brand awareness. To fully utilise the online-offline synergy, the
Company has optimised and upgraded high-end customised 3D feet scanning
services in selected offline stores, which can also redirect offline customers

to online platforms to achieve true online-offline integration.

The Company’s online platforms are also considered to be an effective
channel to new product and brand launch. Hence, it will utilise its interactive
media platforms to promote its brands to provide personalised consumption
experience to consumers, so as to maintain customer loyalty. It is also a
window for the Company to generate profound, instant and accurate insights
on consumers’ needs and preferences. The data also allows the Company
to optimise its retail network and identify underperforming stores to save
costs and ensure profitability of the Company. These competitive advantages
allow the Company to strengthen its retail channels and enrich scenario

consumption experience of its physical outlets.
In the future, the Company will continue its branding strategies, retail

network expansion, marketing strategies, and operation efficiency

enhancements to combat adverse market conditions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Company will continue to introduce new distribution channels
and achieve horizontal expansion and market share increment through
the introduction of new women footwear brands and cooperation with
departments store and e-commerce platforms. It will further optimise its
offline sales and distribution network and focus on store efficiency and
shopping experience enhancement, as well as actively develop its online

business and platforms to further drive sales performance.

Innovative online and offline marketing promotion initiatives will be
launched to boost sales and enhance its brand influence. The Company’s
online platforms are an important tool to interact with consumers and

strengthen their loyalty to the Company’s brands.

Continued enhancements to operating efficiency will improve inventory
levels and provide insights for the Company to enhance supply chain
management. The Company will continue to seek new growth drivers
through the market and will also explore and study areas of cooperation
among its existing businesses and other future potential opportunities to

achieve greater synergy.
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in the

annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has complied with all
applicable code provisions under the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules during the Review Period. The Company will continue to
review and enhance its corporate governance practices to ensure compliance

with the CG Code.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, overseeing
the Group’s strategic decisions and monitoring the Group’s business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs, the Board has established three Board committees including the
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) (together, the “Board Committees”). The Board
has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their

respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of the

Company and its Shareholders at all times.
The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify the

Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The insurance

coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.
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Board Composition

During the Review Period, the Board comprised four executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chen Yixi, Mr. Zhao Wei, Mr. Huo Li and Mr. Yuan Zhenhua,
one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Miao Bingwen, and four
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson,
Mr. Li Xindan, Mr. Zhang Zhiyong and Mr. Zheng Hongliang. In addition,
during the review period, Mr. Wu Guangze and Mr. Ngan Wing Ho resigned
as non-executive Directors with effect from 4 April 2018. The biographies
of the Directors are set out under the section headed “Directors and Senior

Management” of this annual report.

Relationships (including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships), if any, among members of the Board are also
disclosed. There was no such relationship as between the chairman of the

Board (the “Chairman”) and the CEO during the Review Period.

Pursuant the code provision A.5.6 of the CG code, listed issuers are required
to adopt a board diversity policy. The Board has adopted the board diversity
policy and the summary of the board diversity policy is set out under “Board

Committees — Nomination Committee” below.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the independence

guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit

Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose the number
and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations and other
significant commitments as well as their identity and the time involved to the
issuer, Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments to the Company

in a timely manner.

Corporate Governance Report
ESEE IR,

ER AR

WA N EREGEBMNARITES - QIR
BRAEAE - MRESEAE R e RORIRTE A
—ZIEMATHE - AV DL 0E
ST S RUBAARAE 5B A - 20 hEA
R B e MO AT SR e o ek > A ERA
N SE R A RBUK SRR A R 20184414 H
BATRPITES - EFZEIFRN A TR #E
B ERE G ] — o

IR R W B (BRI - 3685~ Rk
sCHAL R A BIBAR) (A7) IR T LLBER -
TR IR > S R (3% ) B R AT
B IR o 5% 45 BAR -

HRPE A S ST RIS RIS A S 66k LTl
BAT NHBR I — HE R A Z UL BOR - &
FECRMERG R EZ oL BOR RS E K
BZIufC BOR B HOR N [EHZRE 2
PEEAEIHET -

AN T E A A B ST JE AT AR DR TR
B33 IR 2 A A T R RRE o ARE BTl
ST s VAR = N NN Rt X VA
PATE ST o

EER (GEE LT ES) SR
A AN [ ) BB P I~ Rl B T
> AT e KA A o 8 S JE HUAT
FHEMAFELLZEY  HiNEZ B G RRE &
B e

ARSI ST RIS R S 1 84T AR IR
O R ) EUALAR AR 2 B B R A
HORURAE LA R PIT BOeps KRS - O
(7] 5 S IR i) A )45 8 100 458 PR R S 7R

THEBRBREBRARAR 2 URE R

49



50

Corporate Governance Report
EEE IR,

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and performed by different individuals.
During the Review Period, Mr. Chen Yixi was the Chairman and Mr.
Zhao Wei was the President. Mr. Chen Yixi is responsible for charting
the business strategy and has played a determining role in establishing the
Group’s presence in the PRC women’s footwear industry. Mr. Zhao Wei
was responsible for overseeing the operations (including brand and product
development), finance and human resource management of the Group during
the Review Period. As described above, there is a clear distinction between
the Chairman’s responsibility for providing leadership for the Board and
the President’s responsibility for managing the day-to-day operations of the

Group’s business.

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

All executive Directors have entered into service contracts with the Company
for a specific term of two years or three years. In addition, all non-executive
Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have entered into
letters of appointment with the Company for a specific term of one year or

three years.

In compliance with the code provision in A.4.2 of the CG Code, all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Furthermore, pursuant to the bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest one-third
but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation. The retiring
Directors shall be eligible for re-election. The Company at any general

meeting at which any Directors retire may fill the vacated offices.
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In compliance with the code provision in A.4.2 of the CG Code, all
Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by
Shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment. By virtue of
the bye-law 102(B) of the Bye-laws, the Board shall have power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board but so that the number of Directors
so appointed shall not exceed the maximum number determined from time
to time by the Shareholders in general meeting. Any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general

meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are set out in the Bye-laws. The Nomination Committee
is responsible for reviewing the Board composition, monitoring the

appointment, re-election and succession planning of Directors.

Induction and Continuing Development of Directors

Each newly appointed Director shall receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the

Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors will be continuously updated on the statutory and regulatory
regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Briefing and professional development for Directors will be

arranged where necessary.
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Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the
year of 2018, all Directors, namely Mr. Chen Yixi, Mr. Zhao Wei, Mr. Huo
Li, Mr. Yuan Zhenhua, Mr. Miao Bingwen, Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson,
Mr. Li Xindan, Mr. Zhang Zhiyong and Mr. Zheng Hongliang, participated in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills by ways of attending trainings and reading materials which are
relevant to the Group’s business or to directors’ duties and responsibilities. In
addition, the company secretary of the Company from time to time updates
and provides written training material relating to the roles, functions and
duties of a director and all the aforesaid Directors study such materials and
they are asked to submit a signed training record to the Company on annual

basis.

Board Meetings and General Meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding board meetings regularly, at
least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of
not less than fourteen days are given for all regular board meetings to provide
all Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda
for a regular meeting. For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given. When Directors or committee members are unable
to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and
given an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman prior to the

meeting.

Minutes of the board meetings and committee meetings are recorded in
sufficient detail of the matters considered by the Board and the committees
and the decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors.
Draft minutes of each board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the
Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the

meeting is held.
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For the Review Period, four Board meetings and an annual general meeting
were held and the attendance of the individual Directors at these meetings is

set out in the table below:

Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
Board Meetings General Meeting

Mr. Chen Yixi 4/4 1/1
Mr. Huo Li 4/4 1/1
Mr. Zhao Wei 4/4 1/1
Mr. Yuan Zhenhua 4/4 1/1
Mr. Miao Bingwen 2/4 0/1
Mr. Ngan Wing Ho 0/1 0/0
(resigned on 4 April 2018)
Mr. Wu Guangze 1/1 0/0
(resigned on 4 April 2018)
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 4/4 1/1
Mr. Li Xindan 3/4 0/1
Mr. Zhang Zhiyong 4/4 1/1
Mr. Zheng Hongliang 4/4 0/1

During the Review Period, the Chairman held a meeting with the independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of other Directors on 29 March

2018.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specific enquiry has been made
of all the Directors and each of the Directors has confirmed that he has

complied with the Model Code throughout the Review Period.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters. Directors could have resources to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at the Company’s
expense and are encouraged to access and to consult with the Company’s

senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group
are delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by

the management.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprised four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson, Mr. Li Xindan, Mr. Zhang
Zhiyong and Mr. Zheng Hongliang, and one non-executive Director, namely
Mr. Miao Bingwen. Therefore, the majority of members of the Audit
Committee are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Kwong Wai Sun
Wilson currently is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The main duties of

the Audit Committee include the following:

. To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the internal audit division or

external auditor before submission to the Board

. To review the relationship with the external auditor by reference to the
work performed by the auditor, their fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,

reappointment and removal of external auditor
. To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial

reporting system, internal control system and risk management system

and associated procedures
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During the Review Period, two meetings of the Audit Committee were held
and the attendance record of the Audit Committee members is set out in the

table below:

Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 2/2
Mr. Miao Bingwen 2/2
Mr. Li Xindan 2/2
Mr. Zhang Zhiyong 2/2
Mr. Zheng Hongliang 2/2

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the Review Period to review
the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
the interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2018,
the financial reporting and compliance procedures, the Company’s internal
control and risk management systems and processes (including the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting

functions), and the re-appointment of the external auditor.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the corporate

governance duties, including:

. To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance

. To review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management

. To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

. To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors

. To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprised four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Xindan, Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson,
Mr. Zhang Zhiyong and Mr. Zheng Hongliang, and one non-executive
Director, namely Mr. Miao Bingwen. Therefore, the majority of members of
the Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive Directors. Mr.

Li Xindan currently is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and structure
and remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the operation model
where it performs an advisory role to the Board, with the Board retaining
the final authority to approve the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for formulating
such remuneration policy and structure and to ensure that no Director or any
of his associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance of the

individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Review Period
to review and consider the existing terms of remuneration of the Directors
and senior management with reference to the prevailing market conditions,
a Director’s experience, responsibility, workload and fees paid by the

comparable companies.

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 December
2018 is set out below:

Remuneration band Number of individuals

RMBI1,000,001 to RMB1,600,000 2
More than RMB1,600,000 2

Further particulars relating to Directors’ emoluments and the five highest

paid individuals are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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During the Review Period, one meeting of the Remuneration Committee was
held and the attendance record of the Remuneration Committee members is

set out as follows:

Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
Mr. Li Xindan 1/1
Mr. Miao Bingwen 1/1
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 1/1
Mr. Zhang Zhiyong 1/1
Mr. Zheng Hongliang 1/1

Nomination Committee

During the Review Period, the Nomination Committee comprised one
executive Director, namely Mr. Chen Yixi, one non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Wu Guangze, who resigned on 4 April 2018, and four
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson,
Mr. Li Xindan, Mr. Zhang Zhiyong and Mr. Zheng Hongliang. Therefore,
the majority of members of the Nomination Committee were independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Chen Yixi currently is the chairman of the

Nomination Committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

. To review the structure, size and composition of the Board and make

recommendations regarding any proposed changes

. To identify suitable candidates for appointment as Directors

. To make recommendations to the Board on appointment or

reappointment of and succession planning for Directors

. To assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors

The Nomination Committee considered and resolved that all the existing
Directors shall be recommended to be retained by the Company.
Furthermore, in accordance with the Bye-laws and as resolved by the
Nomination Committee, Mr. Zhao Wei, Mr. Miao Bingwen and Mr.
Kwong Wai Sun Wilson shall retire by rotation, and being eligible, offered
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the

Company.
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1. NOMINATION POLICY

The Group adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) on

1 January 2019. A summary of this policy is disclosed as below.

1. Objective

1.1

1.3

The Nomination Committee shall review the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board

to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable
candidates to the Board for it to consider and make
recommendations to shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholder(s)”) for election as Director at general

meetings or appoint him/her to fill casual vacancies.

The Nomination Policy helps the Nomination Committee
and the Board to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives

appropriate to the requirements of the Group’s business.

2. Selection Criteria

2.1

The factors listed below would be used as reference by
the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of

a proposed candidate.

(1)  Reputation for integrity;

(2) Commitment in respect of available time and

relevant interest; and
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3)

Diversity in all its aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age (18 years or above),
cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and

length of service.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to

be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee

has the discretion to nominate any person, as it considers

appropriate.

3. Nomination Procedures

3.1 Appointment of Directors

)

(2

(3

(C))

(&)

The Nomination Committee identifies
individual(s) suitably qualified to become Board
members, having due regard to the Nomination
Policy and the board diversity policy of the
Company, and assesses the independence of the
proposed independent non-executive Director(s)

as appropriate.

The Nomination Committee makes

recommendation(s) to the Board.

The Board considers the individual(s)
recommended by the Nomination Committee,
having due regard to the Nomination Policy and

the board diversity policy.

The Board confirms the appointment of the
individual(s) as Director(s) or recommends the
individual(s) to stand for election at a general

meeting.

The Shareholders approve the election of
individual(s), who stand(s) for election at general

meeting, as Director(s).
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3.2 Re-appointment of Directors

)]

(@)

3

“

(&)

The Nomination Committee considers each
retiring Director, having due regard to the
Nomination Policy and the board diversity policy
of the Company, and assesses the independence of

each retiring independent non-executive Director.

The Nomination Committee makes

recommendation(s) to the Board.

The Board considers each retiring Director
recommended by the Nomination Committee,
having due regard to the Nomination Policy and

the board diversity policy.

The Board recommends the retiring Directors to
stand for re-election at the annual general meeting

in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

The Shareholders approve the re-election of

Directors at the annual general meeting.

3.3 The Board shall have the ultimate responsibility for

all matters relating to the selection and appointment of

Directors.

4. Review of the Nomination Policy

4.1 The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination

Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of

the Nomination Policy. The Nomination Committee

will discuss any revisions that may be required,

and recommend any such revisions to the Board for

consideration and approval.
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The Company adopted the board diversity policy with measurable objectives.
The Nomination Committee evaluates the balance and blend of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives of the Board. Selection of candidates
is based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to age,
cultural and educational background, professional and industry experience,
skills, knowledge, ethnicity and other qualities essential to the Company’s
business, and merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board. The Board has reviewed such measurable objectives in March
2018 to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards

achieving those objectives.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Review Period.

The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee is set out as

follows:

Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
Mr. Chen Yixi 1/1
Mr. Li Xindan 1/1
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 1/1
Mr. Zhang Zhiyong 1/1
Mr. Wu Guangze (resigned on 4 April 2018) 1/1
Mr. Zheng Honliang 1/1

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the Group’s
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 which give a true
and fair view of the affairs of the Group and of the Group’s results and cash

flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval. During the Review Period, the Company provided all
members of the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,

position and prospects.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROL
The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for

maintaining an adequate risk management and internal control systems
to safeguard Shareholders’ investments and the Company’s assets and

reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on an annual basis.

The Group’s internal audit department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The major tasks of the internal
audit department are reviewing the financial condition and internal control
of the Company and conducting comprehensive audits of all branches and

subsidiaries of the Company on a regular basis.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and considered the
risk management and internal control systems to be effective and adequate

during the Review Period.

The Group has embedded its risk management and internal control systems
into the core operating practices of the business. On an ongoing basis, it will
review and assess the status of potential risks which may impact on their
ability to achieve the business objectives of the Group. This review process
includes assessment as to whether the existing systems of risk management
and internal controls continue to remain relevant, adequately addresses
potential risks, and/or should be supplemented. The results of these reviews
are reported to the senior management and the Board periodically and
regularly. However, the mechanism under the risk management and internal
control systems reasonably but not absolutely ensures the non-occurrence
of significant error, loss or fraud and it is designed to manage, rather than

eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

The Group has also adopted procedures to regulate the handling and
dissemination of inside information, ensuring the inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is appropriately
approved, and the dissemination of such information is efficiently and

consistently made.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Annual audit fees of the financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 payable to the external auditor are approximately
RMB2.738 million and the auditors did not provide any non-audit services

for the Group.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and understanding of the Group’s
business, performance and strategies. The Company also recognises the
importance of timely and non-selective disclosure of information, which
will enable Shareholders and investors to make the informed investment

decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.cbanner.com.cn, where up-to-date information on the Company’s
business operations and developments, financial information, corporate

governance practices and other information are available for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each issue at Shareholders” meetings, including the election of

individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at Shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in a timely

manner after each Shareholders’ meeting.

CONVENING OF SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETING

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition sent to the Company’s registered office, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2)

months after the deposit of such requisition.
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The written requisition must state clearly the name of the Shareholder(s)
concerned, his/her/their shareholding, the purposes of the general meeting,
signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may consist of several

documents in like form, each signed by one or more of those Shareholders.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionists or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene
a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration

of three (3) months from the said date.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of
the failure of the Board duly to convene a meeting shall be repaid to the
requisitionists by the Company, and any sum so repaid shall be retained by
the Company out of any sums due or to become due from the Company by
way of fees or other remuneration in respect of their services to such directors

as were in default.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS

The Company holds an annual general meeting (“AGM”) every year, and
may hold a general meeting known as a special general meeting whenever

necessary.

Any one or more Shareholders holding (i) not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of all Shareholders having the right to vote at the general
meeting; or (ii) not less than 100 Shareholders, can submit a written request
stating the resolution intended to be moved at the AGM or a statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed

resolution or the business to be dealt with at a particular general meeting.

The written request/statements must be signed by the Shareholder(s)
concerned and deposited at the Company’s registered office and its principal
office not less than six weeks before the AGM in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week before the general

meeting in the case of any other requisition.
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The written request will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the Board should (i) include the resolution in the agenda for the
AGM; or (ii) circulate the statement for the general meeting, provided that
the Shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a sum of money reasonably
determined by the Board sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses
in serving the notice of the resolution and/ or circulating the statement
submitted by the Shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with the statutory

requirements to all the registered Shareholders.

PROPOSING A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A
DIRECTOR

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures are

available on the website of the Company.

ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the Company

to the Board could email their enquiries to info@cbanner.com.cn.

COMPANY SECRETARY
The Company engages Ms. So Lai Shan of TMF Hong Kong Limited, (a

company secretarial service provider) as its company secretary. Her primary
corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Huo Li, an executive

Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Ms. So has undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29

of the Listing Rules.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Review Period, there is no significant change in constitutional

documents of the Company.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Subject to the Companies Act, the Company, through a general meeting, may
declare final dividends in any currency, but no dividend may be declared in

excess of the amount recommended by the Board.

Future dividend payments will depend upon the availability of dividends
the Company receives from our operating subsidiaries in China. PRC laws
require that dividends be paid only out of the net profit calculated according
to PRC accounting principles, which differ in many aspects from IFRS.
PRC laws also require foreign-invested enterprises, such as the operating
subsidiaries of the Company in China, to set aside part of their net profit as
statutory reserves, which are not available for distribution as cash dividends.
Distributions from the subsidiaries of the Company may also be restricted if
they incur debts or losses or in accordance with any restrictive covenants in
bank credit facilities, convertible bond instruments or other agreements that
the Company or its subsidiaries have entered into or may enter into in the

future.

Subject to the above factors, our expected dividend policy is that not less
than approximately 20% of our profits available for distribution will be
recommended for distribution in each financial year. The amount of dividend
actually distributed to the Shareholders of the Company will depend
upon the earnings and financial condition, operating requirements, capital
requirements of the Company and any other conditions that our Directors

may deem relevant and will be subject to approval of our Shareholders.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Chen Yixi (BEZ2BE), aged 52, is the Chairman, an executive Director and
the chairman of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Chen founded Nanjing
Mayflower Footwear Corporation (7 5 5% BEHE #2647 [ A3 |]) (“Mayflower
Footwear”) in 1995 and is a co-founder of the Group. Mr. Chen is responsible
for charting the business strategy of the Group and has played a determining
role in establishing the Group’s presence in the PRC women’s footwear
industry. Mr. Chen was honored by the People’s Government of Jiangsu
Province and the People’s Government of Nanjing as an Outstanding
Entrepreneur of Non-Stateowned Companies (7 R %K) and is
currently the Vice Chairman of Nanjing Federation of Industry & Commerce
(AT LG 260 A &) and Vice President of Nanjing Enterprise Directors
Association (B2 &2EZK W &). Mr. Chen graduated from Nanjing
Normal University with a Bachelor’s Degree in News Propagation in 1988
and obtained a Master of Business Administration Degree from Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business in 2007. He served with the news
publications department of Jiangsu Chinese Communist Party Council from
1988 to 1995 before co-founding Mayflower Footwear with other partners.
Mr. Chen is the sole director of Hongguo International Group Limited, which
is a substantial shareholder of the Company within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Chen has not been a director of
any other listed company in the three years immediately preceding the date

of this annual report.

Zhao Wei (B f#), aged 52, is an executive Director and the president of the
Group, responsible for overseeing the Group’s overall operation. He was a
former executive Director for the period from 2 February 2004 to 15 June
2012, responsible for the Group’s expansion strategies and wholesale. Mr.
Zhao joined the Group in December 1995 as a sales manager. Mr. Zhao
graduated from Jilin Agricultural University in 1990. He also obtained
a Master of Business Administration Degree from Singapore Nanyang
Technological University in 2008. Mr. Zhao has not been a director of any
other listed company in the three years immediately preceding the date of this

annual report.
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Huo Li (1), aged 52, was appointed as an executive Director in 2001 and
has been the vice president of the Group since 2008, primarily responsible
for evaluating opportunities of, and formatting plans for, mergers and
acquisitions as well as international cooperation. Mr. Huo joined the Group
as an investment manager in 2001 and is responsible for the external
investments, international cooperation of the Group. In 1988, Mr. Huo
graduated from Fudan University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics.
From 1988 to 2001, he held various positions in the Bank of China, including
that of deputy general manager of the bank’s Changzhou Branch. Mr.
Huo has not been a director of any other listed company in the three years

immediately preceding the date of this annual report.

Yuan Zhenhua (¥ %), aged 37, is an executive Director and the Chief
Financial Officer of the Group and a board member of Hamleys Global
Holdings Limited. He obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting from
Nanjing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics in 2005. Mr. Yuan is
currently a non-practicing member of the PRC Certified Public Accountant
Association. From 2005 to 2015, he held various positions in the Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP, Nanjing Branch,
including being senior manager of the Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified

Public Accountants LLP, Nanjing Branch.

Non-executive Director

Miao Bingwen (M 30), aged 51, is a non-executive Director and a member
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Miao is a co-
founder of the Group who served as an executive Director from 1995 to 2007,
overseeing the sales and business planning of the Group. With effect from
1 March 2007, Mr. Miao was re-designated as the non-executive Director.
Mr. Miao obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Chemistry and a Master of
Business Administration Degree from Nanjing University in 1988 and 2005,
respectively. He worked in Nanjing University Technology Development
Limited (B35 KRB EE /A H]) from 1988 to 1991 and served as the
Nanjing market supervisor from 1991 to 1995, before co-founding Mayflower
Footwear with other partners. Mr. Miao has not been a director of any other
listed company in the three years immediately preceding the date of this annual

report.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Kwong Wai Sun Wilson (BFf#{%), aged 53, is an independent non-
executive Director. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
Mr. Kwong has been appointed as an executive director of China Metal
Resources Utilization Limited, a manufacturer of recycled copper products
in China and a listed company on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, with
effect from 16 August 2013. He is also an independent non-executive
director of Shunfeng International Clean Energy Limited, China Outfitters
Holdings Limited and China New Higher Education Group Limited, all of
which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. On 15 March 2019,
Mr. Kwong was appointed as independent non-executive director of
Koolearn Technology Holding Limited (¥ )y f£ & FHE ZE A FRA D), a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 28 March 2019. Mr.
Kwong graduated from Cambridge University, England with a Degree of
Bachelor of Arts in 1987 and is currently an associate member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwong, who previously worked at a
number of investment banks in Hong Kong, has 14 years of experience in
corporate finance and equity capital markets in Asia. From 2002 to 2003, Mr.
Kwong was the head of equity capital markets for Cazenove Asia Limited.
From 2004 to 2006, he was a managing director of investment banking and
head of Hong Kong and China equity capital market of CLSA Equity Capital
Markets Limited. From 2008 to August 2013, he was the President of Gushan
Environmental Energy Limited, a leading biodiesel and related products

producer in China formerly listed on the New York Stock Exchange.

Li Xindan (Z=.0J}), aged 52, is an independent non-executive Director.
He is also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Li currently
holds several positions with Nanjing University, including the director of
the Academic Committee and the Anzhong Chair Professor of the School
of Management and Engineering of Nanjing University, the director of the
Financial Engineering Research Center and the executive director of the
Venture Capital Research and Development Center of the university. Mr.
Li graduated from Fudan University in 1988 with a Bachelor’s Degree in
Management Science as well as a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics. He
further obtained a Doctor’s Degree in Finance from Fudan University in
1999. Mr. Li joined the Southeast University as an assistant professor in 1988
and was promoted to an associate professor and a professor in 1993 and 1999,
respectively. Then Mr. Li joined Nanjing University as a professor in 2001.
Mr. Li was an independent non-executive director of Holly Futures Co., Ltd.,
a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 3678)
until 15 November 2018.

Directors and Senior Management
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Zhang Zhiyong (3% %), aged 51, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 15 October 2012. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
Mr. Zhang has been appointed as the executive director and chief executive
officer of China Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd., a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 3818), with effect from 10
October 2017. Mr. Zhang was the former Chief Executive Officer of Li Ning
Company Limited (“Li Ning”), a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 2331) for the period from June 2004 to July 2012.
Mr. Zhang was also an executive director of Li Ning from 5 June 2004 to 27
June 2014 and a non-executive director of Li Ning from 28 June 2014 to 6
October 2014. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree of economics (%
ELEL1-EL{V) from Capital University of Economics and Business (4 # &8 {7
& %K) (formerly known as Beijing College of Economics (65T #8752
[%)) in 1991 and an executive master degree in business administration (/%
SR B TR A - E4Y) from Guanghua School of Management of
Peking University (b5 RS EHE ME L) in 2006.

Zheng Hongliang (¥B4L5%), aged 60, is an independent non-executive
Director. He is also a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Zheng is currently a
professor of the Institute of Economics Chinese Academy of Social Science
(R B AL BB e SV 9 9T ). Mir. Zheng is also the executive vice-
editor-in-chief of editorial office of Economic Research Journal ({£%75if
%t)), which is a PRC journal in economic theory research published by the
Institute of Economics of Chinese Academy of Social Science. Mr. Zheng’s
field of research mainly covers the areas in respect of microeconomics,
comparative study of corporate system, theory of corporate governance, and
revolution of state enterprises. Mr. Zheng graduated from the Department of
Economic of Renmin University of China with a Master Degree in 1987. Mr.
Zheng is currently an independent non-executive director of Asian Capital
Resources (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 8025), a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Wan Xianghua (##:3), aged 50, is the vice president of the Group. Mr.
Wan joined the Group in 1996, and is currently responsible for the operation
of natursun brand and the design, research and development and procurement
of MIO brand and supply chain management. Mr. Wan has served as a
committee member of the National Technical Committee on Footwear of
Standardization Administration of China ("5 | #EA%# (L2 B @) since
2008 and has been a professor specializing in footwear manufacturing at

Guangling Institute of Yangzhou University (£51 F F% B4B¢) since 2010.

Wu Weiming (24EW]), aged 47, is the vice president of the Group. Mr.
Wu joined the Group in 2000, and is currently responsible for the retail
operations of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wu had served with
Shenzhen Zhen Xing Footwear Company (Y2 BLEESE /S F]) since 1997
and was the general manager of East China Branch of the company when he

left the company in 2000.

Gong Lungui (#ffi#), aged 45, is the vice president of the Group. Mr.
Gong joined the Group in 2002, and is currently responsible for the technical

development, manufacturing and outsourcing of self-developed brands.

Directors and Senior Management
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Independent Auditor’s Report
T S Az B R

TO THE MEMBERS OF C.BANNER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of C.banner
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group™) set out on pages 78 to 199,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board
(“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit

matters

Impairment on brand with indefinite useful life and goodwill

We identified the impairment on brand with
indefinite useful life and goodwill as a key
audit matter due to its nature involving key

estimation made by the management of the

Company and the significant balances of —

brand with indefinite useful life and goodwill
as at 31 December 2018.

As disclosed in Notes 15, 16 and 17 to
the consolidated financial statements,
as at 31 December 2018, the brand with
indefinite useful life and goodwill were
valued at approximately RMB620,313,000
(net of impoirment loss of approximately
RMB185,503,000) and RMB nil (net
of impairment loss of approximately
RMB154,318,000) respectively, which were
both related to the acquisition of Hamleys
Global Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
in 2015.

The management of the Company are required
to make estimation of the recoverable amount
of the cash generating units (CGUs), which is
the higher of the value in use or fair value less
costs of disposal, in assessing whether there
is any impairment of brand with indefinite
useful life and goodwill. The value in use
calculation requires the directors to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from
the CGU and the suitable discount rate in

order to calculate the present value.

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment on brand with indefinite

useful life and goodwill included:

Obtaining an understanding of
the management controls over the
impairment assessment of brand with

indefinite useful life;

- Examining the determination of
recoverable amounts which is the value
in use of the CGU to which brand with
indefinite useful life has been allocated
and obtaining an understanding of
financial positions and future prospects
of the CGU;

- Assessing the reasonableness of key
inputs and assumptions used by the
management in estimations of value in
use, including projections of cash flows,
growth rates and weighted average cost

of capital (discount rate) applied;

- Testing the inputs into the cash flow
forecasts against historical performance
and in comparison to the Group’s

strategic plans in respect of the CGU;

- Comparing the growth rates used to
historical growth rates for the business
of the CGU; and

- Checking the mathematical accuracy of

the calculation of value in use.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters
Allowance of Inventories obsolescence

We identified the allowance of inventories
obsolescence as a key audit matter due to
its nature involving key estimation made
by the management of the Company and its

significant balance as at 31 December 2018.

As disclosed in Note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements, as at 31 December
2018, the gross value of inventory,
mostly finished goods, held by the Group
was RMB755,147,000 and allowance
of inventories obsolescence was
RMB103,104,000. Inventories were carried
in the consolidated financial statements at
the lower of cost and net realisable value
(“NRV”).

The management of the Company
are required to make estimation of
the NRV of the inventory based on
various factors including inventory
aging and predicted future unit

selling prices.

How our audit addressed the key audit
matters

Our procedures in relation to the allowance of

inventories obsolescence included:

- Understanding how the inventory
provision is estimated by the

management;

- Testing the aging analysis of the
inventories, on a sample basis, to the
source documents including warehouse

and production records;

- Assessing the NRV estimated by
the management by comparing the
historical unit market selling prices
with predicted future unit selling prices;

and

- Assessing the reasonableness
and accuracy of the provisioning
methodology with reference to the
selling prices, physical conditions,
aging analysis and subsequent usage

and sales of inventories.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises all the information in the 2018 annual report of the Company,

but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,

our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the

consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have

performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued
by the TASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but

to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing

the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to

any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
T S A i

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made

by the directors.

. conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably

be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

26 April 2019

Chan Mei Bo, Mabel
Practising Certificate No.: P03402
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

]\ VN
AR A At 2 i W A 3R
For the year ended 31 December 2018
#E 20184F 12 7 31 H IL4EE
2018 2017
2018 4 2017 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s ANR¥ET 50 ANRHF 0
Revenue & 5 2,923,659 3,063,524
Cost of sales BH A (1,250,864) (1,200,317)
Gross profit EH 1,672,795 1,863,207
Other income and expenses and other gains  FHAH A K BH 57 DA
and losses EERN &Y ZEi 6 (303,402) 67,350
Distribution and selling expenses 538 M B 5 BH 3 (1,520,748) (1,583,154)
Administrative and general expenses AT R — MR BH 3 (166,359) (216,982)
Share of (loss)/profit of associates IR (EsAR) T A (3,088) 14,615
Share of (loss)/profit of joint ventures S G BN (ER) A (2,439) 1,775
Finance costs FATS A 7 (54,746) (65,905)
(Loss)/Profit before income tax KR BE BT Ol 8R) ) (377,987) 80,906
Income tax expense s B 3 8 (6,267) (64,215)
(Loss)/Profit for the year AR OB5R) R 9 (384,254) 16,691
Items that will be reclassified subsequently N AR E A E AR
to profit or loss: HIHEA -
Exchange loss on translation of WS SN ETS 2 T St s 4R (8,965) (5,841)
foreign operations
Share of other comprehensive income JREA B 2 ) 2 HAt A T i 4 157 -
of an associate
Other comprehensive expenses for the year 4 P H i 4 1 B 32 (8,808) (5,841)
Total comprehensive (expenses)/income AR AT AR (P Z) Wk g (393,062) 10,850
for the year
(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to: T & EAGER (H) /A :
Owners of the Company ARA A N (387,029) 20,492
Non-controlling interests FEHE I 4 2,775 (3,801)
(384,254) 16,691
Total comprehensive (expenses)/ T 50 AR 4 9 2
income attributable to: (), MWt
Owners of the Company EN/NCIE XS DN (395,834) 15,356
Non-controlling interests TP IR HE 4 2,772 (4,506)
(393,062) 10,850
(Loss)/Earnings per share I ()7
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) — HAR R (N 12 (18.81) 1.00
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 as at 1 January 2018. Under the Btk @ ASEEE 20184 1 7 1 A & UORE 1 3 B W4 15 )

transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 2.1.

The notes on pages 84 to 199 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A o BB AR DL AR

As at 31 December 2018

2018412 A 31 H
2018 2017
2018 4% 2017 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 ANR¥T0 PNERL S BT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES i Rk A
Non-current assets TR B & B
Property, plant and equipment LE B ST Y& ] 13 259,811 270,185
Prepaid lease payments TEATRH 4 14 12,622 13,019
Other intangible assets HAth Y & 2 15 651,760 859,122
Goodwill T 16 5,725 162,437
Interest in an associate TN N T 2 HERS 18 946 20,242
Interest in joint ventures G NF Z L 19 13,219 16,693
Available-for-sale investment AL 20 = 10,765
Financial assets at fair value through Fe s B wT R H AR
other comprehensive income F A At 2 T i 25 1Y
S lE A 22 40,000 -
Deferred tax assets PEFE Rl A 23 117,788 86,645
Long-term deposits e 24,324 21,703
1,126,195 1,460,811
Current assets it B B
Inventories & 24 652,043 830,131
Trade receivables B 5 e K TE 25 301,487 392,273
Other receivables and prepayments At B AR TR R TR 26 151,076 175,025
Interest in joint ventures NG NT Z HEZR 19 4,731 5,231
Financial assets at fair value through Hie s SefE s B A )
profit or loss FTAE AR i 4 A 27 50,000 =
Other financial assets HoAth 4 il 28 = 10,000
Bank balances and cash SRATHE B LB 4 29 314,216 540,059
1,473,553 1,952,719
Assets classified as held for sale BN S E 21 = 546,300
Current liabilities i B £ £
Trade payables B o) AT A 30 152,097 183,263
Other payables A JRE A T 31 280,871 289,675
Borrowings (A 32 202,446 1,045,221
Deferred revenue PEAE N 25 33 = 30,563
Contract liabilities A B & 34 34,314 =
Obligations under finance leases — RVEAR S IE N AL —
due within one year AN 35 4,243 6,444
Provisions 5 36 5,998 17,269
Bank overdrafts SRATHE L 32 25,242 29,001
Current tax liabilities RET A=Y 14,013 25,178
719,224 1,626,614
Net current assets Uit B & A e 754,329 872,405
Total assets less current liabilities HUE RS DT B £ A 1,880,524 2,333,216
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e EROLER
As at 31 December 2018
# 2018412 A 31 H

2018 2017
2018 4% 2017 4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 ANR¥T0 NER¥ET 6
Non-current liabilities I Bh £
Deferred tax liabilities 08 AL T 4 23 117,883 159,496
Borrowings fEe 32 75,495 71,876
Obligations under finance leases — SR TH N AT —
due after one year A —4E4R 2 1A 35 1,740 3,872
Deferred revenue HRIET 35 33 = 11,579
Contract liabilities A B A 34 10,932 -
206,050 246,823
Net assets & A 1,674,474 2,086,393
Capital and reserves & A T it 5
Share capital HeAS 37 209,097 209,097
Reserves Tt 1,405,671 1,822,698
Total equity attributable to owners of AN A A R i
the Company 1,614,768 2,031,795
Non-controlling interests FEFE A 2 59,706 54,598
Total equity AR BE 25 1,674,474 2,086,393

The consolidated financial statements on pages 84 to 199 were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 April 2019 and are signed
on its behalf by:

Huo Li Yuan Zhenhua

Director Director

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 as at 1 January 2018. Under the

transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 2.1.

The notes on pages 84 to 199 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

22 /N 34 424

MBS R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 H 31 H IE4FEE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

KA MElEE
Shares held
under the PRC  Share-based  Accumulated Non-
Share Share  shareaward  statutory ~ compensaion profits/  Translation controlling
capital ~ premium scheme Teserve Teserve (losses) reserve  Sub-tofal inferests  Total equity
HEhb DR
it TE OB B/ Feh
Tk RGEE SERRR  kERE WERE (BH)  ERRE it e Ak
RMB'0OO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMB'OOD  RMB'0OD  RMB'OO0  RMB'0OD
MEBTE  AREFE  ARMFR  ARETR AREFR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARMFR  AREFR  ARRTR
(Note 36)
(Hit39)
Balnceat  January 017 RO 1A | Rtk WM e %) 519% SOOI (25 201649 I 207558
Profit(Loss) forthe year i/ ) - - - - - 2049 - 20492 a8 1661
Other comprehensive expenses for the year 73 E{b 2T
Exchange differences on transhationof B EIER BN
foreign operation ExEH - - - - - - (5.136) (5,13) (703) (5841)
Total comprehensive income/(expenses) 2T /(M%)
for the year - - - - - 2049 (5,136) 15,356 (4,506) 10850
Transfer H - - - 20357 - 20357) - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2017 and ROE A3 RRWIE
lanuary 018, aspreviowslystated 12731 FAOEERR  0RAIAFTL 209097 @404 (0986 235 - I (7841 2031795 5458 2,086,398
Effecton adoption of IFRS 9 (Note) AR B BT I o 3680
YA () - = = - - mm - -
Balance at 31 December 2017 and RUOTE A HRWISE
1 January 2018, as restated LA 1AMER  BE) 209,097 646,42 (49986) M3 - 968,757 (37541 200874 5% 200330
Profit (Loss) for the year il (68 - - - - - () - (1) W (384254
Other comprehensive expenses for the year 73 E{b 2T
- Exchange differences on ranshaion ~~ ~HEFIEEFELN
of foreign operaton EiEE - - - - - - (896) (896) @) (8969)
- Share ofofher comprelensive ~BRBEAZ N
income of an associate Al - - - - - - 157 157 - 157
Total comprehensive expenses ERREHRL
for the year - - - - - (309 (8805 (395.834) M (39306)
Transfer i - - - 14413 - (14413) - - - -
Deegistration of a subsidiary —MHBATR R - - - - - - = = (414) (44
Fouity-setfled share award scheme DEESERRREE
(Note 39) it#l (i) = - - - 18718 - - 18718 - 1878
Transfer of awarded shares upon REREREBRD (k)
vesting (Note 39) - - 9,503 - (1878) (7.629) - - - -
Capita contribution from non- BRclidaid
controlling inferest - - - - - - - - 2750 2750
At 31 December 2018 RUWBERAA 209,097 646,042 (d0483) 286,768 - 559,690 (46346) 1,614,768 906 16744M
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 as at 1 January 2018. Under the ~ FifE : AR F A 2018 4E 1 7 1 H 2 UCRE F B0 s 4 765

transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 2.1.

The notes on pages 84 to 199 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FEBEnER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
#E 20184F 12 7 31 H IL4EE

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRW T AR#F
Cash flows from operating activities RERBEH IR R
(Loss)/Profit before income tax FRBLAT (l5H8) /% A1 (377,987) 80,906
Adjustments for: P
Share of loss/(profit) of associates OGS A R R () 3,088 (14,615)
Share of loss/(profit) of a joint venture S AE AR () 2,439 (1,775)
Finance costs S HA 54,746 65,905
Exchange gains e 5 W it (11,849) (10,816)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W~ W T 44,850 63,432
Amortisation of intangible assets TV, B S 18,590 19,415
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TEATH 4 31 397 397
Share-based payment expense DA 2 BB A S A B S 1,878 -
Reversal of write-down of inventories to net 158 I B £ 28 PT S B
realisable value - (9,472)
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value oA & % ] BB R (E 26,136 =
Interest income on bank deposits SRATAE R B (5,215) (9,580)
Income from other financial assets Hh SRR RA (273) (63)
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate WV — S A v 2 dds = (3,551)
Gain on disposal of assets classified as held for sale R R B 2 (23,626) -
Impairment loss recognised on goodwill Eﬁ,‘h R 2ol (B 154,318 1,558
Impairment loss recognised in respect of property, Y~ BES BR A (E R
plant and equipment 6,277 13,444
Fair value change on financial assets at fair value ?“/ \ﬁﬁ Al H AR A A
through profit or loss SR AR 10,765 -
Reversal of ECL allowance on trade receivables 74 [El ,5 5y RESGHR IR 1 {5 B
AR (8,784) -
Impairment loss recognised on other intangible assets il 58 HoAth 4 ¥ 7 Uk (E e 46 185,523 -
Impairment loss recognised on interest in an associate w8 AT 5 i /> 7l Wk (B s 8 16,662 -
Operating cash flows before working capital changes a L%‘ GRS R SRR 97,935 195,185
Decrease/(increase) in inventories Wb/ () 152,043 (34,639)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables EEJL’EL&,» Higi b,/ () 68,471 (7,809)
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables HAbRENEE KT AR/ ()
and prepayments 23,504 (24,395)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables B 5 AT EIE (D) /s (30,394) 5,537
Increase in other payables A R A5 RS 15,597 55,846
(Decrease)/increase in provisions B Gd) /K (11,134) 17,269
Increase in long-term deposit RIS (2,621) (843)
Increase in deferred revenue R FE N 25 1 3,371 18,822
Cash generated from operations MEEHIEEZ B4 316,772 224,973
Interest paid EAfTFE (65,188) (32,863)
Income taxes paid EROERES (81,985) (77,564)
Net cash from operating activities RS E BT 169,599 114,546
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HAEBAWMER

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZE 20184F12 A 31 HI1E4E &

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
liF3 ARWT7 NS
Cash flows from investing activities A 1 BEE B B A
Payments for acquisition of property, W REHI2E ~ He 2R Rkt AR
plant and equipment (53,332) (68,958)
Payments for acquisition of intangible assets SO AT S AT 2K (3,215) (7,369)
Investment in a joint venture BE—MEEARA - (16,693)
Investment in other financial assets B Ho A4 il - (10,000)
Payments for acquisition of financial assets at fair WO A A E R H SR A
value through other comprehensive income Hof A TR 2 2 A E K (40,000) -
Payments for acquisition of financial assets at fair Wl A A ERTHE H s A
value through profit or loss WINIE G 2 B EAT (50,000) -
Investment in an associate subsequently treated as A Al BRI R
assets classified as held for sale IR E = (529,195)
Investment in available for sale financial assets RE I SEE - (10,765)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - W Sk
plant and equipment Jir {5 EIE 13,577 1,442
Proceeds from disposal of assets classified HENMEAREEE
as held for sale RGE e 569,926 —
Redemption of investment in other financial assets I A 52 il i E 2 10 10,000 -
Income received from other financial assets L Wi At 4 Al E A 273 63
Interest received from bank deposits T ERAT A2 3R B 5,215 9,580
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities BEED S,/ () B4 58 452,444 (631,895)
Cash flows from financing activities AR ) Y B 4
New borrowings raised A ERIT R 45 41,627 747,172
Repayment of borrowings HIRIEE 45 (882,329) (294,707)
Repayment of obligation under finance lease R BT BT 45 (5,793) (3,316)
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests PPt £ v 2,750 =
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities BEIEE) (TR /i 4 A (843,745) 449,149
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents B SR EY A (221,702) (68,200)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 1A 1T BIBE KB EY 511,058 593,829
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes A1 e 56 5 5 ) s 288 (382) (14,571)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R 12 331 HiB & R34
EEM 288,974 511,058
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year, ERBERBIEEEY - W
represented by
bank balances and cash SATHS R RBL & 314,216 540,059
bank overdrafts SRATHE S 32 (25,242) (29,001)
288,974 511,058

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 as at 1 January 2018. Under the BtE © ASAEEE R 2018 4F 1 1 1 H 15 U RE F 138 8% BA 75 3%
transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 2.1. A5V HI 55 9 8 K (o8] [ B TSR A Y IV A 15 9% o A

i 4R R Ty i > M T B LU R o B RE
2.1l @

The notes on pages 84 to 199 are an integral part of these consolidated 4 84 % 199 E A I 31 A M &5 45 & A ik 2 41
financial statements. Y o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok o B s R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018

A ZE 20184F

12 A 31 HIF4ERE

GENERAL

C.banner International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda under the Companies Act as an exempted
company with limited liability on 26 April 2002. The Company’s
shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) on 23 September
2011. The addresses of registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information

section to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of branded fashion
footwear and retail of toys. The principal activities of the subsidiaries,
the associate and the joint ventures of the Company are set out in
notes 48, 18 and 19 respectively. The Company and its subsidiaries are

collectively referred to as the “Group”.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi

(“RMB?”), which is the functional currency of the Company.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
IFRSs

2.1 New and amended IFRSs that are effective for annual

periods beginning or after 1 January 2018

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the
2017 consolidated financial statements, except for the adoption
for the first time the following new and amended International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (collectively “New
and Amended IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standard Board (“IASB”), which are relevant to the Group’s
operations and effective for the consolidated financial
statements for the annual financial year beginning on 1 January
2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
IFRSS (CONTINUED)

2.1

New and amended IFRSs that are effective for annual

periods beginning or after 1 January 2018 (continued)

IFRS 9

IFRS 15

Amendments to
IFRS 1

Amendments to
IFRS 2

Amendments to
IFRS 4

Amendments to
IAS 28

Amendments to
IAS 40
IFRIC-Int 22

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments

As part of the Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Classification and Measurement of Share-

based Payment Transactions

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

As part of the Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Transfers of Investment Property

Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration

Other than as discussed below, the adoption of these New and

Amended IFRSs had no material impact on how the results and

financial position for the current and prior periods have been

prepared and presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo B T s A M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
#2018 4F 12 1 31 HUL4FSE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
IFRSS (CONTINUED)

2.1

New and amended IFRSs that are effective for annual

periods beginning or after 1 January 2018 (continued)

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement”. It makes major changes to the previous
guidance on the classification and measurement of financial
assets and introduces an Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) model
for the impairment of financial assets.

When adopting IFRS 9, the Group has applied the standard
retrospectively to items that existed as at 1 January 2018 in
accordance with the transition requirement and also applied
transitional relief and opted not to restate prior periods.
Differences arising from the adoption of IFRS 9 in relation to
classification, measurement, and impairment are recognised in
the accumulated profits.

The adoption of IFRS 9 has impacted the following areas:

- unlisted equity investments in ATMU Inc. previously
classified as available-for-sale investments under IAS
39 measured at cost less impairment is measured at fair
value and has been classified as fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”) by the Group upon the adoption
IFRS 9. Since the accounting treatment of investments
in unlisted equity investments in ATMU Inc. carried at
cost less impairment under IAS 39 is no longer applicable
under IFRS 9, its carrying amount of RMB10,765,000 is
not materially difference of its fair value as at 1 January
2018, therefore no adjustment is being made in the
accumulated profits as at 1 January 2018.

- Interest rate linked other financial assets as FVTPL
upon the application of IFRS 9. There was no material
difference between the carrying amount and fair value of
the investment at 1 January 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A B AR M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HWE 20184F 12 A 31 H ILFJE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 2. PRANEET I BB ET I B B
IFRSS (CONTINUED) e Y 1Y ()

2.1 New and amended IFRSs that are effective for annual 2.1 201841 H 1 HEkDAE B Ih =2 4E

periods beginning or after 1 January 2018 (continued)

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

- IFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in IAS 39 with
the ECL model. The ECL model requires an ongoing
measurement of credit risk associated with a financial
asset and therefore recognises ECL earlier than under the

“incurred loss” accounting model in IAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to the financial assets
measured at amortised cost (including long-term deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade receivables, other receivables and other

financial assets)

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach
of recognising lifetime ECL as these items do not have a
significant financing component. For other financial assets
measured at amortised cost, the Group applies a general

approach of recognising ECL.

Upon the adoption of IFRS 9, the Group recognised additional
ECL on the Group’s trade receivables of RMB30,762,000,
which resulted in a decrease in the accumulated profits, net of
tax, of RMB23,071,000 as at 1 January 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo B T s A M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
#2018 4F 12 1 31 HUL4FESE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 2. PRANHTAT B AR A AT I B A
IFRSS (CONTINUED) e - 42 B ()
2.1 New and amended IFRSs that are effective for annual 2.1 JR20184E1 H 1 HEPIE 4R =2 4
periods beginning or after 1 January 2018 (continued) B ) A B =z 0 uT M SR 5T B B
Yop 25 ot E J) (48)
IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued) G 5 1 7 R 7 A R 9 9% [ L
H(#)
The reclassifications and remeasurements made to balances A ERER B (BI20184F1 H 1
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position H) 7E 45 & BABS IR U0 2R R 2 T
as at the date of initial application (1 January 2018) are SRR EBET RN R
summarised as follows:
Measurement category Adoption of IFRS 9
G Asat  SRATBBRBABHCE IS 9 B Asat
Original 31 December 1 January
TAS 39 category New IFRS 9 category 2017 (IAS39)  Reclassification ~ Remeasurement 2018 (IFRS 9)
120174
12A31H R20184 1A 1H
Bz BIEaE TR R (R (B W S
RRE0RMM A SRR BRI 395%) EX Y| Bt FRIE %)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NRHF7 NI S ARHF7 NI
Non-current financial assets
FRB R
Investment in ATMU Inc. Available-for-sale ~ FVOCI (non-recycling) 10,765 - - 10,765
T ATMU Inc. Fy ¥ Ak & (YASIN =N e
HEHE AR
A Mg (KRR )
Current financial assets
B
Trade receivables Amortised cost Amortised cost 392,273 - (30,762) 361,511
B B WA WA
Other receivables
and prepayments Amortised cost Amortised cost 24,001 - - 24,001
HABREHOR R SR WA
Other financial assets Amortised cost Amortised cost 10,000 - - 10,000
HibeRERE B RUR B RUR
Bank balances and cash Amortised cost Amortised cost 540,059 - - 540,059
Rivkits BE HEHA HEHA
966,333 - (30,762) 935,571
Total financial asset balances 977,098 - (30,762) 946,336

BERMELH

There have been no changes to the classification or

measurement of financial liabilities as a result of the application

of IFRS 9.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i o A B AR M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE 20184F 12 H 31 H ILFJE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 2. PRAVHTRT B SAE ST B B B
IFRSS (CONTINUED) e Y 1Y ()
2.1 New and amended IFRSs that are effective for annual 2.1  JR20184E1 H 1 HE D& PR 2 4

periods beginning or after 1 January 2018 (continued)

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

The total impact on the Group’s accumulated profits, net of tax,

as at | January 2018 is as follows:

JBE T ) A R =2 0 T B AR ST I B
T A Y I (4

L] 5 B 5 R 2 5 9 [ T
H(#)

ALK 201841 A1 HZ A5
T A (FNBRBIIE) 2 B A

RMB’000
ANR¥ETIT

Accumulated profits as at 31 December 2017 2017412 A 31 H 1 Bt Al 991,828
Recognition of ECL under IFRS 9, net of tax R4 I 5 o 5 s 5 4 BB O R e R

FEHE HEE > BRBIR (23,071)
Accumulated profits as at 1 January 2018 2018451 H 1 H i REHasfl 968,757
The details of new significant accounting policies are set out in BT R TR A I O
note 3.19. FE3.19 °
ECL T 5 B 18

For further details on the Group’s accounting policies for ECL,

see note 3.20.

The following table reconciles the provision of impairment
determined in accordance with IAS 39 as at 31 December 2017

with the opening ECL determined in accordance with IFRS 9 as

at 1 January 2018.

A B A 4 B TE S B R 1E e R
TR HE— TR > W R EE3.20 -

TERAIR 2017412 A 31 HARIER
P& v FI) 28 39 9% i 2 2 Dok (i %
HEBLA 201847 1 H 1 H MR 95 B ¢ B
WS e 1) 45 o ki o 2 2 A Y

F R R R o
RMB’000
PNEL & T
Provision of impairment at 31 December 2017 2017412 H 31 HARYERE BE g st i
under IAS 39 5 39 St IR -
Additional ECL recognised at 1 January 2018 on:  JA20184F 1 A 1 H kLA T & TEMERR A
HHMEIAE B
— Trade receivables — B 5 B IA 30,762
ECL at 1 January 2018 under IFRS 9 2018 45 1 H 1 H AR 55 3 B 3 o5
e TN 5K o 9% T B4R 30,762
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo B T s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
#2018 4F 12 1 31 HUL4FEE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
IFRSS (CONTINUED)

2.1

New and amended IFRSs that are effective for annual

periods beginning or after 1 January 2018 (continued)

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” and the
related “Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (hereinafter referred to as “IFRS 15”) replace IAS
18 “Revenue”, TIAS 11 “Construction Contracts”, and several

revenue-related Interpretations.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative effect transition
method, with the cumulative effect of initial application
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
accumulated profits as at 1 January 2018. Therefore,
comparative information has not been restated and continues to
be reported under IASs 11 and 18.

In accordance with the transition guidance under IFRS 15, the
Group has only been applied to contracts that are incomplete as
at | January 2018.

Summary of nature and effect of the changes on previous

accounting policies are set out below:

(i) Customer loyalty programs
The adoption of IFRS 15 has mainly affected deferred
revenue arising from customer loyalty programme and
franchise agreements, the deferred revenue is accounted
for as contact liabilities under IFRS 15. The directors
considered that the adoption of IFRS 15 does not have
significant impact on how the Group recognises its

deferred revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
IFRSS (CONTINUED)

2.1

New and amended IFRSs that are effective for annual

periods beginning or after 1 January 2018 (continued)

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

(continued)

(ii)

Presentation of contract assets and liabilities

Under IFRS 15, a receivable is recognised only if the
Group has an unconditional right to consideration. If an
entity recognises revenue before being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration for the promised goods
and services in the contract, then the entitlement to
consideration is classified as a contract asset. Similarly,
a contract liability, rather than a payable, is recognised
when a customer pays consideration, or is contractually
required to pay consideration and the amount is already

due, before the Group recognises the related revenue.

As the adoption of IFRS 15 does not have a significant
impact on when the Group recognises revenue from sales
of goods, there is no contract asset recognised under
IFRS 15. On the other hands, the advance customers
for the sales of goods amounting to approximately
RMB12,747,000 previously included in other payables
and deferred revenue amounting to approximately
RMB42,142,000 were reclassified to contract liabilities
at 1 January 2018, for which revenue is recognised when
goods are delivered/services are provided and customers

has accepted the goods/services.

No significant impact of transition to IFRS 15 on the
accumulated profits and the related tax impact as at 1

January 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 1 31 HUL4FSE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
IFRSS (CONTINUED)

2.2 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the TASB has issued certain New and Amended
IFRSs which are relevant to the Group but not yet effective and
have not been adopted early by the Group.

IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 10

and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 3

Leases'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation'
Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture?

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Definition of a Business*

Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material?

and [AS 8
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle!
IFRIC-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
Effective date not yet determined.

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual

period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the first period
beginning on or after the effective date of the pronouncement.
Information on New and Amended IFRSs that are expected to
have impact on the Group’s accounting policies is provided
below. Other New and Amended IFRSs are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
IFRSS (CONTINUED)

2.2

Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (continued)

IFRS 16 “Leases”
IFRS 16 “Leases” replaced IAS 17 and three related

Interpretations.

As disclosed in note 3.7, currently the Group classifies leases
into finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the
lease arrangements differently, depending on the classification

of the lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessee.

IFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under a
lease. However, once IFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no
longer distinguish between finance leases and operating leases.
Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will account for
all leases in a similar way to current finance lease accounting,
i.e. at the commencement date of the lease, the lessee will
recognise and measure a lease liability at the present value
of the minimum future lease payments and will recognise a
corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition
of this asset and liability, the lessee would recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease
liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead
of the current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the lease term.
As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this
accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term
is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which
case the rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a

systematic basis over the lease term.

IFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases of factory premises and retail outlets which are
currently classified as operating leases. The application of the
new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in both
assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense
recognition in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income over the period of the lease.

2. A4

fo A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 2018 4F 12 7 31 HAL4FSE

PO T B A0 T e B S %

e o Y 1Y ()

252

T H BB A PR A R

T A 5 EL 9 oA A 2% 0 B R B 58 4
wl B S 2 ot v B ()

bt s 1 5 A A 5 6 9 [ R EE
IR % B 5 26 U5 16 9 [ A AR
EBCR Pa hE RIS 17 98 R =
AR e o

AR RE 3.7 BT B > H HiTAR £E
TR AR 20 M AR 5 0 i AR AL
ERMELPEIRE - REMAER
AN SLA THE -

R A R o B 5 o VB ISR 16 95%
TR G B A AEFL A RO
N RFEHW T XEEERLE -
SR > — ELER A [ [ S 5 i o5 1
FEE 16 5% > AR I AS 5 i 20 il
HHERGEME - MK E£H
PR HER < 5T o KA K DL
" B AR LR T
B A MLEE AT G ek R - BIAEA
BB > AR AR AN e R B 4%
T A0 AR 2 AH B A5 i F) BRI A
A A I e R A Y T
HE] HE o TERIIGTERE W A B
frfg > R AR E A AR
4 R A o E A B FILBL 2 T DL B
o7 PR T 7 F) BB > T D A
A AL A A R T Y B
H o EHEMAA R HMELT -
Te ks — R MR REE 2 51 > R
AT DA e A X
AT HARE B (BNAE B 45 1248 H s
B MREEEEMRE > FE
HUWT > HEHRNSEREHESR
WM RHERR

IR 5% B 55 4 Y RS 16 95 32 32
R AE R By B OB BR A A R
L 1) ) 3 I & LR
AR 5l B o FE I Er et
A5 2 A R 5199 B0 A A
o SR AL N S A R R
A A 1 iz 4 3 AP R 2 R R RE
] e

= IR

93



94

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FEE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
IFRSS (CONTINUED)

2.2

Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (continued)

IFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019. As allowed by IFRS 16, the Group plans to use
the practical expedient to grandfather the previous assessment
of which existing arrangements are, or contain, leases. The
Group will therefore apply the new definition of a lease in [FRS
16 only to contracts that are entered into on or after the date of

initial application.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 and
will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application as
an adjustment to the opening balance of equity as at 1 January
2019. Comparative information will not be restated. In addition,
the Group plans to elect the practical expedient for not applying
the new accounting model to short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets and not to perform a full review of existing
leases and apply IFRS 16 only to new contracts. Furthermore,
the Group plans to use the practical expedient to account for
leases for which the lease term ends within 12 months from the
date of initial application as short-term lease. As disclosed in
Note 41, as at 31 December 2018, the Group’s future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases amount
to RMB2,593,226,000 for factory premises and retail outlets,
which is payable within 20 years after the reporting date.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets, the Group expects that the transition adjustments to be
made upon the initial adoption of IFRS 16 will not be material.
However, the expected changes in accounting policies as
described above could have a material impact on the Group’s

consolidated financial statements from 2019 onwards.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These annual consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs, collective terms of which includes all
applicable individual International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the IASB, and the accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the

Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies set out

below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for IFRS 2
Share-based Payment transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or

value in use in [AS 36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;
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fo A S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

3.1

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the

Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
. has power over the investee;
. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or

more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control

until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Basis of consolidation (continued)
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into

line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as

incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the

liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes

and IAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date (see the accounting
policy below); and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in

accordance with that standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.2

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquire (if any), the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at

their fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts

and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting

dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in

profit or loss.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and

circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known,

would have affected the amounts recognised at that date.

3.3 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business

(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which

the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes

and not larger than an operating segment.
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fo A s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
3.3 Goodwill (continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on

the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-

generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable

amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the

amount of profit or loss on disposal.

3.4 Investments in an associate and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the

financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is

not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only

when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous

consent of the parties sharing control.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.4 Investments in an associate and joint ventures (continued)
The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. Changes in net assets of the associate/joint venture
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share
of loss of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinue recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has

incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on

behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised

immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the

investment is acquired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 H IR4FBE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.4 Investments in an associate and joint ventures (continued)
The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group’s investment in an associate or a joint venture.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with TAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the

recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting
gain or loss being recognise in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture and
the retained interest is a financial asset within the scope of IAS
39, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount of
the associate or joint venture and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest
in the associate or joint venture is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate or joint venture on the same basis as would be required
if that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the
gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification

adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant

associate or joint venture.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

3.

EEEFHBUOR (@)

3.4

T UGk 8 H B A SEME AR ()
JRE P I I 4 1) 55 39 9% DA
Je 15 A 06 A 4 [ A 3 (] 2 A
LB 1 G ST AT W s 18 - 7E
B > P (AL ) R
% T (24 % I % o )28 36 9%
HEBEELE —EE - Bl
ST o () 4 A (P R (R BN Ao (.
B AR W 2 B ) BLLAR
T {1 4 17 b2 T 28 47 (1 B0t o
L e 5 14 AT o J (M 4 496 L A% ¢
V10 R T (L = Dok (D s 48 1 A £ 94 o)
R0 8] % T A 165 36 9 M A7 T
B0 DA (AT i [m] 4 FE BE 4% 1
& AR

i A S BB E AR R EERY
B B BN R R AT T 4 o
RERE > HABRDIAE B BB &7
A ERHELR o BT EE A RO 1H 4 R 1R
A T o i AR R R B ISR
3958 < i - A 4 AR B R W
BRASAE SRR B R
BHE SRy B > AR
R HAZ A SRR A A
T 3% 2> U AE O 70 1 00 28 ke R I
ZARME . R B AFREEL
) 2 B T L BELAE ] £ P A £ %
5 B B 0N T R B A AR 2 T AR K
WA RMEM 2 R A R R
BEAAEGE AR ZHEL - I
B > A S T B i S i AE A 42
WA L 5% N ) B A T
B LI A AR - B AE B
BN AR BN F A B
HERAFPFEEMEA - H
b i % B A W SR R AL
AT A TR 2 Wi Bk 1 &
A B A R I R
BEHS - AEEERLE T
g1t B A B 4 ) R A
B 45 Wi 2 = M 8 o W i BB 20
i (EREHRIBEAE) -



3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.4 Investments in an associate and joint ventures (continued)
When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets),
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests

in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group.

(3]
(0]

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded
as met only when the asset is available for immediate sale in
its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sales of such asset and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should be

expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within

one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal
of an investment in an associate, the investment that will be
disposed of is classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, and the Group discontinues the use of
the equity method in relation to the portion that is classified as

held for sale from the time when the investment is classified as

held for sale.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the

lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less costs

to sell.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo T s S M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 H IR4FBE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
3.6 Revenue recognition

Revenue arises mainly from the sale of branded fashion

footwear and toys.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group follows

a 5-step process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer.

2. Identifying the performance obligations.

3. Determining the transaction price.

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance
obligations.

S. Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s)

are satisfied.

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is allocated
amongst the various performance obligations based on their
relative stand-alone selling prices. The transaction price for
a contract excludes any amounts collected on behalf of third

parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time,
when (or as) the Group satisfies performance obligations by
transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for
more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present value
of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction with
the customer, and interest income is accrued separately under
the effective interest method. Where the contract contains a
financing component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability

under the effective interest method.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income

recognition policies are as follows:
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
3.6 Revenue recognition (continued)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when or as the

Group transfers control of the goods to the customers. Invoices

for goods transferred are due upon receipt by the customer.

Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers under
the Group’s customer loyalty programme, the customers are
entitled to redeem the award credits as cash to be used in
future sales upon the fulfilment of certain criteria as set out
in the terms and conditions of the Group’s customer loyalty
programme. Award credits are considered to be a separate
performance obligation as these award credits provide a right to

consume by offsetting the award credits to customers that they

would not receive without future purchases.

The Group allocates the transaction price between the award
credits and other separate performance operations identified in
a contract on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Revenue
from the award credits is recognised on the earlier of the date

the award credits are redeemed by customers and the date on the

award credits expire.

The value attributed to the customer loyalty award credits is

deferred as a contract liability on the consolidated statement of

financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo T s S M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 H IR4FBE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.6

37

Revenue recognition (continued)

Royalty

Royalty revenue is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance
with the substance of the relevant agreement. Royalties
determined on a time basis are recognised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the agreement. The sales based royalty
is recognised based on a percentage of the sales of franchisee, is
recognised on an accrual basis in the period in which the sales
of the franchisee take place, in accordance with the terms of the

relevant agreements.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of

ECL allowance) of the asset.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases wherever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease

obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which
case they are capitalised in according with the Group’s general
policy on borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as

expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

3.

FEREFHEOR @)

3.6

W i e 5 (A

17

R R AL i A PR B B 0 LA
A RS o S HE R k)
A 3% L ARk DA IR [H] 56 HE R o 4
R B 4 LU B IOTS (Y 8 1 SRt
R A A AR A R R e O AR
TR G 5 3 A D 42 R

FLEMA

)L i £ 2 1R I D L g1 5 Y f6f P
LB 35 1 R o Sl A A AT
9L T 4 488 6 PR AR i B 2
FET & A E DR T A8 (L E ) B
USRI N S Ao <]
B BB R A R
A (VIR T #8V(E 10 B TE £ S 4R
) -

M

"L A OHE B A A Y A DR AR
JaR e 1] e e 2 R LA IR 5 AL
BEABRBEERE - A HAmH
B B RO -

AL [ F: 25 7R N

il A B R A I A B 4 ey
DL fo 5 A B IR B TR 2
BAEE (RIEE R E) w5
AEBMPERE - T HAAZAM
BB R AR S MBS AR DL R A
— T il AL AR -

AH B BH LA B 2 R M R I
Z WAL WHIFE - DS &R T
BRI 2 A5 SR o B 2
BIVERE A H A P AERD - RS E
WA EHREET B 1EZ I
SR AR R A SR T A B £ A
1 — B BUOR EAAL » SR B R
S A Y ST ] e i Ry B S



3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
3.7 Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land

held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating lease, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentive is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense over a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time

pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are

consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it
is clear that both elements are operating leases in which case
the entire property is accounted for as an operating lease.
Specifically, the entire consideration (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of

the leasehold interests in the land element and building element

of the lease at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments”
in the consolidated statements of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis. Prepaid

lease payments which are to be amortised in the next twelve

months or less are classified as current assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo T s S M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 H IR4FBE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.8

Foreign currencies translation
The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the

Group.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of the individual entity using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the reporting
date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in

profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated (i.e. only translated using the

exchange rates at the transaction date).

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual financial
statements of foreign operations, originally presented in a
currency different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into RMB. Assets and liabilities have been
translated into RMB at the closing rates at the reporting date.
Income and expenses have been converted into the RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average
rates over the reporting period provided that the exchange rates
do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from this
procedure have been recognised in other comprehensive income

and accumulated separately in the translation reserve in equity.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
3.8 Foreign currencies translation (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e., a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
accumulated exchange differences in respect of that operation
attributable to the Group are reclassified to profit or loss. Any
exchange differences that have previously been attributed to

non-controlling interests are derecognised, but they are not

reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal (i.e., no loss of control) of a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to
non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (i.e., of associates or joint venture
not involving a change of accounting basis), the proportionate

share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to

profit or loss.

3.9 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets

until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their

intended use or sale.

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.
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fo T s S M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 H IR4FBE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
3.10 Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable

assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions

attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
revenue in the consolidated statement of financial position and

transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis

over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related

costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

become receivable.

3.11 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the

profit and loss in the periods during which services are rendered

by employees.

Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless another IFRS

requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an

asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees

(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after

deducting any amount already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

T A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 7 31 HALAFSE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEGEHEOR @)

(CONTINUED)
3.12 Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

3.12 DARESRAS SRR DL 2 L BRI B

The Company operates a share option scheme and share
award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as consideration

for equity instruments (“equity-settled share-based payments”).

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the

equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting condition is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve). For
share awards that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair
value of the share awards granted is expensed immediately to

profit or loss.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of equity instrument expected to
vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss
such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with corresponding adjustments to share-based compensation

reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based compensation reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When share options are forfeited
after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share-based compensation

reserve will be transferred to accumulated profits.

Where the Company’s employee share trust purchases shares
from the market, the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs is presented as “Shares held under
the share award scheme” and presented as a deduction against

equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.12

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

When the awarded shares are transferred to the awardees upon
vesting, the related cost of the awarded shares previously
recognised in “Shares held under the share award scheme”,
and the related employment costs of the awarded shares
previously recognised in “Share-based compensation reserve”

are transferred to accumulated profits.

Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to the
current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the reporting
date. They are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense in profit

or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
their respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
tax losses available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit, including existing taxable temporary differences, will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,

unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor

accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, an associate
and joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the

temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.13

Accounting for income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period the liability is settled
or the asset realised, provided they are enacted or substantively

enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in
profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity if they relate to items that are charged or credited to other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

When different tax rates apply to different levels of taxable
income, deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
the average tax rates that are expected to apply to the taxable
income of the periods in which the temporary differences are

expected to reverse.

The determination of the average tax rates requires an
estimation of (1) when the existing temporary differences will
reverse and (2) the amount of future taxable profit in those

years. The estimate of future taxable profit includes:

- income or loss excluding reversals of temporary

differences; and

- reversals of existing temporary differences

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in net

if, and only if,

(a)  the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the

recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset

and settle the liability simultaneously.
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fo A s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Accounting for income taxes (continued)
The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current

tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b)  the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either:

(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i1))  different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or

recovered.

3.14 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings, leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) and freehold land held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction as described
below), are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties
are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended

use.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
3.14 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
(other than properties under construction) less their residual
values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,

with the effect of any change s in estimate accounted for on a

prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are

depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful

lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised

in profit or loss.

3.15 Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful life

that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated

impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
3.15 Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is

regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately. Alternatively, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with indefinite useful life are carried at

cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in

profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

3.16 Impairment of non-financial assets

The following assets are subject to impairment testing:

. Goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries;
. Other intangible assets;

. Property, plant and equipment;

. Prepaid lease payments;

. Interests in an associate and joint ventures; and
. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful life
or those not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, irrespective of whether there is any indication
that they are impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying amount

may not be recoverable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.16

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of
fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of time

value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent from
those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill in particular is
allocated to those cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from synergies of the related business combination
and represent the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose and not

be larger than an operating segment.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units, to
which goodwill has been allocated, are credited initially to the
carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss is
charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash generating unit,
except that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less cost of disposal, or value in

use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods. In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount and only to
the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been

recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect
of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is
the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the end of

the financial year to which the interim period relates.
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fo A s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
3.17 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated

selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of

completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

3.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that

obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of

the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash

flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

3.19 Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when

the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the
financial asset and substantially all of its risks and rewards

are transferred. A financial liability is derecognised when it is

extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
#2018 4F 12 7 31 HAL4FJE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEGEHEOR @)

(CONTINUED)

3.19 Financial instruments (continued) 3.19 4£RhTH (%)

Financial assets

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

Classification and initial measurement of financial assets
Except for those trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component and are measured at the
transaction price in accordance with IFRS 15, all financial
assets are initially measured at fair value, in case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVTPL are expensed in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are
Financial assets, other than those designated and effective
as hedging instruments, are classified into the following

categories:

- amortised cost;

— FVTPL; or

- fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCT”).

The classification is determined by both:

— the entity’s business model for managing the financial

asset; and

- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial

asset.

recognised in profit or loss are presented within finance costs,
finance income or other financial items, except for ECL of trade
receivables and other financial assets measured at amortised
cost which is presented within administrative and general

expenses.
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fo A s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
3.19 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Debt investments

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the assets
meet the following conditions (and are not designated as
FVTPL):

- they are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold the financial assets and collect its contractual cash

flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in other income in profit or
loss. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting
is immaterial. The Group’s bank balances and cash, trade
receivables, other receivables and other financial assets fall into

this category of financial instruments.

Financial assets at FVOCI — recycling

If the contractual cash flows of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
the collection of contractual cash flows and sale. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition in profit or loss of ECL, interest
income (calculated using the effective interest method) and
foreign exchange gains and losses. When the investment is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in other comprehensive

income is recycled from equity to profit or loss.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
3.19 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that are held within a different business
model other than “hold to collect” or “hold to collect and sell’
are categorised at FVTPL. Further, irrespective of business
model, financial assets whose contractual cash flows are not
solely payments of principal and interest are accounted for
at FVTPL. All derivative financial instruments fall into this
category, except for those designated and effective as hedging
instruments, for which the hedge accounting requirements
under IFRS 9 apply.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading purposes
and on initial recognition of the investment, the Group elects
to designate the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in “Fair value
reserve — non-recycling” in equity. Such elections are made
on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s

perspective.

The equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss in “Fair value reserve
— non-recycling” will not be reclassified to profit or loss upon
disposal of the equity investments, and will be transferred to
accumulated profits/will continue to be held in the “Fair value

reserve — non-recycling”.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established. Dividends are included in the other
income and expenses and other gains and losses line item in

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
3.19 Financial instruments (continued)

Policy applicable before 1 January 2018

The Group’s financial assets are classified into the following
specified categarie: available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets
and loans and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within

the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the

debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for

debt instruments.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)
financial assets at FVTPL. The Group designated investment

of unlisted equity securities as AFS financial assets on initial

recognition of the item.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
3.19 Financial instruments (continued)

Policy applicable before 1 January 2018 (continued)

AFS financial assets (continued)

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as AFS
financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period except for unquoted equity investments whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured. Changes in foreign
exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on
AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established. Other
changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of reserves. When the investment is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss

previously accumulated in the reserves is reclassified to profit

or loss.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably

measured are measured at cost less any identified impairment

losses at the end of each reporting period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade receivables and other receivables,
other financial assets and bank balances and cash) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any

impairment (see accounting policy on impairment of financial

assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest

rate, except for short-term receivable and other financial assets

where the recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
3.19 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, other

payables, borrowings and bank overdrafts.

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value,
and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs unless
the Group designated a financial liability at FVTPL and

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an

instrument’s fair value that are reported in profit or loss are

included within finance costs.

Trade payables and other payables

Trade payables and other payables are recognised initially at

their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,

using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised

in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the

effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group

has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for

at least twelve months after the reporting date.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
3.20 Impairment of financial assets

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

IFRS 9’s impairment requirements use more forward-looking
information to recognise ECL — the “ECL model”. Instruments
within the scope included loans and other debt-type financial
assets measured at amortised cost and FVOCI, trade receivables

recognised and measured under IFRS 15 and loan commitments

that are not measured at FVTPL.

The Group considers a broader range of information when
assessing credit risk and measuring ECL, including past events,
current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts that

affect the expected collectability of the future cash flows of the

instrument.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is made

between:

- financial instruments that have not deteriorated

significantly in credit quality since initial recognition or

that have low credit risk (“Stage 1”’) and

- financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly

in credit quality since initial recognition and whose credit

risk is not low (“Stage 2”).

“Stage 3” would cover financial assets that have objective

evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

“12-month ECL” are recognised for the Stage 1 category while

“lifetime ECL” are recognised for the Stage 2 category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-

weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of the

financial instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
3.20 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Trade receivables

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach
in calculating ECL and recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECL at each reporting date. These are the expected
shortfalls in contractual cash flows, considering the potential
for default at any point during the life of the financial assets.
In calculating the ECL, the Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience

and external indicators, adjusted for forward-looking factors

specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been grouped based

on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Group measures the loss allowance for other receivables
equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant

increase in the likelihood or risk of default occurring since

initial recognition.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial assets at the reporting date
with the risk of default occurring on the financial assets at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and

forward-looking information that is available without undue

cost or effort.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
3.20 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

(continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account

when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

= significant deterioration in external market indicators of

credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,

the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a

significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt

obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

- an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of

the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the end of each reporting period. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if it has a low risk of
default, the borrower has strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but

will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfill

its contractual cash flow obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.20

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost and debt
investment at FVOCI (continued)

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full

(without taking into account any collateral held by the Group).

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade receivables
and other financial assets measured at amortised cost are set out

in note 42.

Policy applicable before 1 January 2018

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to be

objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment

could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

- breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; orit becoming probable
that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-

organisation; or

- disappearance of an active market for that financial asset

because of financial difficulties.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.20

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Policy applicable before 1 January 2018 (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period of 60 days, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate

with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective

interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the

period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost

would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation

reserve.

3.

fo A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
#2018 4F 12 7 31 HAL4FJE

EEEFFHBUOR (@)

3.20

T 0 BB B A B A R

4 1l 7 DAL (41)

W 201841 H 1 H 77 #8519 B 5%
(%)

A e B A (4
JEWCKIEA A& 1 &F BB EE R
FEA AR B A R A8 B - AN
B AT 215 B (60 K ) 5K X
5T K TE B 0~ A B B 5%
SR UL HE 0 BEL i R Mk T A R 1Y
AL o

S 12 48 B9 B AS 97 IR ) < L
o i 9 L s 4L 4 % 7 R A
BAL %z 4 il E IR R R R B 2
AR A B 4 Ui B B AT AR 2 8 o

4 il A ) IR T (EL L T BR BT AT
SMEENBMERR EES K
L Al 88 WA A AR A R T AR
T BB A1 o 935 A R ) B T {28 )
T 1R A T o R SO T A A 3
e T B o B R 5 AR R B o AR
WA [E] S i A9 S E RE AR 4R o

il 7T 43 ) 6 < il R A AR - 5B
HT A 2 At 2 T Wi i e B 2 R TR
it 95 T A U PR B /0 S R 4R i o

L4 9 A (L <6 L T
F o i I BB AR 0 ] el (Ml 4R AR
B> H B3 (e 1R R R AR B R
95— S OF B B > I O i
8 14 9 (L s $E 0 A 48 4 48 [ - e
T A Uk (BB ) MR T (E R
5 A0 7 A (L R ) 8
7 o

AR R AR S B
T 15 4 e 2 T8 M 18 7 48 3
AR AT o WEERR N REN
A ] 38 i 349 4 7 F At 4 T g A
fifERB A B ELAG b 2R AT o

— =
—

AR I B

129



130

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A B R M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE 20184F 12 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

3.21 Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see note 3.6). A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases,

a corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see note

3.19).

Prior to 1 January 2018, the Group’s contract liabilities were
recognised as advances from customers under “other payables”

(note 31) and “deferred revenue” (note 33) at 31 December

2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and future periods.

4.1 Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of brand with indefinite useful life and goodwill

Determining whether brand with indefinite useful life are
impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating units to which brand name with indefinite
useful life and goodwill have been allocated, which is the higher
of the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal. The value
in use calculation requires the directors to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, or change in
facts and circumstances which results in downward revision of
future cash, a material impairment loss or further impairment

loss may arise.
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fo A s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 1 31 HUL4FESE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

4.1

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of brand with indefinite useful life and goodwill
(continued)

The carrying amount of brand with indefinite useful
life at 31 December 2018 was RMB620,313,000 (2017:
RMB811,996,000). The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2018 was RMBS5,725,000 (2017: RMB162,437,000).
An impairment loss of RMB185,503,000 was recognised
on brand with indefinite useful life during 2018 (2017: nil).
An impairment loss of RMB154,318,000 was recognised on
goodwill during 2018 (2017: RMB1,558,000). Details of the

impairment calculation are set out in note 17.

Allowance of inventories obsolescence

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Also, the Group regularly inspects and reviews its
inventories to identify slow-moving and obsolete inventories.
The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference

between inventories’ cost and net realised value.

The identification of impairment of inventories requires the
use of judgement and estimate of expected net realised value.
Where the net realised value is lower than the carrying amount,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2018,
the carrying amount of inventories was RMB652,043,000
(2017: RMB830,131,000), net of write-down of inventories of
RMB103,104,000 (2017: RMB76,968,000).
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R 811,996,000 7T ) » 22018 4F
12H3I AP &R EE A AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

4.1 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Revenue recognition in relation to the award credits earned by
the customers under the Group’s customer loyalty programme
The Group’s accounting policies are as set out in note 3.6. The
deferred revenue arising from customer loyalty programme
substantially reflects the amount of revenue attributable to the
award credits earned by the members of the Group under the
customer loyalty programme. The transaction price is allocated
between the award credits and other separate performance
operations identified in a contract on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. The stand-alone selling price of each award
credit is estimated based on the right to be given when the award
credits are redeemed by the customer and the likelihood of

redemption, as evidenced by the Group’s historical experience.

The deferred revenue arising from customer loyalty programme

is accounted for as contract liabilities under IFRS 15.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of
contract liabilities (2017: deferred revenue) arising from
customer loyalty programme was RMB25,956,000 (2017:
RMB30,563,000).

This estimate will be reviewed on an ongoing basis, and revision
to the expected number of award credits to be redeemed will
be made if there is significant difference between the actual
number of award credits redeemed and the expected number

redeemed in the future.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group’s operating segments are based on information prepared
and reported to the chief operating decision makers (“CODM?”),
the board of directors of the Company, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment. The Group is organised into
three segments, (1) retail and wholesale of branded fashion footwear
(“Retail and wholesale of shoes”), (2) contract manufacturing of
footwear (“Contract manufacturing of shoes”) and (3) retail of toys.
These segments are the basis on which the Group reports its segment

information.

4.

fo A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
#2018 4F 12 7 31 HAL4FJE

fili 5 A W AP 32 SR U ()
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fo A s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. Weds K il & R )
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods at a point in A 42 [H) 0 2 S (] SR 4 S R — IR [ S A R
time through different channels were analysed and the following Py AT 43 AT > T A 4R [ 4F TR 3R
is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by operating and H 488 e nl Lo 2 W gk S AT
reportable segments for the year: L/
2018 2017
2018 4% 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRMT 0 AR¥Ft
Segment revenue 43 VP 2
Retail and wholesale of shoes FAE KR
— external sales — AR g 2,048,973 2,290,276
Contract manufacturing of shoes B # A E R
— external sales — AN 229,104 138,506
— inter-segment sales — AR g 12,762 33,104
Retail of toys HEE
— external sales — AR 645,582 634,742
Segment revenue G g 2,936,421 3,096,628
Eliminations H Y (12,762) (33,104)
Group revenue £E R 25 2,923,659 3,063,524
Segment results Vgt E 3
Retail and wholesale of shoes T Bt 43,795 333,501
Contract manufacturing of shoes EHREERE (30,373) (26,407)
Retail of toys A EE 1,741 (176,673)
Less: Impairments of goodwill I EEEE (154,318) —
Impairments of other intangible assets H At ST 5 M (185,523) -
(338,100) (176,673)
(324,678) 130,421
Gain from disposal of held for sale assets FrfE B B E 2 I ss 23,626 =
Impairment of an associate — IS A W 2 WE (16,662) -
Finance costs B A (54,746) (65,905)
Share of (loss)/profit of associate IR A T ORR) A (3,088) 14,615
Share of (loss)/profit of joint ventures G EEN T (B1R) i F (2,439) 1,775
(Loss)/Profit before income tax bk BT AR B (548 s (377,987) 80,906
Income tax expense T A5 B 52 (6,267) (64,215)
Net (loss)/profit for the year N (BR) it Al (384,254) 16,691
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3. Segment
results represent the profits earned/loss incurred by each segment and
excluding finance costs, share of (loss)/profit of an associate, share of
(loss)/profit of joint ventures, income tax expense, gain from disposal
of held for sale assets and impairment of an associate. This is the
measure reported to CODM for the purpose of resource allocation and

performance assessment.
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

operating segment:

5.

fo A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
#2018 4F 12 7 31 HAL4FJE

W 25 B oy #&E Bl ()

KRy 2 B IR B AR I UK
— B I AR SE AR A 20 T BRI 2 ik
Al BT A 2 iR > N LA B A
SrALEEE A R () R - kA
KRl () A~ B A BB 3 -
R B s K — B A F 2
W o BETY I S YR A 2 A
it > DAV IR S Bl S R BLR A F&

Gl Y 42 T S (RS AT

AR 5 KE Sy W B 0y 2 i KAy
Hran T

2018 2017

2018 4 2017 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARW¥F 7t ANR¥T T

Segment assets 43 Vi 4 e

Retail and wholesale of shoes AL B 1,880,784 3,244,405

Contract manufacturing of shoes GHEERE 440,622 437,726

Retail of toys HZEE 987,581 1,436,346

Total segment assets Ay AE 3,308,987 5,118,477
Eliminations 4 (845,922) (1,833,758)

Unallocated A e 136,683 675,111

Total consolidated assets A REMEME 2,599,748 3,959,830

Segment liabilities 4 6k A8

Retail and wholesale of shoes TAE e fE e R 262,547 341,064

Contract manufacturing of shoes R ERE 128,087 259,049

Retail of toys mEEE 917,067 1,780,310

Total segment liabilities oA R AR 1,307,701 2,380,423
Eliminations B (514,323) (691,660)

Unallocated R4 i 111,086 184,674

Total consolidated liabilities oA msasE 904,464 1,873,437

For the purposes of monitory segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, segment assets are allocated to operating
segments other than interest in an associate, deferred tax assets,
interests in joint ventures and assets classified as held for sale, while
all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than deferred

tax liabilities and income tax liabilities.

S5 20 VR AR B A 43 ] 2 i R T

o o R T 40 L 2 A B A R 2 M
CEEBIHEE - e E AR 2 i
EBoBERERENEREZ b RES
HB o T BT A R AR 2 T A S I
BB A -

Bf m &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. Wess Ko wE R ()
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Other segment information H Al 53 55 &R
Retail and Contract

wholesale manufacturing

of shoes of shoes  Retail of toys Total
ZER
A58 He FHEHHR At

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTE  ARWTE  ARWFE  ARWTR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE20184F 12 31 B ILAERE
Depreciation expense B 19,914 1,094 23,842 44,850
Amortisation of intangible assets ST e 2,867 - 15,723 18,590
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments A4 E 397 = = 397
Provision (Reversal) for inventory obsolescence [ £5 /7 & i (H[1]) 34,834 (940) (7,758) 26,136
Reversal for ECL allowance TN E S R A ] (8,784) = = (8,784)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment MBI - Heos Rkl 13,325 809 40,779 54,913
Purchase of intangible assets TEE I G = 394 - 2,821 3,215
Impairment loss recognised on goodwill TR T (P e 1 - - 154,318 154,318
Impairment loss recognised on other [RE-RILESI v

intangible assets W{EER - - 185,523 185,523
Impairment loss recognise in respect TR ~ W8 It

of property, plant and equipment oL < ict - - 6,277 6,277
Interest income on bank deposits SRATAERA R A (4,948) (21) (246) (5,215)
Interest income on other financial assets ot 4 A E A B (273) = = (273)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A B AR M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HWE 20184F 12 A 31 H ILFJE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. Wtk Ko W B )
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Other segment information (continued) H At 2350 & B (45)
Retail and Contract

wholesale  manufacturing

of shoes of shoes  Retail of toys Total
TER
iR 2id L ERR TERA A

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFLT  ARMTT  ARMTT  ARMTR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 WE20174F12 431 H LR
Depreciation expense P 27,833 1,790 33,809 63,432
Amortisation of intangible assets ESA G ] 3,366 86 15,963 19,415
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments D 2] 397 = = 397
(Reversal) provision for inventory obsolescence  [i# 77 & (1) i (27,877) 1,471 16,934 (9,472)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB » WS Rt 15,131 501 54,943 70,575
Purchase of intangible assets EEEL &= 615 = 7,112 7,727
Impairment loss recognised on goodwill ERAHE SR EL 75 = = 1,558 1,558
Impairment loss recognised in respect TR ~ B sk

of property, plant and equipment ks = = 13,444 13,444
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate MR — S A wl

2 g 3,551 - - 3,551

Proceeds from disposal of property, EEEL/E R Y&

plant and equipment REEe 1,331 111 = 1,442
Interest income on bank deposits SRATAERA B A (9,135) (32) (413) (9,580)
Interest income on other financial assets Hofth 4l E AR A (63) = - (63)
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fo A s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 1 31 HUL4FESE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Other segment information (continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) and United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern
Ireland. (“UK”).

The Group’s revenue from external customers, based on location of the
domiciles of its group entities and information about its non-current

assets by geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

e %5 2% 40 50 &R )

Fo A 73 ¥R R (48

b it 35 A

A AR B SE B T A A v N R L A
(e J) B R AN 51 B e AL 5 8 R W £
B (M5 ]) -

AL A NIRRT (1% 42 1 TR R
PR AE L 53 ) 2 Wi > DA K 4% I AE
W > 2 JR B R R AT

Revenue from external customers

& F AR % P A
2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

NG T AR¥TE

The PRC i 2,155,150 2,351,982
UK H [ 459,347 420,915
The United States of America FEH 230,228 139,384
Other countries HAhEE % 78,934 151,243
Total o 2,923,659 3,063,524
Non-current assets

JE U B R
2018 2017
2018 4 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
NGB T ARHF I
(restated)
(REE5)
The PRC 22l 258,836 239,131
UK pac 311,755 599,251
Other countries HoAh B 5% 373,492 503,316

Note: Non-current assets exclude a) deferred tax assets, b) financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income, (2017: available-for-sale

investment) and c) long-term deposits.

There is no single customer contributing over 10% of the total sales of

the Group during both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
#2018 4F 12 7 31 HAL4FJE

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES AND 6. HAth W A K B 32 DA B H At i
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES fix % 5 18
2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARW Tt N BT
Other income HoAth g A
Government grants (Note) B B4 (FfFEE) 27,285 51,102
Interest income on bank deposits SRATAE RS U A 5,215 9,580
Interest income on other financial assets A 4 7l A B 273 63
Others HAth 6,766 7,240
39,539 67,985
2018 2017
2018 4 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥T 70 N BT
Other gains and losses Ho At e 25 2 s 1
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain T 58, (Jes48) Wi s v 4 (1,806) 10,816
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate PR — P 2 7] 2 Wi ad - 3,551
Reversal of impairment provision in 1171 5 ) MBS F A B A
respect of trade receivables 8,784 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect TERRIIE ~ B & SRk (B s 18
of property, plant and equipment (6,277) (13,444)
Impairment loss recognised in respect T PR R (L 12
of goodwill (154,318) (1,558)
Impairment loss recognised in respect it 7R HAth 40 T 5 e Vel (E s 48
of other intangible assets (185,523) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect TRERR I 5/ m) W 48
of associate (16,662) -
Fair value change on financial assets at fair N e fEq B A
value through profit or loss H 5 1B B PE 2N R EEE) (10,765) -
Gains from disposal of held for RS R A T i
sale assets 23,626 =
(342,941) (635)
(303,402) 67,350

Note: The amount mainly represented the subsidies received from the local

governments in the PRC where the Group entities were located for

encouragement of business development activities in the local areas.

BEFRE © 2% A A 41 1 T R A v

T 0 BB B A B A R

= IR
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fo B T s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 1 31 HUL4FESE

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. WAB AR
2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T e AR¥TIT
Interest on borrowings SRATERAE 54,746 65,905
8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8. FrfaBibZ
2018 2017
2018 4E 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T 6 AR¥FIE
Current tax: BP BRI -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) s A SE TR B (2P ) 59,896 69,108
PRC withholding tax H 5 FE A 23,412 -
UK profits tax e [5 F| 75 50 1,190 656
(Over)/Under provision in prior years AR i
GEBZESRA) / 2
EIT ZET B (193) 1,323
UK B (5 I £ (13,489) (5,751)
70,816 65,336
Deferred tax credit (Note 23) IEAEB A (BhsE 23) (64,549) (1,121)
6,267 64,215

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 8.

The tax charge for the year ended 31 December 2018 can be reconciled

to the (loss)/profit before tax as follows:

fo A A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
WA 20184F 12 7 31 HAL4FSE

Pt 43 B¢ PH 2 (a0)
HE20184E12 H 31 H IL4FEE 2 BiIE S H
SRERBLET (B548) T Al 2 BRI T

2018 2017
2018 4 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHET PN S o
(Loss)/Profit before tax FRBLET (E548) i Al (377,987) 80,906
Tax at the income tax rate of 25% Fe 1S BUBLAR 25% 1A 2 BLIH
(2017: 25%) (Note) (2017 4F = 25%) (Fff5E) (94,497) 20,227
Tax effect of share of loss/(profit) G A A ETR S () 2
of an associate fﬁﬁ%fx 623 (3,654)
Tax effect of share of profit of joint ventures A (R = /NI bl 1| a5 i 9 1,377 (444)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible BBUH B AR AT 82 B 32
for tax purpose 2 B R 49,468 15,392
Tax effect of income not taxable for RBLES H BB 2 WA
tax purpose Z Pl 5w = (17)
Over provision in respect of prior year 3 A A A R AR (13,682) (4,428)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised e R T i 48 . B S e 2 19,374 25,391
Effect of different tax rates of group entities A FR R DA SR ] R [
operating in jurisdictions other than A2 BB S OR R Bl R 2 s
the PRC 23,754 9,781
Tax effect on withholding tax on F B A A3 i s A DA 2
undistributed profits in the PRC i 2 (3,562) 1,967
Tax effect on withholding tax Hp B L 43 B s A TR AR 2
on distributed profits in the PRC T s 2 23,412 =
Income tax expense for the year RN TS BB 5 6,267 64,215

Note: Pursuant to the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income

Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax

rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% during the two years.

The Company incorporated in Bermuda is not subject to any income

tax in that jurisdiction during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:

nil).

Best Invent Holdings Limited (“Best Invent”) and Best Value Profits

Limited (“Best Value”), two subsidiaries of the Company incorporated

in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), are not subject to any income tax
in that jurisdiction during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:

nil) as both of them have no assessable income in the current year.

THERBERERAR %

WERE - MREE P N RIEFNE P 3BLk ([ 43
AR BLIE ) RAR S PTERLE EREM] »
1R o 0 T {1 4 BE B 2 25% ©

AN A B AR ML - AR 2018
12 7 31 H LA B EBIAN T R A E IR
AOAEATT BT A8 (2017 4F + 4H) o

A5 ) 7 ] [ & A F] Best Invent Holdings
Limited ([ Best Invent])  Best Value
Profits Limited ([ Best Value |) it 5% /& i
LRES ([958R LB ) R sor -
BE 2018412 A 31 A IR AR BEHEJEBIAN 3%
A VERE I A AR AT B 5B (2017 4F « J8) >
Ji PR 2 T FHD /A D T A A AR e e A JRE R
BA o
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fo B T s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 H IR4FBE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
Allied Great International Holdings Limited (“Allied Great”), and

China Ease Enterprise Limited (“China Ease”), which are both
subsidiaries of the Company incorporated in Hong Kong, are subject
to Hong Kong profits tax at 16.5% during the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: 16.5%).

Hamleys Global Holdings Limited (“Hamleys Global™) incorporated
in UK is subject to UK profits tax at 19% during the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: 19%).

At the summer budget 2015, the government of UK announced
legislation setting the profits tax rate at 19% for the years started/
starting the 1 April 2017, 2018 and 2019 and at 18% for the year
starting 1 April 2020. At budget 2016, the government of UK
announced a further reduction to the profits tax rate (for all profits

except ring fence profits) for the year starting 1 April 2020, at 17%.

Under the relevant tax law and implementation regulations in the
PRC, withholding income tax is applicable to dividends payable to
investors that are “non-PRC tax resident enterprises”, which do not
have an establishment or place of business in the PRC, or which have
such establishment or place of business but the relevant income is not
effectively connected with the establishment or place of business, to
the extent such dividends have their sources within the PRC. Under
such circumstances, dividends distributed from the PRC subsidiaries
to non-PRC tax resident group entities in Hong Kong shall be
subject to the withholding tax at 5%. Dividend distributed from a
PRC subsidiary to a non-PRC tax resident group entity in BVI shall
be subject to the withholding tax at 10%. As at 31 December 2018,
except for those provided for as detailed in Note 23, no deferred
tax has been provided in relation to withholding income tax for the
remaining undistributed profits of RMB880,266,000 (31 December
2017: RMB967,292,000) retained by PRC entities, as the directors of
the Company did not anticipate to distribute such profits from its PRC

subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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1 AF BEZEAE 16.5% SUAN A s RSB (2017
41 16.5%) ©

Hamleys Global Holdings Limited
([ Hamleys Global) ji % B 5 it Bt A7 22 i
BAE20184F 12 H 31 H IL4FE B 4% 19% M Bl
R (20174 © 19%) Ak Fe B FIAS B
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fo A A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
WA 20184F 12 7 31 HAL4FSE

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 9. AEW (WE5H8) WA
(Loss)/Profit for the year has been arrived at after (crediting)/charging: EN B8 A E S (GEA) IR
&I ¢
2018 2017
2018 4 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ANR¥T T
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 43 - g K& 44,850 63,432
Amortisation (included in administrative and ey (B ETBO — BB S )
general expenses)
— prepaid lease payment — AT 4 397 397
— other intangible assets — H A Y & 18,590 19,415
Total depreciation and amortisation ek Ktk s A AE 63,837 83,244
Capitalised in inventories fass-w e (5,924) (5,402)
57,913 77,842
Auditors’ remuneration % S R Y 45 2,738 1,750
Reversal of write-down of inventories % U A 18 3 T S B E
to net realisable value = (9,472)
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value His {7 & 2 ] 4 31 1 (H 26,136 -
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense B R B BH S 2 17 B A 1,250,864 1,200,317
Share-based payment expenses DA BAR SZAF 2 B S 1,878 -
Impairment losses recognised on goodwill e 52 PR A I (B 1R 154,318 1,558
Fair value change on financial assets at fair A Al B A
value through profit or loss TH 45 10 Bl A AU (E R E) 10,765 -
Impairment loss recognised on other AR A Y B R
intangible asset WAERG1R 185,523 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of B ZE - W SR RERR 1Y
property, plant and equipment G aEic 6,277 13,444
2018 2017
2018 4% 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRMT 0 NS B
Employee benefits expenses 1@ B A A BH 52
— Salaries, allowances and other benefits — ¥~ RN K HAth AR A 621,993 564,932
— Contributions to defined contribution — A E BRI ET H 3K
retirement plans 80,183 71,287
702,176 636,719

T H BB B A PR A R

S A

/-IH‘A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo B T s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 H IR4FBE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors of the Company were

10. EF - FRITBANEKER
L
EL o R T A I 2 e A T

as follows:

2018 2017
20184F 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt PN S o
Directors’ emoluments: R A
— Directors’ fee —HF R 875 1,191
— Salaries and other benefits — L& S HA AR A 5,799 5,206
— Contributions to retirement — R RAR I
benefits scheme 75 65
Total &5r 6,749 6,462
Contributions
to retirement
Salaries and benefits
Directors’ fee  other benefits scheme Total
I&EXK iy eyl
EFWE AR w3 % il
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFE  ARWTL ARBFE  ARWTL
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE 2018412 A 31 HILAEE
Executive directors: WiTES
Chen Yixi Wi g - 2,785 15 2,800
Zhao Wei i - 1,201 20 1221
Huo Li EN - 1,019 20 1,039
Yuan Zhenhua EiRE - 794 20 814
Non-executive directors: FPfTHES
Miao Bingwen B3 175 - - 175
Wu Guangze (note ii) SR (ki) = - - -
Ngan Wing Ho (note i) Bk (kD) = = = =
Independent non-executive directors: BT ES
Kwong Wai Sun Wilson i fE 175 - - 175
Li Xindan 20 F} 175 - - 175
Zhang Zhiyong REE 175 - - 175
Zheng Hongliang WAL 5% 175 - - 175
875 5,799 75 6,749

144

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

fo A A M e

For the year ended 31 December 2018

A 2018412 A 31 H IL4FE

10. EF - FRITHABLER

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) P 4 (1)
Contributions
to retirement
Salaries and benefits
Directors’ fee  other benefits scheme Total
TER BIRFEA
HEE HAbAEA FiE L[5 At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥F AR¥T T ANR¥F AR#FT
For the year ended 31 December 2017 W2 2017412 431 HIHFRE
Executive directors: TS
Chen Yixi P25 L 59 1,914 9 1,982
Zhao Wei M - 1,215 20 1,235
Huo Li £ - 1,001 20 1,021
Yuan Zhenhua EiR#E - 634 16 650
Ngan Wing Ho (note i) BUKE (Mt3E1) - 442 - 442
Non-executive directors: FoTES
Miao Bingwen B 172 - - 172
Wu Guangze (note ii) SRR (Mt i) 172 = = 172
Ngan Wing Ho (note i) Bk (ki) 100 - - 100
Independent non-executive directors: B e TS
Kwong Wai Sun Wilson AR 172 - - 172
Li Xindan 20 Ft 172 - = 172
Zhang Zhiyong iR 172 = = 172
Zheng Hongliang WALsE 172 - - 172
1,191 5,206 65 6,462

The executive director’s emoluments shown above were for their

services in connection with the management of the affairs of the

Company and the Group. The non-executive directors’ emoluments

shown above were for their services as directors of the Company.

There is no arrangement of waive the remuneration.

T H BB B A PR A R

SR A AT Y P < SR s A
AN T B A A 1B A S 2 A R RS
P o JESUAT A < ) £ A AR
EAR 2L T 2 R RS (Y o

= IR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo B T s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 H IR4FBE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

i Mr. Ngan Wing Ho was re-designated from an executive director to non-
executive director on 2 June 2017 and resigned on 4 April 2018. The Group
was not required to pay Mr. Ngan’s emoluments for the period 1 January to 4

April 2018.

ii. Mr. Wu Guangze resigned as the non-executive directors on 4 April 2018.
The Group was not required to pay Mr. Ngan’s emoluments for the period 1

January to 4 April 2018.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, four
(2017: two) were directors of the Company whose emoluments are
included in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining

one (2017: three) individual were as follows:

wH- FRTBAEBAEER

P 4 ()

fif 3

i BKEE AR 2017456 A 2 A AT 2
TR IEATE S > R 2018454 H4 H
BHAL o A BT SO A BHOE AR 2018 4F 1
H1HZE4H 4 HBIHE S -

ii. SLRE R AR 2018 4E 4 H 4 H BT IEAT
HH o AT ST RSB 2018 4F 1
H1HZE4H 4 HBIHGm4E -

AL AL RmH ANLF o WZ (2017
AR W) B AR AR H o 15 A Y
R LAk B R o iR N — 4 (2017 4F ¢

=4) ML
2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T8 PN

Salaries and other benefits B S H A AE A

Contributions to retirement benefits AR A T 2k
scheme

Total &5r

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals (including

directors) were within the following bands:

2,618 5,520
270 405
2,888 5,925

FAREBHAL (QEEF) 752
AP

2018 2017
20184 20174
No. of No. of
employees employees
BB H & & #H
Nil to HKD1,000,000 055 % 1,000,000 % IC =
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 #7652 1,500,000 #5 7T 2
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 ¥ JG % 2,000,000 # T - 1
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 ¥ JC % 2,500,000 # ¢ - 2
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,500,000 2,500,001 % G % 3,500,000 # G 2 =
5 5

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals (including directors and employees) as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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11.

12.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2018, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period (2017:
nil).

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company for the year is based on the

following data:

fo A A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
WA 20184F 12 7 31 HAL4FSE

11. BB
R M E 2018 4E 12 A 31 H IL4E

FEIRAT s R B IR S T A A
H A R 30 R S e v i YR AT AT % S
(2017 FARWIRS, « HE) -

12. B (EE) B
G R A2 BT A HE {45 1 2 A 1 T

(B18) /BRI TIARGE LT st

2018 2017
20184 2017 4F
(Loss)/Earnings (RMB’000) (E518) / ZA (NR¥ETI0)
(Loss)/Earnings for the purposes FERH R R IE A R
of calculating basic and diluted S (B548) s
(loss)/earnings per share ((loss)/profit 2 (E5i8) /&R
for the year attributable to owners (AR FHEA NG AEA
of the Company) (k548 i A1) (387,029) 20,492
Number of shares (*000) ety BH (FA%)
Weighted average number of ordinary AT A e
shares in issue less shares held (F548) BRI E T
under the share award scheme 788 JB IR 25 BB AR 5
during the year for the purpose JB A 2 b e A A R
of calculating basic and dilutive Z Bty
(loss)/earnings per share 2,058,111 2,057,400
(Loss)/Earnings per share (RMB cents) M (B518) /B R (N 5)
_ Basic — A (18.81) 1.00
— Diluted — g (18.81) 1.00

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of
calculating basic and dilutive (loss)/earnings per share were the same.
Accordingly, the dilutive (loss)/earnings per share was the same as the
basic (loss)/earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017.

a8 A g TR ) 1 o T 8 gt R
AR (RS 4R) /7 2RI (9 Jin A7 249 T3t B
[F] o RIULHAERE 2018 4F 1220174F 12 H 31
HIRAERE > FEAREE R (B8 /2 0 g
WA (518 /B FIHI] -

THEBEBREBRARAR & URE R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 1 31 HUL4FESE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. P13€ > Has sk

Property,
plant and
Fixtures equipment
and Leasehold under
Buildings Machinery equipment  Motor vehicles  Improvements  finance leases Total
MEHE
fEwE HrmgE-
i3 B EERGE Fif b Bk il
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTE  ARMTE  ARWTE  ARMTE  ARWTE  ARETE  ARWTX
Cost Wk
At 1 January 2017 ROITELA 1A 149,803 52,363 122,842 28,592 120012 11,697 485311
Exchange adjustment gL = = 4551 = 111 478 5,140
Additions RE - 1492 11,039 730 55,097 1,617 70,575
Disposals il - (763) (3,604) (3,410) (801) - (8,638)
At31 December 2017 and 1 Jamuary 2018 720174 12 A 31 H
RNBEIA1H 149,803 53,092 134768 25912 175,019 13,792 552,388
Exchange adjustment i ok - - (1,803) - (87) (202) (2,092)
Additions hE - 1,104 6,686 1,088 44454 1,381 54913
Disposals HE - 122 (5,657) 2207 (15,650) - (25,656)
At31 December 2018 20184 12431 B 149,803 52,074 133,994 1773 203,736 15,171 579,553
Depreciation ik
At 1 January 2017 R07ELA LA 41,719 30877 46,330 18,526 70,649 1,353 209,514
Exchange adjustment i3S - - 2,594 - I 183 2,801
Provided for the year Eih 6823 4014 27,935 2,936 18017 307 63432
Eliminated on disposals i - (382) (3.224) (2,789) (801) - (7,19)
At31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 720174 12 A 31 H
RNBEIA1H 48,602 34,509 73,635 18,673 87,889 5,43 268,551
Exchange adjustment 3L - - (1,186) - (19) (108) (1313)
Provided for the year i 6,83 3410 11414 2357 18,067 2719 44,850
Eliminated on disposals i E R = (1473) (5.404) (1,804) (3,398) - (12,079)
At31 December 2018 20184 12 431 55425 36,446 78459 19226 102,539 7914 300,009
Impairment i
At 1 January 2017 R017E 1A 1R = = = = = = =
Exchange adjustment i3kl - = 208 - = = 208
Provided for the year E R = = 13,444 = = = 13,444
At31 December 2017 and 1 Jamuary 2018 420174 12 A 31 H
R85 1A 1H - - 13,652 - - - 13,652
Exchange adjustment i - - (17) - ) (1) (196)
Provided for the year il = - 2,084 - 554 3,639 6277
At31 December 2018 2018412 431 B - - 15,564 - 551 3,618 19,733
Carrying values Wil
At31 December 2018 20185 12431 H 94,380 15,628 39,971 5,547 100,646 3,639 259811
At31 December 2017 R2017E12A31H 101,203 18,583 47481 7,239 87,130 8,549 270,185

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated,

after considering their residual values, on a straight-line basis at the

following rates per annum:

Buildings 4.5%
Machinery 9%
Fixtures and equipment 5%-33%
Motor vehicles 18%
Leasehold improvements useful life or over the term of the

lease, whichever is shorter

In addition, the Group’s obligations under finance leases (see note
35) are secured by the lessors’ title to the leased assets, which have a
carrying amount of RMB 3,639,000 (2017: RMBS,549,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group closed certain
toy stores operated by Hamleys Nordics ApS (“Hamleys Nordics”,
formerly known as “HScan Holding ApS”). In the near future, the
Group had made plans to close more stores. As a result, the directors
of the Company reviewed the conditions of property, plant and
equipment in these stores and identified that certain fixtures and
equipment were fully impaired due to no future usage expected.
Accordingly, an impairment loss of RMB13,444,000 was recorded in

2017. These assets were used in the Group’s retail of toys segment.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had property,
plant and equipment held by subsidiaries, which include retail of
toys segment in the UK as at 31 December 2018. Given the different
economic environments in which the Group’s retail of toys segment
operates, there are indications that the carrying amounts of these
assets held by subsidiaries are higher than their recoverable amounts.
These indicators include continuing adverse changes in the local
market conditions in which the retail stores operate or will operate,
or when the retail stores continue to operate at a loss position and its
financial performance is worse than expected. The Group performed
impairment assessment on the related assets by assessing their

recoverable amounts.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017,
the Group considered that no written back of provision for impairment
loss of the retail stores’ assets were necessary, however, further
impairment loss of RMB6,277,000 was recorded in 2018.

fo A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
#2018 4F 12 7 31 HAL4FJE

13. 3k -~ IR B3 ()

LAYy - M K B IE E AE 25 T R
ERIEER - U EARIE T E RN E
SRR (LA & 2 Y ) SEAT 4T 85

HF 4.5%
s 9%
S B Rk A 5% = 33%
IR 18%
FEWEKE AT 4 A SR A

(DA 2 o UE)

BEAh 5 A% 4 B S A I R AR E (2
FLRfFEE3S) DU A NS B S E R BT A
REFEHEHT > HHRTE (A A A R 3,639,000
JG (2017 4+ AR5 8,549,000 70) -

A E 2017 4F 12 H 31 B IRAEEE - AL
B P T Hamleys Nordics ApS ([ Hamleys
Nordics | > Hif#§ [HScan Holding ApS.) £
B BUER GG o A% S 2 E B R A
AR PR 2 B o A AL > AN R E
HEFEZEE W - W LN
RVL » TRHERR A T 246 B JGEEAR R FE
A RSO - B R20174F8045
WA R A BB 13,444,000 7C o HHBAE
FHIAASSE B 0 LB 435 o

B E20184F 12 A31 H IL4FEFEF » AR4EH
£ REE o) VNCIESEEN UL/ A T 9 E
5> ALFE R 2018 4F 12 A 31 H Y B B %
BICE A o 8 AR 4R B R B B o
JRAE RN [R) S8 B4 > A B 530 [ i
S TR 0 5% S L 114 R T (e R 4
P RRTAT (B o 7% 55 5 52 005 2 65 o dl 488
I A 455 T A b B VLB R A S R B
&, ok BB SR A R AR DL AR
HEAH R BN FI o A B 7 T4,
A B 7 1) T S ) 4 B Ve (B AR

HZE20184F12H31 H 2017412 H31H
IEFRE > AEER A EAHTERME
JEE 1) U6k Ml FE 8 [l g > SR > 1A 2018
A PR A5 B AN BE RN R 16,277,000
T o

THEBEBREBRARAR SRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FEE

14. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 14. FEfHH 4
2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T8 AR#T T

Cost AR

At beginning and end of the year SEAT) B AR R 21,037 21,037

Accumulated amortisation Bty

At beginning of the year A7) 7,621 7,224

Amortisation S 397 397

At end of the year R 8,018 7,621

Carrying amount R T

At end of the year FER 13,019 13,416

Analysed for reporting purposes as: M H BT

Current asset (Note 26) & (FffE26) 397 397

Non-current asset B 12,622 13,019
13,019 13,416

The amount represents the lease premium payment for land use rights 7% 42 R TR L r B A A RE A AR B

which is situated in the PRC. It is amortised over 50 years and the T FE AR o e SO AR B % fHE 67 A B - Hh

amortisation periods is in line with the period of land use rights. {5 PR RE A0 T — 2

1 5 0 C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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fo A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
#2018 4F 12 7 31 HAL4FJE

15. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

15. A & B

Concession
Trademark Brand Software agreements Others Total
T finffl g Foarlibek Hil st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT  AR¥FE  AR%Tr  AR¥Fr  AR¥ETE  AR¥TR
Cost A
At 1 January 2017 201741 A 1H 5,697 820,039 17,765 33,253 3,082 879,836
Exchange adjustment e 5 % 245 9,601 387 920 158 11,311
Additions WNE 1,452 2,511 3,406 - 358 7,721
At31 December2017and ~ jA20174E 12 A 31 H
| January 2018 B0I8E1A1H 7,394 832,151 21,558 34173 3,598 898,874
Exchange adjustment IE i (106) (6,150) (166) (80) (839) (1341)
Additions NE 609 85 1,552 - 969 3,215
At 31 December 2018 2018412 431 H 7,897 826,086 22,944 34,093 3728 894,748
Amortisation gy
At 1 January 2017 W20174% 1A LH 331 2,073 9,145 6,683 648 18,880
Exchange adjustment I i 92 198 248 820 99 1,457
Charge for the year R 2,561 6,817 3,962 4,563 1512 19415
At31 December 2017and 2017412 A 31 H
| January 2018 K2018%F 1A 1H 2,984 9,088 13,355 12,066 2,259 39,752
Exchange adjustment T S (59 (140) (122) (43) (508) 877)
Charge for the year EREAE 2,852 5,759 3,497 5,643 839 18,590
At 31 December 2018 20184 12431 H 5177 14,707 16,730 17,661 2,590 57,465
Impairment Wi
At 1 January 2017 and 2017 1A 1H
31 December 2017 J20174 12431 0 - - - - - -
Charge for the year SRR = 185,503 10 10 = 185,523
At 31 December 2018 2018412 431 H = 185,503 10 10 - 185,523
Carrying values W
At 31 December 2017 20174 12431 H 4410 823,063 8,203 22,107 1,339 859,122
At 31 December 2018 12018412 431 H 2,120 625,876 0,204 16,422 1,138 651,760

The above intangible assets other than the brand of Hamleys Global

have finite useful lives. These intangible assets are amortised on a

straight-line basis over the following periods:

Trademarks
Other brands

Software

Concession agreements

Others

5 years
2-10 years
3-5 years
6 years

3-5 years

Rl AEIY E E (A4S [ Hamleys Global |
) B A RS AR - ZEREE
FE T AT HA 4 AR IR SR E R G

[k

A

LIgs

R o e

Fopls

T 0 BB B A B A R

54F
2 % 104E
3FESHE
6 4
3FESHE

JAEAE B
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fo A s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FEE

15. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The brand of Hamleys Global, which arose from the acquisition of
Hamleys Global Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“Hamleys
Global Group”) in November 2015, is stated at RMB620,313,000
(2017: RMB811,996,000) and has an indefinite useful life. The
indefinite useful life is supported by Hamleys Global being a well-
established and reputable brand and is the world’s oldest toy store.
There are no known legal or contractual provisions that would limit
the useful life of the brand and it is protected by trademarks that can

be renewed indefinitely.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company performed impairment
assessment on the Hamleys Global Group. The recoverable amount
of the Hamleys Global Group is determined based on value in use
calculation. The total amount of impairment loss was approximately
RMB340 million, which is first allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of goodwill arising from the acquisition of the Hamleys Global
Group of approximately RMB154 million. The remaining impairment
loss of approximately RMB186 million is allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of Hamleys Global Brand and recognised in the

provision for impairment of intangible asset.

16. GOODWILL

The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as follows:

15.

16.

Al 406 2 B 2 ()
Hamleys Global Z i fifl (J7JiA 2015 4F 11

H it Hamleys Global Holdings Limited
KB E A 7] ([Hamleys Global #H 1)
JrEEE) - HIER 2 N R 620,313,000 7T
(20174 + AN R %811,996,000C ) >
H A R o BLA M FRAR 1 02 a5
1A Hamleys Global £ &Lt 32 2L 521 i
JE > SIS A BRI S R AR AR BL L o lf
4 ST 1 125 A R A4 46 S R A e ) 4
B M7 PR AR IR T A AT T DA A
FRAEH -

R20184F12H31H > A& A & & %
Hamleys Global 4 [# {f 1 ¥ & &5F 1# °
Hamleys Global 4 [8 i) HR T {EL )9 AR 45 (i
FEEF AT E o BEERAEL 5
ANR¥E340 H 80 - A B s 18 A A
Ty e R H LA N R 1548 &0
Wil Hamleys Global 4 8] i 8 A= 14 piy 22
N T R o R % (B 1L 40 N R 186 1
B EWY Hamleys Global it bt R
TR » ST/ JHE T 5 7 W 3 5 A I o

PR 1) B T (B VR (B AT AT A
2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4F
RMB?000 RMB’000

ARHT ot ANR#T T

At the beginning of year AEY)

Gross carrying amount HARRTE (E

Accumulated impairment BEHEE

Net carrying amount at 1 January AT A 1 H )RR E I (E
Impairment losses BAE R

Net exchange differences T 50, 22 FR T (H

Net carrying amount at 31 December 12 H 31 H R {EFE

At end of year R
Gross carrying amount AR T {E
Accumulated impairment 2 FHEIHE

1 5 2 C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

163,995 166,458
(1,558) -
162,437 166,458
162,437 166,458
(154,318) (1,558)
(2,394) (2,463)
5,725 162,437
161,601 163,995
(155,876) (1,558)
5,725 162,437




16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

The carrying amount of goodwill, net of any impairment loss, is

allocated to the cash generating unit of retail of toys.

The recoverable amount for the cash generating unit was determined
based on value-in-use calculations covering a detailed five-year
budget plan followed by an extrapolation of expected cash flows at
the growth rates stated below. The growth rates reflect the long-term

average growth rates for the product lines of the cash generating unit.

The key assumptions used for value in use calculations were as

fo A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
#2018 4F 12 7 31 HAL4FJE

16. F2 )

R R AT (L (10 AT ] Dol (L 4R ) 0 i 22
AT E R B E L A -

Bl 7 7 B A T i [m] <59 ARR £
BEFRMEE > Zal B WEF RN LA
T ErE > 4% SO G R R e
Z B R R o A B e R
Bl R A BT E MR R AT R

AR (R 2 AR T

follows:
As at As at
31/12/2018 31/12/2017
2018 4 i~ 2017 4F
12H31H 12H31H
Growth rates 1S % 2% 5%
Discount rates Il 2% 15% 15%

The forecast for the Group’s retail of toys unit was adjusted in 2018
for the decline of the retail of toys market. Impairment testing taking
into account these latest developments resulted in the impairment of

goodwill associated with the cash generating unit of retail of toys.

As the cash generating unit of Hamleys Global (as defined in Unit A
in Note 17) has been reduced to its recoverable amount of nil as at 31
December 2018 (2017: RMB156,712,000). The goodwill impairment
loss for Unit A (as defined in Note 17) of RMB154,318,000 (2017:
nil) was recognised and included under “other expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income and attributed to the Group’s retail of toys segment.

MR B R T - AEEC I
2018 FF B H T BT REST © T
T i 56 i R0 TR 1A (B et 2 B B B L
TR I 4 A B R Y R R

H1 A Hamleys Global (i 35 W Bl 5k 17 %
L A) B4 A B A A 2018 4F 12
31 F B F H AT ] 4 %8 2 % 6 (2017
A N 156,712,00000) © HAA (F
26 BB RE 17) 09 B R U (E 1RO R HE
154,318,000 7T (2017 4F : &) C hERRf 5
AGEA 1R 35 S H A 2 T i 25 2 9 [ HoAth
B S ) AT o S B R A A AR E Y B 2L &

IR o

THEBEBREBRARAR SRR

153



154

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
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17.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON INTANGIBLE
ASSET WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL LIFE
AND GOODWILL

For the purposes of impairment testing, brand with indefinite useful
life and goodwill set out in notes 15 and 16 have been allocated to three
individual cash generating units (CGUs). The carrying amounts of
brand with indefinite useful life and goodwill as at 31 December 2018

allocated to these units are as follows:

17. B AR W] i A A B ey S B

B I T 2 DR A A PR

SRR IR 5 - BEE 15 22 16 rafl i 2
Je HA B wT o R AR 0T L A3 B &
—(HEB B AL - SRS
AV Y PR S R 2018 FF 12 H 31 H Y
WRmEEW T

Brand with indefinite

Goodwill useful lives
HA7 J B AT 46 )
[k AE T i
2018 2017 2018 2017
2018 4 201748 20184 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRE ARW¥TT AR¥WTFE ARWTT
Hamleys Global (Unit A) Hamleys Global
(BEHLA) - 156,712 620,313 811,996
Mega Brilliant International E R B PEA FRA T
Limited (Unit B) (%47 B) 5,725 5,725 - -
Hamleys Nordics (Unit C) Hamleys Nordics
(F#7C) - - - -
5,725 162,437 620,313 811,996

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs and their

major underlying assumptions are summarized below:

Unit A

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a
value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by directors of the Company covering a
five-year period, and discount rate of 15%. Unit A’s cash flow beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using an average 2% per annum
growth rate. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations
relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on the
unit’s past performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. The management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of Unit A to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount
of Unit A.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

3l B 4 A AN B T i ] < A Y
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% A 22 AT i e Y DA R B B (E
fREAE > A R PR AR T R
=LA 2 B TR B 15% < T B %45
2 BT o A AR
B A BB R AR A AT 2% 2 g R R
HERATH o wh 5 8 2 Hoph = 2R
S FFBLE AW B RS
FERE R BAR o ZEME IR R
i 2 AT R B L e A L 3] 71 355 8 R 1Y
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IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON INTANGIBLE  17. Hf5 8P W] f B 4E W0 T B
ASSET WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL LIFE I T Z DR B A PR (0
AND GOODWILL (CONTINUED)
Unit B HALB
The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a 5% B 22 Wi ] AR Y DA R A A (E
value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections fREE > A B RO T AR R A S A
based on financial budgets approved by directors of the Company = IAR 2 W T K 10% 2 7 3 %15
covering a five-year period, and discount rate of 10%. Unit B’s cash W B RIE S o B AR 2
flow beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using an average FEA BB B i AT 5% 2 R R
5% per annum growth rate. Other key assumptions for the value in use WeBAGH - FHE A A HAl 3 E R
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which REAGFI B S RA AR > S5 TE
include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is based FHERF L BRAFR - ZEMF IR
on the unit’s past performance and management’s expectations for 7 22 3 AE 2 B DA KA B0 g S T 0 5 S 1
the market development. Management believes that any reasonably TEHMAE S o BFHEMGE R %S RE
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause & T e E) > ARG EH B
the aggregate carrying amount of Unit B to exceed the aggregate 2 R THT A0 2 B (57 B 2 T i [ A 4 o
recoverable amount of Unit B.
Unit C LADA®
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group closed certain R 20174E 12 A 31 H IL4EE - A&
toy stores operated by Hamleys Nordics. The Group has planned to %] B8 PH 4 T Hamleys Nordics 8% 1) It
close more stores in near future. The recoverable amount of Unit C ELJE & o A4 B B Ft B R A% K BE
became nil then. An impairment loss of RMB1,558,000 in relation to PHEE 22 5 il o IR > BE A C 2 m] [m] g 4
Unit C was recognised. BRE o B C HERR (B R 4R [
1,558,000 7T ©
INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. W= 4 ] B A i
2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR¥EFIT
Share of net assets JREA B A 17,608 20,242
Impairments (B (16,662) -
946 20,242

T 0 BB B A B A R

= IR
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18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

Details of each of the Group’s associates at the end of the reporting

18. R 24 vl HYRE B (o
RSN WA A2 BT

period are as follow:

Proportion of nominal

value of issued/paid up

Place and date of  Principal place of capital and voting power
Name of associate incorporation operation held by the Group Principal activity
Ak AL,/ R REMPH 2 OH#T/
B v vl 44 1R TR A FHREENS BRBARGEETEZ LN BEEH
2018 2017
20184 20174
United Nude international Limited (“UN“) ~ The BVI Hong Kong 20% 20%  Branded shoes supplier
28 April 2008 and trading
United Nude International Limited ([UN])  30@ & 7 # & itk A A R AL i R 5

200844 H 28 H

As at 31 December 2018, the operations of the associate continued to
incur operating losses and is expected to continue its downward trends.
The Group carries out impairment assessment on the investment
with impairment indications to assess the recoverable amount of
the investment in associate. Impairment loss on the Group’s equity
interests in UN amounted of approximately RMB16,662,000 was
made. The impairment losse mainly resulted from revision of financial
outlook of the associates and changes in the market environment of the

underlying business.

The summarised consolidated financial information in respect of the
Group’s associate which is accounted for using the equity method is

set out below:

2018412 31 H > /N 7l 4842 e 494
7 A e 18 R TR S A% T A - AR
N F A B ELA W B S 1 B AT ok
(ELTREA AR A A T 72 2 1 48 & 14 T g )
S o OEASEFN UNIY BAE A9 A R
16,662,000 7CAF H B 5 45 W (i 15 15
T A ) WA TS T S48 IE A B
EB M TSR 2B 8 o

7 R A 4 1 fe P RE 45 0 AR ELNIE 9F B
R P T A A T SR A ORI A
T

2018 2017

2018 4F 2017 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWET 6 ANR¥ET T

Current assets LB & 44,828 56,053
Non-current assets IE LBy G 707 820
Current liabilities ) & K 40,845 39,124

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED) 18. ﬁAHyﬁ.@./A W) I RE 25 (1)

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following: R EE AN SRR R YISIE

2018 2017

2018 4 2017 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARW Tt ANR¥Tt

Cash and cash equivalents B4 KR &5EY 13,499 24,168

Revenue A 74,270 79,287
Loss and total comprehensive expense A TR e 15 B 4 T B S MR

for the year (11,582) (12,489)

At B S R LA A A R T
L e A S M A ) R T (B0 F) R

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the

consolidated financial statements:

2018 2017

2018 4F 2017 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ANR¥Tt ANR¥ETF T

Net assets g 4,690 17,749

Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 7 48 [ B A PR 25 L ) 20.17% 20.17%

Goodwill TR = 7,418

Effect of fair value adjustments at acquisition 2~ o {H 3 5 Bhilk i > 5 2 — 9,244

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest AL EHE RS 7 BE T (H 946 20,242

19. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 19. RG2S ENRELR

2018 2017

2018 4F 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

ANR¥T0 ANR¥ET T

Share of net assets JREA B A 17,950 21,924
Shown under current asset G B & E 4,731) (5,231)

Non-current portion FE T 4y 13,219 16,693

T 0 BB B A B A R

= IR
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19. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

(CONTINUED)
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had interest in the

following joint ventures:

19. e BRENELS @)

TR IR > AR EIA R 51 &8 A SE B
i

Proportion of nominal

value of issued/paid up

Place and date of  Principal place capital and voting power
Name of joint venture incorporation of operation held by the Group Principal activity
R/ AEMFEHZOHBIT/
HRMEALN L VAR WERAMNE  EARARECEEEEZ LN R
2018 2017
20184 20174
B&H Footwear Company Hong Kong Hong Kong 49% 49%  Trading
Company Limited 29 May 2007
(“Hong Kong B&H®)* (note 1)
EREEARAH i HiE 55
(TR ) * (kD) 200745 29 A
SM (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. Jiangsu the PRC The PRC 50% 50%  Trading
(“SM*“)* (note i) 27 June 2017
AR T (ILHR) A RA TPV Wi B
(ESWE ) * (ki) 2017464 27H
Notes: F5E -

Dongguan B&H Footwear Industries Limited %5 3% e #E 34 FRA w
(“Dongguan B&H™) is a 100% subsidiary held by Hong Kong B&H. The
principal activity of Dongguan B&H is manufacture and retail of branded
fashion footwear. The joint venture agreement of Dongguan B&H expired
in 2017. The Group and respective joint venture partners decided to close
the operation of Dongguan B&H and the liquidation procedures were still in
process as of 31 December 2018. The carrying amount of the interest in the

joint venture will be collected back by cash payment from Dongguan B&H.

Xuzhou C.banner (as defined in Note 48), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with Madden Asia
International Limited (“Madden Asia”) for the establishment of SM (Jiangsu)
Co., Ltd (“SM”). SM is owned as to 50% by Xuzhou C.banner, and as to 50%
by Madden Asia.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

REEEREEEARAF (THELRE] B
LR GA 2 E AT o WK
2 R BTSSR R
REEE R Z A BT 12017 4 i
o ALK& GBS EB e SR
SERRMEE > fR20184F 12 A 31 AiEE
TEIFANTEEAT o R GBI MR
AT (B 18 SRE 26 e LABR 4 Ao i ] o

AR ) [ A TR IR 8 AR N T (8
3¢ FLIff5F 48) Bl Madden Asia International
Limited ([Madden Asial) ] 371 » i
SLESHE (LER) FRAR ([£2]) -
28 i ARM T B EEEEA 50% K H Madden
Asia #EA7 50% o
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19. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

(CONTINUED)
The summarised consolidated financial information in respect of the

19. e BRENELS @)

A A A S T A FHY M 2 5 AR 5 7 A 2K

Group’s joint ventures which is accounted for using the equity method M 45 & ERMEE RS IR
is set out below:
Dongguan B&H 2018 2017
WL R 2018 4% 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt AR¥T T
Current assets TEh A = 10,589 11,455
Non-current assets FE it B = 204
Current liabilities T AR 934 984

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following:

bl E R AR LA T A&

2018 2017

2018 4% 2017 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARW¥ Tt ANR¥ET T

Cash and cash equivalents B4 b B 42 EY) 10,589 11,450
Revenue I 4 - -
Interest income FE WA 109 122
Depreciation and amortisation s KAk (102) (126)

Loss and total comprehensive expenses AT T J 15 B At 2 g B 2

for the year (1,020) (1,596)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in the joint ventures recognised in the

consolidated financial statements:

Al B R ORI S A BB R

L AR A S A Y R T (P IR

2018 2017

2018 4F 2017 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHET AR¥ET T

Net assets g 9,655 10,675
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest A [ A REE £ LU 3] 49% 49%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest A FE RS 2 HETE 4,731 5,231

T H BB A PR A R

= AR

]
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19. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 19. REBALEVREL (@)
(CONTINUED)
SM 2018 2017
iy 20184 2017 4F
RMB?000 RMB’000

ARHTou ANR#T T

Current assets B 34,440 40,789
Non-current assets IR E E 2,089 70
Current liabilities mE B fE 10,091 7,473
2018 2017

2018 4F 2017 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T8 AR#ETIT

Cash and cash equivalents B MBS E ) 13,824 30,962
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade MBI SR A CNEEE S

and other payables and provisions) T HAth JREAST I e H3E 45 (270) (8)
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade JF i B 4 il & {5 (A LG 5

and other payables and provisions) e L Ath JRE A4S 2 TE 2 43445 - =
Revenue g= 28,395 3,711
Interest income Fl B A 33 15
Depreciation and amortisation P8 (61) -
Loss and total comprehensive expense A A e 4R B 4 T B S AR

for the year (6,894) (55)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the DL b A VR B ) RE A MR THT (2
carrying amount of the interest in the joint venture recognised in the BRI SR G SRR R

consolidated financial statements:

2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ANRHET 7T

Net assets HEE 26,438 33,386
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest A 45 H A RERE 25 LU ) 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest 7 45 B 45 2 IR T (E 13,219 16,693

1 60 C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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20. [t BIRE

2018 2017

2018 4F 2017 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

NS S T N BT

Unlisted equity securities I b A 5 = 10,765

The unlisted equity securities represent an insignificant portion of the
equity interest in ATMU Inc., an independent automatic teller machine
(“ATM*) deployer in the PRC, which is principally engaged in
deployment, operation, maintenance, sales of ATM and development
of relative software. It is measured at cost less impairment at the end
of the reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the directors are of the opinion that its
fair values cannot be reliably measured. As at 1 January 2018, the
amounts previously included as “available-for-sale investment” were
reclassified to financial assets at fair value through profit or loss upon
the application of IFRS 9.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
On 11 August 2017, the Company acquired 6,319,820 ordinary
shares of US$0.001 each of Etonkids Educational Group Limited
(“Etonkids®) (“Sale Shares®) from independent third parties,
representing 45.78% of the issued share capital of Etonkids for a
cash consideration of US$79,408,705 (equivalent to approximately
RMB529,195,000), which was accounted for an interest in an
associate at acquisition date because the Company can exercise
significant influence over Etonkids. Etonkids is a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and, together with its subsidiaries
and controlled companies, is an education group operating
kindergartens under the brand “EtonKids” in the PRC.

As set out in the Company’s announcement dated 29 December 2017,
the Company conditionally agreed to sell 3,175,095 Sale Shares for
a cash consideration of US$44,965,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB295,964,000) and 3,144,725 Sale Shares for a cash consideration
of US$44,534,900 (equivalent to approximately RMB293,133,000)
to independent third parties, representing approximately 23.00%
and 22.78% of the issued share capital of the Etonkids respectively.
Etonkids had been accounted for using the equity accounting up to the
date of the announcement, when it was reclassified to as assets held for
sale, and the Group ‘s shares of Etonkids’ results of RMB17,105,000
was included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Upon the completion of the above transaction,
the Company ceased to be a shareholder of the Etonkids.

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s interest in Etonkids has been
included under assets classified as held for sale in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

21.

T H BB A PR A R

FE b T AR 25 B o [ 4 S B B b
([ BB B 4% ) R ATMU Inc. 2 B
HRIEE R o s T B B
BRI E ~ A - K - BB AR
HRAFBH S o JF b T BeAS v 2 A i i R
DU ASE R W E R > R A HELA R
EAGFHE R E R > R85 HA A (E %
EASEEHE - M E20184F1 A L H > SEH
BT Rt B B0 | A 4 R IR 1)
PO 55 3 4 6 1) 565 9 8% I E R 0 R B DL
FOME R H S B A H I 25 1 4 Rl
B o

SRR ENE E
201748 H 11 H > RN A HMHE =
T W S P (R [ A A A R ) ([
1H ) 26,319,820 B A5 B T {E0.001 3£ 0.2
M (R 1) > Al i B 88 1T
ARH)45.78% > B4 fCAE £ 79,408,705 3
Jt (FAE &) N R ¥ 529,195,000 7T) > A
R i Wil H e A w2 Mg 0 IR
[l 2y AN R e PR A R 2 ) - 4
T — R B 2 B S s M A F)
L B N D T 5 e D A v R AR
SR E R E EE -

A 2\ A M A 2017412 H29 H
/N T R NN R R L il =g
3,175,095 1% £F & B 0 ( B 4 AR H
%4 44,965,000 3 G ( AH & i £ AN R ¥
295,964,000 7 ) ) & 3,144,725 [ 15 & 1%
iy (B 4 A 18 5 44,534,900 35 7T (A
ﬁAZ’JJ\E“ﬁ?z% 133,000 70) T4 3756 =

> 43 A PRI B 854 T AR 49 23.00% K
22 78% o JAFE A B FHHE M RE
i EEHEALR zﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%#@ﬁﬁﬁﬂ’ﬁ G
A I o AR A I SR A R
17,105,000 7C % 51 A 454 18 25 K H AL 45
HlkzsFE o UL ER G SEHAE - AAFAR
T A PR EE A A o

ﬁA2017$12H31H 45 (8] 1A IR P R
T B G5 BATS IR I 25 LA 4T S8 A R R D
HEGIIE o

e i
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22.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME
On 24 December 2018, Xuchou C.banner (as defined in Note 48),

an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into
an agreement of the capital increase and share expansion with B
HERGIACABRAF (“FRK#H%), a company established in the
PRC. Xuchou C.banner subscribed for 2.78% of the registered capital
(“Agreement”) of & & # at a consideration of RMB40,000,000.

The Group designated the investment in & % of RMB40,000,000
(2017: Nil) as FVOCI (non-recycling) as these investment are held for

strategic purpose.

The fair value of the unlisted equity investment is estimated using
an asset-based on the market value of individual asset and liabilities.
The most significant inputs, all of which are unobservable, are the

estimated price of similar assets or liabilities.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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% oy Seff sl B2 H O 5 B gt A
At 2 T W 4 P 4 T

R20184E12 24 H » AAR MM EEE
Bt 2N R4 N F B B (G 3% ARt 48) B
M A G RA T (TE A% 7T
o7 3R R R o AR T E U (— R
bR GRS YA ) EARACE AR W
40,000,000 7T rR B A 519 2.78% =t M1
$ o

AREEFEREKGHRE AR
40,000,000 7C (2017 4F = &) F A o fl
Al H O H S B A Hofh 2 s (O AT
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DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the deferred tax balances recognised by the Group

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23. EALFEIH

T A s A M

For the year ended 31 December 2018

A 2018412 A 31 HIL4FJE

DA 25 A S T e ) A A8 0 JEL 45 B T G

and movements thereon during the year: RN EEE)
Fair value
adjustment
on intangible
Withholding assets
Unrealised taxon arising from
profitin  Write down of ECL Deferred ~ undistributed acquisition of
inventories inventories  Taxlosses  allowances income profits  asubsidiary Others Total
R
ArEER
3v8 3] RRE AEREA  EREER
WA REME REER O BRER  BEW BiR AFERE Al &
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000
ARBT ARMTE  ARETT  ARWTX  ARETT  ARRTR  ARWTE  ARETT ARWTX
At1January 2007 R2017 1A 1A 50,044 21,208 1751 - 4208 (1,59) (155,315) 1211 (72,469)
(Charge) credit (HRgmk)
fo profit AT ABS
or loss (2,700) (7,076) 3,983 - 3413 (1,967) 1,140 4308 1,121
Exchange differences [ {41 - - 145 - - - (1,758) 110 (1,503)
At31 December 2017 120174 12 431 A
and | Janvary 2018, R2018%F 1A 1H
as previously stated IR 47344 14,132 11,879 - 7,641 (3,563) (155,933) 5,649 (72,851)
Bffect on adoption of  S4% BUIRETH
IFRS 9 RS = - - 761 - - - - 761
At31 December 2017 20174 124 31 H
and [ January 2018, 20184 1A 1H >
as restated ]| 4734 14,132 11,879 7,601 7,641 (3,563) (155,933) 5,649 (65,160)
(Charge) credit to profit ( FE & 41K)
or loss AR 2,153) 8771 19,601 (2,197) (1,203) 3,563 31387 840 04,549
Exchange differences 3% - - (75) - - - 663 M) 516
At31 December 2018 2018412431 H 45,191 22,903 31,405 5,494 6,378 - (117,383) 6417 (95)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial

reporting purposes:

DA 20 5 B 0 B IR AE R TH A B
Vix/I

2018 2017

2018 4F 2017 4

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T NG S ETH

Deferred tax assets EFE Tl TEUE 117,788 86,645
Deferred tax liabilities WAL I B fE (117,883) (159,496)
(95) (72,851)

T 0 BB B A B A R

T AR R,
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23.

24.

DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED) 23, JRIEBLIH (1)
Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared HRAE A SE T AT B > g v B B J 4 R 4
in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries that are received by 20084E 1 H 1 HE B I o Jm R A SE Bl
non-PRC resident entities from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred B vk ) R s S B TR o MR AEAL
tax liability has been provided for distributable profits which were TH A 8 kT 40 IRk s FILAE Hh B > T 40
determined according to the dividend policies of the PRC subsidiaries TR i A1) ) AR5 F 12 B 2 R 2018 4 Hip
before 2018. As at 31 December 2018, except for those provided for, 2B BOREEE o R20184F12H31H »
no deferred tax has been provided in relation to withholding income B AR L #3401 A B A - MRS
tax for the remaining undistributed profits retained by PRC entities, A 3 T U7 B 1 R B R 4 i v ) L A I
as the directors of the Company did not anticipate to distribute such TR AR A IE o DR AR A W HE
profits from its PRC subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. S 48 T I A T G Al 1 L e I o e
) HVE R a% S e A o
As at 31 December 2018, the Group has unused tax losses of A20184F 12 H31 H » A4 E K &) AW
RMB131,203,000 (2017: RMB58,695,000). Deferred tax asset of T JE s 18 A AR 131,203,000 T (2017
RMB31,405,000 have been recognised in respect of such tax losses as 4 NR58,695,000) © A20184F12 A
at 31December 2018 (2017: RMB11,879,000). 31 H > © sz g8 A R ¥ 31,405,000
JCHE R AR SEBL I E E (2017 4F © AR
11,879,000 7C) °
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has unused tax loss HAE20184F 12 H31 H I > A4 [H
of approximately RMB179,634,000 (2017: 115,032,000) available B F I BLIE S H A9 A R 179,634,000
to offset against future profits, in respect of which no deferred tax JG(20174F © AW 115,032,000 70) °] 1E
assets have been recognised, due to the unpredictability of future profit HEEE H &6 Al 2 o /B H A& i A A IR
streams. Such unrecognised losses will expire at 2023. BEVE TR o I g A R A A o TE
FE o %5 R MERR RS TR 2023 4F JE i
INVENTORIES 24. 78
2018 2017
20184 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHET PN S o
Raw materials JE A 20,580 28,596
Work in progress TER, 15,124 20,358
Finished goods B 719,443 858,145
755,147 907,099
Allowance of inventories obsolescence PR 2S£ B (103,104) (76,968)
652,043 830,131

As at 31 December 2018, the inventories with carrying amounts
of approximately RMB88,185,000 (2017: RMB54,563,000) was

reported at their net realizable values.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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T A s A M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
WA 20184F 12 7 31 HAL4FSE

TRADE RECEIVABLES 25. © 5 W EkIE
2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T8 AR#TIT

Amounts receivable from sales of goods 2H& [ B B 12 1 M i OB 284,883 384,467

Amounts receivable from royalty revenue AR R R A i A 1 R AT 16,604 7,806

Total &5r 301,487 392,273
The Group allows a credit period of 15-60 days for collection of the A [ G MENGEK A AZ 15 % 60 K11
trade receivables. Certain trade receivables, which are past due, are A o WA G ER 0 B ) M s B R R
interest bearing. The Group would also allow longer credit period for B o REE S T RINEFHEE

certain customers with long term relationship. Fiz T RMEEM

2018 2017

2018 4F 2017 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

NS T AR#T T

Trade receivables & 5 e BE 2k 323,465 392,273

Less: ECL/Loss allowance W MGG Rk s TR (21,978) -

301,487 392,273
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, presented based VLR % & S JRE A TE A i 3 R e i
on the revenue recognition dates and net of ECL allowance (2017: net 2l T 52 H A R 0 B TE A A5 B S 184 A
of loss allowance) at the end of the reporting period. (20174 : dNBREEIEHME) 25100 BRES 2>

#r o

2018 2017

2018 4 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T NRHET 7T

0 to 60 days 0#]60 K 234,736 319,516
61 to 180 days 61 X#]180 K 37,032 41,598
181 days to 1 year 181 K& 14F 12,965 10,657
Over 1 year AR 16,754 20,502

301,487 392,273
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fo B T s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FBE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 25. © 5 EWEKIE (#)

The movement in the ECL allowance (2017: loss allowance) of trade

receivables is as follows:

VAN 7 B2 5 B WK TR ) T A0 £ 0 A 1 4t

5 (2017 4F « R ) 2 58)

2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AR#T T

As at 1 January calculated under TAS 39 A8 2 P w2 I 25 39 5%
1A 1HFE - -
Amounts restated through opening FieHA) B 5 R EE 51 Y 3R
accumulated profits 30,762 -
Adjusted as at 1 January calculated R4 0 [ o 5 s 5 4 28 9 5%
under IFRS 9 TR 1 HRE 30,762 -
ECL/Loss allowance reversed during the year 3§ [0 4F A 78 W15 k548548
B (8,784) -
As at 31 December W12H31H 21,978 =

Pursuant to the contracts with department store operators, the Group
will issue invoices upon the receipt of the regular statements from the
department store operators and therefore invoices may be dated later
than the revenue recognition dates.

Details of the Group’s trade receivables denominated in foreign
currency of the relevant group entities are as follows:

RIFHE B ARIEEHNAH > AEMH
AR B 2 R T G E R R AR
PHEEEL > S B R A T
R HH -

A 10 AR B 2 O ) A0 R THEL B

5 FEWCHCEFERT IR -
2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T8 AR#ETIT

Denominated in: IR H W SIE

United States Dollar (“USD”) EIN 50,222 63,044
26. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 26. ot JE W k08 I FE AT 2%
PREPAYMENTS

2018 2017
2018 4% 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥T0 ANR¥ET T
Prepaid rental expenses FEAT L4 B 2 31,009 49,677
Prepayments FEAT R IE 78,322 92,376
Value-added tax receivable JEE Mg B8 R A 8,843 8,574
Prepaid lease payments (Note 14) TEATAH & 3K TE (B 5T 14) 397 397
Interest receivables TE i A B 5,005 2,002
Others HoAth 27,500 21,999
Total st 151,076 175,025
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

28.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

fo A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 2018 4F 12 7 31 HAR4FSE

7. &0 R A B H LS 85 A

B 148 48 1Y <5 B

2018 2017
2018 4 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AT T
Option to subscribe for additional interests in R A A AR AR HE )
ER % i 5 e 50,000 -

In addition to the shares acquired as disclosed in Note 22, Xuchou
C.banner acquired an option to subscribe for additional interests of
the enlarged equity interest of ¥ A& %% within 12 months from the date
of the Agreement at a consideration of RMB50,000,000. If Xuchou
C.banner exercises its option before the deadline (i.e. 7 December
2019), the amount paid would become capital contribution to 3 /& #.
If it does not exercise the option, the amount paid would be refunded

to Xuzhou C.banner within 10 working days of the deadline.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

o B 5 22 T 45 8 1A R 0 AN T B
ok R 1248 A R E i AT R
I A i 2 9 R IS 1 O I . B A
5 > ACAE B R H5 50,000,000 7T o fiF 1R
N F B A R H # (BI20194F 12 H 7
F) A AT (58 R FREAE > B A 46 R K
Ty B G O o AT B IR ARE
AT A A L B A% 1018 TAEH K
WA T HE -

8. it ik ¥ s

2018 2017

2018 4F 2017 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T It NG T

Other financial assets under current assets T TE A HAt 4 R - 10,000

As at 31 December 2017, other financial assets represent interest
rate linked other financial assets (“OFAs”) placed by the Group to
a number of banks or the Group’s investments in other restricted
low risk debt instruments arranged by banks for terms less than one
year. Pursuant to the relevant underlying agreements, the OFAs carry
interest at rate of 3.9% per annum during the investment period and the
principal sums are denominated in RMB fixed and guaranteed by those
banks. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value
of embedded derivatives does not have material impacts on the results

and financial position of the Group.

T 0 BB B A B A

R20174E 12 A 31 H > HoAth 4 @l & 2 15
AR A [ 7 U 22 R 4R4T HL BRI S 4 610 114
Hofth 4 mhE EE ([ HAb &g |) ik
B 7 BR AT 22 0 1y S At 2 PR 1l K B 1 755
THZHE > BIRDHN1E - RBIEH B
Tk - FAth 4 Rl S E A 150 e 4R
3.9% Hy A] S B RG> 1 A8 4 3XIE D
NRMEGHE > HAZERITIER - A0
Al EHT L AKX A TR ARE
S A A2 [ 119 S 40 T W 75 R Ol AE 48 T K Y
an

= R

167



168

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 1 31 HUL4FSE

29. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term bank deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less which carried interest
at market rates from 0.01% to 0.35% per annum at 31 December 2018
(2017: from 0.01% to 0.35% per annum).

The Group’s bank balances and cash that were denominated in foreign

currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant group

entities are set out below:

29. METHER KB 2
SRAT A0 B 6 (L4 B 6 T AT 8

=8 A BT Z IR AT > s EE K
JER 2018 4F 12 H 31 HI%M4EANTF 0.01%

%£0.35% (20174F © & 4F 4 F0.01% %=

0.35%) BT FIEEE, o

7R 52 0 DL AT I 4 T EC B S B B W DAST Y
SN EHE R SRAT RS B MBS WBI T

2018 2017
2018 4% 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt PNEL S BT
Bank balances and cash denominated in: FHE AL
USD Esin 12,785 15,377
European Monetary Unit (“EUR”) ot 153 5,386
Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) #oT 3,075 3,713
30. TRADE PAYABLES 30. ¥ 5 WA 3K IH

2018 2017
2018 4 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥Tt AR¥TFI

Trade payables for purchases of BMIE=TrEE &
goods from third parties B 5 EAT X TE 152,097 183,263
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30. TRADE PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

31.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Trade payables comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases.

Payment terms with suppliers are mainly on credit within 90 days from

the invoice date. The aging of trade payables presented based on the

invoice dates at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

fo A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 2018 4F 12 7 31 HAL4FSE

30. 55 MK IH ()
S5 M S IELE 55 14K 326050 5% 1

FIH o RN 2 fE R R Ay B B
55 H 1 190 P AR K o A R I OR
BRI 0 2 51 ) 5 5 JE A SR B iR 6 4

T

2018 2017
2018 4 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARW¥ Tt ANR¥T T

Age MR
0 to 90 days 0590 K 125,919 166,402
91 to 180 days 91 K% 180K 21,338 16,079
181 days to 1 year 181 K& 14F 4,591 643
Over 1 year R 147 249 139
152,097 183,263

The Group’s trade payables that were denominated in other currencies,

foreign currency of the relevant group entities, were re-translated into

7 45 T DA HC At 55 W (B 4R R 1 4
) at R BB A A AR S

RMB and stated for reporting purposes as: TR
2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARW Tt AR¥Ft
Denominated in: IR & H5IE
USD EIn 6,690 34,796
OTHER PAYABLES 31. oAt B A 3k IH
2018 2017
2018 4% 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET 70 AR¥Tt
Accruals MESTE 57,773 70,286
Advance from customers KK = 12,747
Advance from third parties (Note) 55 =BG (K EE) 79,170 -
Payroll payable JREAT & 60,251 53,677
Other tax liabilities HoABAIH £ A 29,171 57,708
Deposit from wholesale customers WBEF L4 3,131 12,560
Payable for decoration of outlets B 2 Al R ST 21,853 10,636
Interest payable JREAH AL 2,767 26,440
Others HoAh 26,755 45,621
280,871 289,675

Note: The amount due was non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest free and had no

fixed terms of repayment.

BERE © RZIR R IR S S PR ~ SRR - AEEER
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fo A S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FEE

32. BORROWINGS 32. f

H X
2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt AR¥Ft
Bank overdrafts SRATHE L 25,242 29,001
Bank borrowings SRIT R 233,349 463,677
Other borrowings HoAh 3K 44,592 653,420
303,183 1,146,098
Unsecured HEFE 69,834 29,001
Secured SRl 233,349 1,117,097
303,183 1,146,098
The carrying amounts of the A Y B T (2
above borrowings are repayable* TRHNE DL A *
Within one year 4R 227,688 682,421
Within a period of more than one year i e i — A E R A
but not exceeding two years AR T A 75,495 -
Within a period of more than two years T A SR ELA
but not exceeding five years TAE Y 1 ] A — 71,876
303,183 754,297
The carrying amount of bank loans PR 2 S sk SR A e B SR A AR
that are repayable on demand (SR AT B0 R T (B
due to breach of loan covenants (s AR ) (FfeE D)
(shown under current liabilities) (note 1) - 391,801
303,183 1,146,098
Less: Amounts due within one year W ) AR T SRR
shown under current liabilities: — 4 R I Y R IE
Bank borrowings SRATHRK (157,854) (1,045,221)
Other borrowings HoAh K (44,592) -
Bank overdrafts SRATIE L (25,242) (29,001)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities FE L E) B TE 5 s A RO 75,495 71,876
& The amount due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan & 3T e K U e B ) ) 2 K 1 3
agreements. ﬁﬁ °
At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the bank overdrafts were unsecured TA2018 4 2017412 H31 H » 4R17%
and interest free. SR IR R S o
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32.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Company raised other borrowings from non-
financial institution with principal amount of HK$50,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB44,592,000) (at 31 December 2017:
nil), which carry interest rate at 1% per month for the first six months
and 1.5% per month afterwards. As at 31 December 2018, the other
borrowings are guaranteed by Mr. Chen Yixi, the Chairman of the

Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company raised other
borrowings from CCB International Asset Management Limited with
principal amount of US$100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB671,320,000) which was guaranteed by Mr. Chen Yixi.

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank loans of RMB233,349,000
(2017: RMB463,677,000) carried interest at London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus variable rates from 1.4% to 5% per
annum (2017: at LIBOR plus variable rate 1.4% to 5% per annum).

Interest is reset every three months.

Details of assets pledged by the Group at the end of the reporting
periods are set out in note 43. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the
bank borrowings were also guaranteed by Mr Chen Yixi, Ms Yuan

Yanan, spouse of Mr Chen Yixi and other third parties.

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Company’s borrowings are

as follows:

fo A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 2018 4F 12 7 31 HAL4FSE

32. B @)
AEIN > AR 1) I A T A S A At A
K> AREHAF 50,000,000 #ETT (AHE TR A
N B 44,592,000 76) (742017 4 12 H 31
Ho: ) > g5 AAARRE 1% > Bik
AFIRE1.5% ° 20184E12H31H » £
b 0 H A A ) - 6 B 25 R S A AR AR o

BE20174F12 H 31 HIE4ERE > AR ] )
TR [ A B PR R AR AR A A
3> A4 EE 100,000,000 35 7T (AH A
# N W 671,320,000 7C) - H B 28 ER 4G
HEAELR o

R20184F 12 H31H > A& £ FH A K ¥
233,349,000 7G (2017 4F = A [R#463,677,000
JG) B R AT BT 3K A R 2E R AT 4R R
(I R 2 Im] 2E8R1THF 2. ) N i Bh Al R A
1.4% & 5% (it 2017 4F ¢ fii 20 [R] 28R 17
PR E MR B R AT 1.4% F 5%) 5HEHY
AR o FES=MAER -

A [ A S A K BRI B B 2 REIR R
A EE43 o 22018 4F & 20174F12 A 31
H > $RAT R IR B PR 28 B8 4 AE B Z5 R
FE2E 1 AR 7 a4 g b R AR =07 1
1% o

A F G BB A R F R A

2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4F

Effective interest rate: PR
Fixed-rate borrowings & B 8.00% 8.00%
Variable-rate borrowings B E 2.78%~7.37% 2.02%~5.52%

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies other the

SR 1 AR I 42 0 T ) W LS

functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below: =2 Q1NN
USD HKD
e Wt
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ANR¥ET I
As at 31 December 2018 22018412 H31 H 233,349 44,592
As at 31 December 2017 (note ii) A20174E 12 A 31 B (FfgEii) 1,117,097 =

THEBEBREBRARAR SRR
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fo A S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FEE

32. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

33.

Notes:

During the year ended 31 December 2017, in respect of the bank borrowings
with carrying amount of RMB391,801,000 as at 31 December 2017, the
Group breached certain of the terms of the bank borrowing, which are
primarily related to the new issuance of the other borrowings of the Group. On
discovery of the breach, the directors of the Company informed the lender and
commenced a renegotiation of the terms of the loan with the relevant banker.
As at 31 December 2017, those negotiations had not been concluded. Since
the lender has not agreed to waive its right to demand immediate payment
as at the end of the reporting period, the loan has been classified as a current
liability as at 31 December 2017. On 13 February 2018, a supplementary
agreement was signed between the Group and the bank, according to which
bank borrowings of RMB233,947,000 was repaid during the year ended 31
December 2018.

On 26 July 2017, the Group signed an agreement with a bank to redenominate
currency of bank borrowings from Great Britain Pounds (“GBP”) to USD.

The interest rate and maturity remain unchanged.

DEFERRED REVENUE

32. fa¥ @)

Wi &E

FE 20174512 A 31 A IR > 52017
AE12 A 31 BRI (E 25 A R 391,801,000
TR SRAT 1 3 5 - ACSE [ O R ERAT
B2 TRk BB BT H At A
HER o BEBUERIAT K > AR ERTEA
RO B 16 BELAR A 1A T 5 T sk ) 4k
sk o 20174512 A 31 B » #Z5% kA0
FEH BRSBTS RER] - EIRZ B E
20174 12 7 31 H ERRE A B & i - 1R
20184F2 7 13 F » AKE [ BLSRAT L AT 4l
75 ik o UG - AR 233,947,000 78 1Y
SRATIE A E AR 2018 4F 12 A 31 A IE4F

2017457 H 26 H » A5 [ Bl — [ 4RATRT
SR o DOIERAT B B B A B 2 DA
FTTRHE o A RELF| ) F MR RS -

33. BEREW 4E

2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt ANR¥T T
Deferred revenue arising from customer B R R A A
loyalty programme (note 1) RAEN A (P 5E 1) - 30,563
Deferred revenue arising from franchise RERT R ik 2R
agreements (note ii) IEAE N A (5T i) — 11,579
Deferred revenue R AE L A - 42,142
Less: deferred revenue under current portion W PR AT TN I AR A A - (30,563)
Deferred revenue under non-current portion FE R BN FRA>TE T B IR ZE U 25 - 11,579

Notes:

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the amount arising from customer loyalty
programme represents deferred revenue arising in respect of the Group’s
customer loyalty programme recognised in accordance with IFRS 15 and

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes respectively.

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the amount arising from franchise
agreements represents non-refundable exclusivity fee received from
franchisees, which guarantees the franchisee the exclusive right to operate
Hamleys stores in certain territories and will be recognized as revenue over

the contract term.
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FR20184F &% 20174F 12 A 31 A » & F Bk
JRE T 7 A 1 AR 4 T AR 4R R R A
ot ME RIS 15 9% K B R BB A R R B
B9 139057 G R BRI A L &
JF IR A IR AL N R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 2018 4F 12 7 31 HAL4FSE

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 34. GAAME
2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T8 AR#T T

Contract liabilities arising from customer loyalty %% /7 Ml & 5181 & A 1Y

programme (Note 33(i)) H ) EAE (FfHE33(30)) 25,956 =
Contract liabilities arising from franchise B R R A R

agreements (Note 33(ii)) Bt (BT 33()) 10,932 =
Advance from customers TR HRK 8,358 -
Contract liabilities GHAE 45,246 -
Less: contract liabilities under current portion 3 : FEIERTE R & &) BAE (34,314) =
Contract liabilities under non-current portion FETBEL /- TE T A HBE 10,932 =
Note: FifaE -
The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect transition method AR £E [E) £ BRI B 5 0 U ) A5 JE P ) S A 5
and adjusted the opening balances as at 1 January 2018. Upon the adoption of [FRS HEUERISE 1558 > 6 2018 4F 1 H 1 H #2447
15, amounts previously included as “deferred revenue” was reclassified to contract AEER o PR AN I R RS B UE 55 15 AR - SERTSY
liabilities. Fy DIRAEN S | WSRO EHMEA MR -

THEBEBREBRARAR SRR
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fo A S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FEE

35. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

35. mhE B RIE

2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4F
RMB?000 RMB’000

AR¥ T8 AR#T T

Analysed for reporting purposes as: S 2Rk E B Z AT

Current liabilities B A 4,243 6,444

Non-current liabilities FE U B B & 1,740 3,872
5,983 10,316

Certain group entities entered into finance lease arrangements to
acquire equipment. The average lease term is 3 years (2017: 3 years).
Interest rates underlying all obligations under finance lease are fixed
at respective contract dates ranging from 8% to 10% (2017: 8% to
12%) per annum. Leased assets are pledged as security for the related

finance lease liability.

7 T 48 1 B B T ST A A B DA i
Al o T FE AR 25 3 4F (2017 4F : 3
) o JIT AR RIS 1 A BR A R 2
WA GH A BEE » AT 8% E 10%
(20174 : 8% % 12%) ML EEECHEM
VE 15 A B RiE LB A BB

Present value of minimum

Minimum Lease payments lease payments
5 AR B A 3k AR AL A3k 2 B
31/12/2018 31/12/2017 31/12/2018 31/12/2017
20184 2017 4F 2018 4F 2017 4F
12A31H 12H31H 12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETIE ARBTT AR¥BTILE AR¥TTC
Obligations under finance JEASH A R
lease payable:
Within one year —4E R 6,515 7,011 4,243 6,612
Within a period of more than il —4F{H R i
one year but not more 5 4F AU [H]
than 5 years 1,947 4,033 1,740 3,704
8,459 11,044 5,983 10,316
Less: future finance charges W R Rl B S (2,476) (728) N/AABA  N/AAEH
Present value of lease THERYE 2 BiE
obligations 5,983 10,316 5,983 10,316
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37.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 2018 4F 12 7 31 HAL4FSE

PROVISIONS 36.
2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
NS S T N BT
At 1 January W1H1H 17,269 =
Provision made during the year AR - 17,269

Reduction of provision as a result of A A R 45 G T T D B A

settlement during the year (11,134) -
Exchange difference fEE 50, 7 %A 137) -
At 31 December 12 H31H 5,998 17,269

The provision relates to an exit fee that Hamleys Global need to pay to
terminate a lease agreement which has been reached between Hamleys
Global and the landlord in Ireland. The estimated current cost of
exiting the lease was RMB17,269,000 at 31 December 2017. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, RMB11,134,000 was settled.
The remaining anticipated expenditure will be settled in the year of
2019. These amounts have not been discounted for the purposes of

measuring the provision for the leases, as the directors considered the

effect being not material.

7% ¥ M W X Hamleys Global % # 1E
Hamleys Global % i B 3£ 3= %2 LAY A
Bl sk SRR 2 o R 2017 4F 12
H31H > B AFHE R A S A
B %17,269,0007C - # 2018412 H
3UHIE4FEE > 455 AR 11,134,000
JG © FIERATER S A 2019 4R 4554 -
H A T SRR A % NG R K > R

S5 Rl R R wt AL E A AL B

SHARE CAPITAL 37. A
Number of shares Amount
e S
USD’000
TET
Ordinary shares of USD0.015 each BRI E0.015 7T
Authorised: HIE ¢
At 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 R20174E 1A 1 H K& 2017412 31 H
and 31 December 2018 J20184F12 A 31 H 20,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: DT
At 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 201741 H 1 H %20174F12 H 31 H
and 31 December 2018 J20184F 12 H 31 H 2,077,000,000 31,155
Shown in the consolidated statement TR &R B IRILR SR
of financial position
At 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 and 2018 54201741 A 1 H A K 2017 4 J
20184F 12 A31H 209,097

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company did
not repurchase any shares through the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

A

T H BB A PR A R

— =
—

A Z 2018 4F M2 20174F 12 A 31 H 1H4F
JE > RN ) 7 75 408 A s T S o B [ AT

AR B
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FEE

38.

39.

PRC STATUTORY RESERVES

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC applicable
to foreign investment enterprises and the Articles of Association of
the PRC subsidiaries, the PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain
a statutory surplus reserve fund. Appropriations to this fund are
made out of net profit after taxation as reported in the PRC statutory
financial statements of the subsidiaries (the “PRC Accounting
Profit”).

Nanjing Mayflower, Dongguan Mayflower, Nanjing Soft, YTLfk3%
¥ (as defined in Note 48) are required to transfer 10% of their PRC
Accounting Profit to the statutory surplus reserve fund in each profit
making year until the balances reach 50% of the registered capital of
each of the Company respectively. The statutory surplus reserve fund
may be used to make up prior year losses incurred and, with approval

from relevant government authority, to increase capital.

Xuzhou C.banner (as defined in Note 48) is not required to maintain
this statutory surplus reserve fund according to the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC applicable to Sino-foreign joint investment
enterprises. However, as at 31 December 2018, the directors of
Xuzhou C.banner approved on a discretionary basis to transfer the
maximum amount of RMB9,465,000 to the statutory surplus reserve
fund as the statutory reserve fund balance reach 50% of the registered
capital (2017: 10% of the PRC Accounting Profit to the statutory

surplus reserve fund).

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Pursuant to written resolution passed on 26 August 2011, the Company
adopted a share option scheme (the “Hongguo Hong Kong Share
Option Scheme”), details of which are set out in “Report of the
Directors — Share Option Scheme” to the annual report. No share
option has been granted under the Hongguo Hong Kong Share Option

Scheme since its adoption.

On 31 August 2015, the Company adopted a share award scheme (the
“Share Award Scheme”) under which shares of the Company may be
awarded to selected employees (including executive directors) of the
Group (the “Selected Employees”) pursuant to the terms of the scheme
rules and trust deed of the Share Award Scheme. The Share Award
Scheme became effective on the adoption date and, unless otherwise
terminated or amended, will remain in force for a term of 10 years

commencing on the adoption date.
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39.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Board shall not make any further award of awarded shares which
will result in the nominal value of the Shares awarded by the Board
under the Share Award Scheme exceeding 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time. The maximum number of
the Awarded Shares which may be awarded to a selected employee
shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company from

time to time.

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which
might include service and/or performance conditions specified by the
board of directors of the Company at the time of making the award and
become entitled to the shares of the Company forming the subject of
the award, the trustee shall transfer the relevant awarded shares to that
employee at no consideration. The Selected Employee however is not
entitled to receive any income or distribution, such as dividend derived

from the unvested Awarded Shares allocated to him/her.

Movement of the Company’s shares held by the trustee under the

Share Award Scheme during the year is as follows:

fo A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
#2018 4F 12 7 31 HAL4FJE

39. VA A % B B i) S2 A (o)

i 4 — 25 45 L A8 B I 03 L BGE S e AR
PR I 03 S5 Jh w1 452 5 1 I 49 T (L 4 A
STV E BT AR 10% > QI EF &
ARG HE— 25 32 L BE B L 0y - W] 4% T
A B 17 5% J8h I 003 1) Jc 1o B0 B RSB A AR
NEIRRE BT R 1% ©

IR B AF s AN FEEGRELA
IR 5 i 51 B 1 < 9 S A 1 (G o T
LA 3 RS AF ) K BR B R )
i W] REHUAT R S B B AR 8 R > AT
IR DAAREAR AR 17 5% 424 {5 RI AT I) 5 )
Jesy o SR M AR B SEAESCBUE (o i
AR - QA A S BE T A0 P R e 5%
TN B B JB S

% 5 AT RO e 004 R 130 75 A
AT BB T -

Number of shares

li4lig ¢
Held by the Held by the
trustee yet to be trustee for the Total held
awarded grantee by the trustee
i) AR A T 1 ZRENSy ZrEN
ZRE N TRIZ N T JITRe R
Balance at 1 January 2017 and JA20174E1H1H -

at 31 December 2017 and 20174F 12 H31 H &

1 January 2018 20184F1 H 1 H &5k 19,600,000 - 19,600,000
Granted to grantees during the year 4 ANE T T A (3,726,000) 3,726,000 =
Transfer to grantee upon vesting 7 J# FFis 792 T A - (3,726,000) (3,726,000)
Balance at 31 December 2018 #2018 4F 12 A 31 H 1 &5k 15,874,000 = 15,874,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo T s S M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
#2018 4F 12 1 31 HUL4FESE

39.

40.

41.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no ordinary shares were
acquired by trustee. The Company granted 3,726,000 ordinary shares
of USDO.015 each to Selected Employees, details are set out below.

39.

DI B0 2 3% BRE B 2 ) ()
MEZE20174E12 H31 H 1L E > MEZ

SN A3 B o AN R H 3,726,000
A B T (B 0,015 3 0 1 385 388 it T 8 flg
B > RGNS T3C e

Outstanding

Number of At Granted as at

awarded shares Vesting 31 December during the Vested during 31 December

Date of grant granted Fair value period 2017 year the year 2018

1% 2018 4

B S 12017 4 12A31H

R A gl 8 ARE WEN AMH FRRE FREE MRGH
HKS$’000
T

22 October 2018 20184E10 H 22 H 3,726,000 2,124 25 days K = 3,726,000 (3,726,000) -

The closing price of the Company’s shares on 22 October 2018, the
date of grant of the awarded shares, was HK$0.57 (equivalent to
approximately RMB0.50). The Group recognised a total expense of
RMB1,878,000 in relation to share award granted by the Company
during the year.

AN A 2018 4F 10 H 22 H (#218%
JEh B 15 H ) Z MR T (B 2% 0.57 W UG (K95
A NEH0.5070) o A4 [ 5 A A | %
L A B 15 1 e R A B S N R WK 1,878,000
5 o

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 40. LEIIEBERS
During the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, part of the BE20184F K% 20174F12 31 H IL4ERE »
consideration for the purchase of property, plant and equipment and WEE W2~ S B B A MO &
other intangible assets that occurred during the year comprised finance R B i TR B 2 F - A BRI
lease arrangements. Further details are set out in note 13 and note 15. H A HE— R R R B A 13 Gk 15 ©
OPERATING LEASE 41. REHE
The Group as lessee AR A A BN
2018 2017
2018 4 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRMT 70 N BT
Minimum lease payments paid under AE R AR A ST E AT
operating leases in the year ARAH B A5 K 118,401 109,941
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42.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

T A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 7 31 HALAFSE

OPERATING LEASE (CONTINUED) 41. BREME @)
The Group as lessee (continued) AR A A R AL ()
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has outstanding TR AR > A 45 3 31 3 oK £ 22 i AN |]
commitment in respect of non-cancellable operating leases which fall By AT ERE T
due as follows:
2018 2017
2018 4% 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T 0 ANR¥ET T
Within one year — AR 95,618 115,525
In the second to fifth years inclusive BB (S E R W) 355,707 403,791
After five years HAEE 2,141,901 2,337,346
Total &5t 2,593,226 2,856,662

Operating lease payments represented rentals payable by the Group
for its rental of factory premises and retail outlets. Leases and rentals
for the factory premises and retail outlets are negotiated and fixed
for terms ranging from ten to twenty years and one to two years

respectively.

Pursuant to the lease agreement signed by Hamleys Nanjing and
Hamleys Xuzhou (defined in note 48), the lease expenses of Hamleys
Nanjing and Hamleys Xuzhou is calculated based on a percentage of

its revenue from toys retailing on a monthly basis.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which includes
bank borrowings and other borrowings as disclosed in note 32, net
of bank deposits and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and accumulated

profits.

The management of the Company review the capital structure on an
on-going basis. As part of this review, the management consider the
cost of capital and the risks associate with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the management, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the

redemption of existing debt.

42.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo T s S M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 H IR4FBE

42. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (%)

42.1 Categories of financial instruments

42.1 LT RER

42. EA R bR BB & &w TR

2018 2017
2018 4 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥T0 ANR¥ET T
Financial assets 4 il e
Financial assets at amortised cost i B B A T ) 4 A =
— Trade receivables — & 5 RN 301,487 -
— Bank balance and cash —RITEEER N Bl 4 314,216 -
— Other receivables — HAth B i 3k T 56,829 =
672,532 -
Financial assets at FVTPL o st = B H S EEA
B B 0 SRl R
— Unlisted equity investment — Ik B RARE 50,000 -
Financial assets at FVOCI %A RMEE R H S BE A
(non-recycling) Lt 2 v W i P 4 i
(A ] B4
— Unlisted equity investments — Ik B RARE 40,000 -
Available-for-sale financial assets FE B SRNE 2
— Listed equity investments — Bl E = 10,765
Loans and receivables Bk % R Wk I
— Trade receivables — B 5 W HOE = 392,273
— Bank balances and cash —GRAT AR S B 4 - 540,059
— Other receivables — HoAth e 3k = = 45,704
— Other financial assets — HoAh 4 Rl = 10,000
762,532 998,801
Financial liabilities 4 £ 1
Amortised cost S A 373,911 344,302
Borrowings e 303,183 1,146,098
Obligotion under financial leases il S TE R AT 5,983 10,316
683,077 1,500,716
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

T A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 7 31 HALAFSE

42. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 2. EARBEEEME S TH

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (%)
42.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 42.2 S )E\ kg B H AR R BUR

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, other financial assets, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, borrowings, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, obligations under finance leases
and bank overdrafts. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

AEEMEEGH LRSS R
At MR AR~ A < il E
WATH B R B - B 5 J HoAt e
(REC =R (= 5= ST/ W= b E
Hagat A E BE &0 &M E
B~ 1% SR E RN E BB R A
At 2 T R i ) < O EE - R
B RIS RRATIE S - %5 Sl
TH 2 FE 5 45 B AR A R
L% 4 4B T B R B Y R B
T i 55 JE By (5 g B )
B) - 15 B R B U ) 4 LB o
4] A A1 5% 4 gy 9 BOSRE 381 4
T oo A L A B R B KSR R
B LA DR B IRF K A A0 B it 7
0

Market risk 177 55 | B
Foreign currency risk A1 s D B

The primary economic environment in which the principal
subsidiaries of the Company operate is PRC and their functional
currency is RMB while a subsidiary of the Company operates
in the UK and its functional currency is GBP. The Group also
has certain sales and purchases denominated in USD, EUR and
DKK, which are currencies other than the functional currency
of the relevant group entities and expose the Group to foreign

currency risk. Transactions in HKD are limited.

The carrying amount of the Group’s major foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities, at the

reporting date are as follows:

EANTESE 30 PAi k- gE
RSP BRI/ o I B L Th e B 2
N B WA 72— [ HHE 2~
R B B 7 7 T Re T A
B o REBIN AL T HEUE
6~ BT R FHE M EHE > E o
TR 4R R T RE R LSRRG
B R SIE o A 5 1 T B A0 LB
DA T ([ 0 )) wHE M 22 5 e
AR -

S E R I N S TS L
(B W S B B AR (i A
EREE) T

Liabilities Assets
£ fi 293
2018 2017 2018 2017
2018 4F 20174 2018 4F 2017 4

RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TX  ARWETT ARWETE ARWKETC

USD B 263,323 1,151,998 87,413 78,421
EUR &kt 450 206 14 5,386
HKD WoC 102,973 — 3,749 3,713
GBP g = = 22 1,628
DKK FHAE S = 352 = =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo T s S M e

For the year ended 31 December 2018
#2018 4F 12 1 31 HUL4FESE

42. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

42.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy but the management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
change in RMB against GBP, USD and HKD 5% (2017: 5%)
is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currencies denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting period for
a 5% (2017: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive
number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit for the
year where the relevant foreign currencies strengthen 5% (2017:
5%) against RMB. For a 5% (2017: 5%) weakening of the
relevant foreign currency against RMB, there would be an equal

and opposite impact on the before-tax profit for the year.

ﬁlf\ﬂl%: POE 4R T H

422 SRR BT F B R BOR (80

17 55 o % (#)

Ab e JE B (4

BRI A 4R [ A A1 R 3 i
W EAE HE R B A R L B B
B 7% 8 1E 5 B BN B b E R4
R -

IR ST

R FE A A N R O
B~ 3 o0 MWk o0 5% 5 B
B AR R e 5% (2017 4F ¢
5%) Jim EEAEH A B R
A1 e JE B RE BR R 2 O B T
R H 8 HE BEAG A FE B R
1 A 3R AT BE S B O R o AR M
G5 BT 1 A 65 R B R 1 A ST E
WA T o ) A AR
Hh W HE 5% (20174 : 5%)
A o QA B AN SR AR
W TFE 5% (20174 5%) » DL R
1EAH B BUR 4 N BRBLAR i A1) 3
e A AT B A s A N B M e (E
5% (20174 = 5%) > i€ 4R A Bk
TR I Vi AR A A S B I A 2 o

2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T8 ANRHET 7T

Increase/(Decrease) in before-tax AN 5% N BB THE 5%
profit where the foreign currency (2017 4F : 5%)
strengthen 5% (2017: 5%) R il T *Ui‘ﬁﬂ/ )
against RMB:
USD impact LT
HKD impact faPIm 2
GBP impact ES 3%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

T A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 7 31 HALAFSE

42. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 2. EARBEEEME S TH

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (%)
42.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 422 Axil )R\ B A B H AR B BOR (4])

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

In addition, the following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a5 % change in GBP against USD, EUR, DDK and SEK (2017:
5%).

5 (A7)

A e SR B (#81)

B PE ST (4)

WAL T R FE A A 1 B g 0
B0~ WROT > PR s B g
o 5 B 5% (201 74F © 5%) A BURS
g o

2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T8 AR¥TT

(Decrease) Increase in before-tax
profit where the foreign currency
strengthen 5% (2017: 5%)

against GBP:
USD impact EIn-2
EUR impact O A
DKK impact P28 v B 5 28

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk for
its interest bearing financial assets, including the liability
component of the convertible bonds and other financial assets
which carried interest at fixed rates. The Group is also exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to bank balances
and variable-rate borrowings (see note 32 for details of these
borrowings). It is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at
floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value interest

rate risk.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate risk
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate

exposure should the need arises.

Qo R B THE 5%
(2017 4F : 5%) >
BRBL AT A () 6

(593) (1,793)
(226) 259
= (18)

ES

ARG E S B R (fLAE AT
R 55 10 B LT 0 B At <6l
(F% [&] 5 #2518 ) 1 B2 S (E A
AR B o ASE B ERAT A5 85 BOF 2
T (R R 32 7 B % 45 i R HY
AR ) I T B B 4 U ) R gt
SR [ ) O Ry i S R AR A
HARE > A 2 foE A 5 Ja B
P 2 B o

AL ] iy 7 48 ] 5 3 o BSRE o
SR - R B B ) o gy R f
B TE T 2 B R i R
R -
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fo T s S M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
#2018 4F 12 1 31 HUL4FESE

42. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 2. BARBEBEEME S TH

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (%)
42.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 422 Axil )R\ B A B H AR B BOR (4])

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for financial instruments (including
bank balances and borrowings) at the end of the period and the
stipulated changes taking place at the beginning of the financial
year and held constant throughout the reporting period in the

case of bank balances and borrowings.

A 5 basis points (2017: 5 basis points) increase or decrease in
interest rates on variable bank balances, and a 50 basis points
(2017: 50 basis points) increase or decrease in interest rates on
variable-rate borrowings represent managements’ assessment of

the reasonably possible changes in interest rates.

If the interest rates on variable-rate bank balances had been 5
basis points (2017: 5 basis points) higher and all other variables
were held constant, a positive number below indicates an

increase in post-tax profit.

17 55 o % (#)

ESNAE: )

RS T

N SCRURRE 73 B S R S T
LT B 9 M) 25 gy % S B R4 2
1% AR W 15 5 4 B BLE SRAT A5 B
T A 7 T ] 2 0 TR A 5 A
N E

T SRAT A SR A R BT S
EFEEE (2017 4F « S{EZEE;) - HiF
B SRR L TEEkCR RS0 R 5
25 (2017 4F « SOfE KL Bh) > FoRGE
T A 1) 22 8 FT g5 BHLAEE) o

it 17 B SRATAE BRI A% 2 7 5
HLE (201748 ¢ SRAELE) H A H
i 53 BOPR 155 AN 5 > B R SCIEBR
I BRBAR W M3

2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T8 PN

Increase in post-tax profit for the year AF A BR A% Ui A1) 35 m

The post-tax profit for the year would be decreased by the same
amount as mentioned above if interest rates on variable-rate
bank balances had been 5 basis points (2017: 5 basis points)

lower and all other variables were held constant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

T A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 7 31 HALAFSE

42. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 2. EARBEEEME S TH

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (%)
42.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 422 Axil )R\ B A B H AR B BOR (4])

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If the interest rate on variable-rate borrowings had been 50 basis
points (2017: 50 basis points) higher and all other variables
were held constant, a positive number below indicates a

decrease in post-tax profit for the year.

i 5 I b (#)

3R RS (4])

IR SE AT (4H)

7% B S B WA R E T 50 i 2
25 (20174 : SOfR A B Hpr e K
b5 BOORFE AN B2 > BI R SCIEB0R
R BRBLAR T D o

2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T8 AR¥TT

Decrease in post-tax profit for the year

The post-tax profit for the year would be increased by the same
amount as mentioned above if the interest rate on variable-
rate borrowings had been 50 basis points lower and all other

variables were held constant.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial
instrument would fail to discharge its obligation under the terms
of the financial instrument and cause a financial loss to the
Group. The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises from
cash with banks and financial institutions, as well as granting

credit to customers in the ordinary course of its operations.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the
components of the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 is the carrying amount as

disclosed in note 42.1.

1,293 6,039

i 77 B i B A9 R 2 2T B 50 8 2
B HLT A b S R N
AF A BR B AR i A1 38 L 2 A ]
M7 -

i LB

55 PR 79 45 <6 Flh T HL 1 32 )
FIr R BEJRAT 4 i T B G RT R
SE 1A 875 3 7 A 4 B 5 s
AR B o A 4R [ 1 I RO 5 B L
B £ e | B GRAT T 4 il B A Y
B DR B R SEF R AR i
HEERTHEHE -

R20184F &% 20174F 12 H31 H » A&
42 B B A PSR L 26 1A 4% 4L A
43 A B AR B BG4 B k42,1
P #E I BT (L
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 H IR4FBE

42. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

42.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Effective on 1 January 2018

(i)  Trade receivables

The Group’s policy is to deal only with credit worthy
counterparties. Credit terms are granted to new customers
after a credit worthiness assessment by the credit
control department. Where available at reasonable cost,
external credit ratings and/or reports on customers are
obtained and used. Customers who are not considered
creditworthy are required to pay in advance or on
delivery of goods. Payment record of customers is
closely monitored. It is not the Group’s policy to request

collateral from its customers.

In addition, as set out in note 3.20, the Group assesses
ECL under IFRS 9 on trade receivables based on
provision matrix, the expected loss rates are based on the
payment profile for sales in the past 24 months as well
as the corresponding historical credit losses during that
period. The historical rates are adjusted to reflect current
and forwarding looking macroeconomic factors affecting
the customer’s ability to settle the amount outstanding.
At each reporting date, the historical default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analyised. However, given the short period exposed
to credit risk, the impact of these macroeconomic factors
has not been considered significant within the reporting

period.

Trade receivables are written-off (i.e. derecognised)
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Failure to make payments within 365 days after the
credit period from the invoice date and failure to engage
with the Group on alternative payment arrangement
amongst other is considered indicators of no reasonable

expectation of recovery.
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TR o VAT A THLTE W i [
46 A FE (L gE) R g
AT B AL SR
365 H N3 B oK g A 4
AR s A A e B -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

T A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 7 31 HALAFSE

42. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 42. BARBE BB K& TH
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (%)
42.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 42.2 i JE\ K B BE H AR R BOR (4])
(continued)
Credit risk (continued) e Bl B (#)
Effective on 1 January 2018 (continued) 2018451 H 1 H A %% (%)
(i)  Trade receivables (continued) () EHmlIoKE ()
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly 7 AL (8] i T 3 45 SRR
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather B2 KR T 2 AR B
than the industry or country in which the customers A, Mk IR B K F A
operate and therefore significant concentrations of credit KEZATESEZBR
risk primarily arise when the Group has significant PRt o B 4 v 2 £ A TRV =
exposure to individual customers. At the end of the L AR A A 1 e S
reporting period, 7.13% (2017: 5.31%) of the total trade KF 2 HmRJARE Z 5 o R
receivables was due from the Group’s top five individual IR > REWE 5 IR sk AR
customers. B0 Bl A 7.13% (2017 4F
5.31%) B IR AR B R &
F o
On the above basis, the ECL for trade receivables as at 31 Fie bl FEHE B 5 MECRIE
December 2018 and 1 January 2018 was determined as JA20184E 12 H31 H %2018
follows: 1A EE SR
EMWT
More than
1-365 days 365 days
Current past due past due Total
i gl
WH  1E365K  @B36eSK Mgt

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARMEF  AREFIL  AREFRL AR

As at 31 December 2018 22018412 A 31 H

ECL rate FHIfE Rk E R 5.5% 6.1% 23.1%
Gross carrying amount AR (E

— trade receivables — B 5 REl R IE 248,437 53,239 21,789 323,465
Lifetime ECL ZFE (S SR 13,700 3,243 5,035 21,978
As at 1 January 2018 *20184F1H1H
ECL rate TS R & 52% 19.7% 19.3%
Gross carrying amount 2R TR (.

— trade receivables — & 5 UG IE 319,516 52,255 20,502 392,273
Lifetime ECL 2 IE I ik E 16,521 10,292 3,949 30,762

THREBBERATRA T =% R 187
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FEE

42. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 2. EARBEBEEME S TH

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (%)
42.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 42.2 il )E\ ks A B H AR R BOR (4])

(continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and

mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date in which the Group

can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and

e P B) I & B b AR
WP M ol A LR A R TR Y
— KRB & R G5 E - L
F A SR B AR B D B
SWMBWH A LE -

R A R A A
I o 2R TIAREA LR W] e
5 B ST B L RS R 2
BRI SR E - 2R
FEFLE R A B i -

principal cash flows.

Liquidity and interest risk table it B 4 B ) R B
Weighted
average Total
effective  On demand or undiscounted Carrying
interest rate less than 1 year 1-5 years cash flows amount
IEFy R B AMBIB &
ik S PR 14 1254 WA WA
% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFRE  ARWTFu  ARWTFE  ARWTR
At31 December 2018 20184E 12 31 H
Trade and other payables 5 5 J% oAb e 208 NAREH 373,911 = 373,911 373,911
Bank overdrafts RITEX N/AR#H 25,242 = 25,242 25,242
Bank borrowings AT & 5.04% 165,168 76,485 241,653 233,349
Other borrowings HAbfEEE 1.5% 48,605 = 48,605 44,592
Obligation under AR EEE
finance leases 9.74% 6,515 1,947 8,462 5,983
619,441 78,432 697,873 683,077

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



42.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

fo A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
#2018 4F 12 7 31 HAL4FJE

42. EA R KRB M & ST H

42.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

(%)

422 SRR H A R BOR ()

i) & & T (A

Liquidity and interest risk table (continued) FBE 4 KA BLR B % (4)
Weighted
average On demand Total
effective or less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1-5 years cash flows amount
pilll ) HERE ARHGBIBL
LYk DR 1254 T JRm(H
% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TT  AR®TrT  AR¥TT  AR¥TT
At31December 2017 1420174F 12 31 A
Trade and other payables & % S FoAl 20 N/A 344,302 = 344,302 344,302
Bank overdrafts RITE N/A 29,001 - 29,001 29,001
Bank borrowings SRATHER 7.03% 422353 79,845 502,198 463,677
Other borrowings HAb & 8.00% 705,693 = 705,693 653,420
Obligation under MBS
finance leases 11.80% 7,011 4,033 11,044 10,316
1,508,360 83,878 1,592,238 1,500,716
In respect of the bank borrowings with carrying amount 2017412 H31 H B 1 {EH 25 A
of RMB391,801,000 as at 31 December 2017, the Group R 391,801,000 7T 1) $R 17 £ 5K 1
breached certain of the terms of the bank borrowing, which are T A EE A TR R
primarily related to the new issuance of the other borrowings ok > 3 B A A [y
of the Group. On discovery of the breach, the directors of the A B - TR BUEL I > A&
Company informed the lender and commenced a renegotiation 4N F) HE 554 0B KON I BEL A A SR
of the terms of the loan with the relevant banker. As at 31 AT S FEATRER © 122017
December 2017, those negotiations had not been concluded. FI2A3IH ARERM KA
Since the lender has not agreed to waive its right to demand FE o EH P B NI S A A R
immediate payment as at the end of the reporting period, the AN [) 78 A JHL 2 R RV IR 2 R 2 RE
loan has been classified as a current liability as at 31 December Fl > A BRI 20174212 A 31 H
2017. On 13 February 2018, a supplementary agreement was O T8 A B B 1E - k20184
signed between the Group and the bank, according to which 213 H o AR [ BLERATRT VA 7T
certain bank borrowings of RMB233,947,000 was repaid during Wik > PEUL > & TERITERAR
the year ended 31 December 2018. #5233,947,000 JTCE A 2018 4F 12 A
31 H R4 -
The amounts included above for variable interest rate it 7 2B 1] 2R 5 Bl A R A 4% i
instruments are subject to change if changes in variable interest BN et S o P o 2
rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the B AR T H 440 ok o B s ) o
end of the reporting period.
THEBBERARAR 2 ) UFEERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 1 31 HUL4FESE

42. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

42.3 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally accepted

pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three level fair
value hierarchy as defined in IFRS13:

2. BRBRKEEM AT H
.
;ﬁgﬁﬂﬁQQEMﬁﬁ
ST R A A R
ol 4 T e A2 A R
{8 7% LA 6 7 B B B4 48 2
WA R

RN I T A R e KR
EFBEMNALEEEMTEL R
1B > 3 7 J50 2 I % B o o5 4 )
513 SR TR AR SLAE A

Fair value measurements as
at 31 December categorised into

ARMEFRR 12 A 31 H A8
Fair value at
31 December Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R12H31H
WA Rl BB B B=H

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

RETE  ARETE  ARETE  AR¥TL

A
2018 20184F
Financial assets at FVTPL T flistE HESE A
IR I A R

Option to acquire unlisted Wi b i A B R e

equity investment 50,000 - - 50,000
Financial assets at FVOCI A AR AR A
(non-recycling) oAb A T 1) 4l
(AT )
Unlisted equity investment ¥ EmiARE 40,000 - - 40,000

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of other financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised in the consolidated financial statements approximate

to their fair values at the end of reporting period.

43. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2018, the Company’s equity interest in Nanjing
Mayflower, Dongguan Mayflower, Nanjing Soft and Xuzhou
C.banner (as defined in Note 48) have been pledged to secure the bank

borrowings of the Group.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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44.

45.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
#2018 4F 12 7 31 HAL4FJE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 44. EAKYE
At 31 December 2018, the Group had no capital commitment. A20184E12 31 A » A AL AR AEE A< 7K
i o
RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 45. 1 B P R A ) B ARSE B)
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Z Hik
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising T SR FE AR A [ O I ) i E AR Y B
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. ) (AREB & LB EEE)) o fERE
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash BT AR 1Y B B AR B A A AR 4
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s SHESRBERANDEARMEEIH SR
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing & o
activities.
Obligations
under finance
Borrowings leases Total
(Note 32) (Note 35)
[EiS<giiN=%
£k N REAE HaEt
(BfH5E32) (K 3k 35)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
YN BT ANR¥ET I PN T
At 1 January 2017 R20174F1H1H 667,748 11,020 678,768
Financing cash flows BlE & 452,465 (3,316) 449,149
New finance leases Rl E e - 1,975 1,975
Amortisation of unsettled TR AT A 2 R g
financial charges 9,120 — 9,120
Foreign exchange A1 HE 52 1) (12,236) 637 (11,599)
At 31 Decemeber 2017 2017412 H31 H 1,117,097 10,316 1,127,413
Obligations
under finance
Borrowings leases Total
(Note 32) (Note 35)
il 5 L %
i 5% JHTHAE
(B 32) (BRFE 35) A5k
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥T o0 NR¥T oo AR# T oo
At 1 January 2018 201841 H1H 1,117,097 10,316 1,127,413
Financing cash flows Tl B4 i (840,702) (5,793) (846,495)
New finance leases oo K= = 1,581 1,581
Foreign exchange S HESE ) 1,546 467) 1,079
At 31 December 2018 A20184F 12 H31 H 277,941 5,637 283,578

THEBEBREBRARAR SRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo A s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 1 31 HUL4FESE

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(1) Related party transactions

1)

During the year, in addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the

consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following

related party transactions:

Relationship with related parties

SHL I3 k7 B £

Nature of transactions

5 E

46. B H R %

I8 W6k 75 28 5

R BRARS MBS R A AN 2
e 5% ORI AN - A SR B B O &S
ZF

2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AR¥TE

An associate

— [ A

A joint venture
— M aEd

A related company, in which certain directors
of the Company have controlling interest
— BB A w] - AR F T HEER
Horh oA et A

(2) Compensation of key management personnel

Purchase of goods

HEE &

Sales of goods
&R

Providing management

services

PR LA SRR S

Rental expense

R

2

The remuneration of directors, who are also the key

management, are disclosed in note 10.

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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47.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the PRC government, the
PRC subsidiaries have participated in a central pension scheme (the
“Scheme”) operated by local municipal government whereby the PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute 18% of basic salaries of the
employees to the Scheme to fund their retirement benefits. The local
municipal government undertakes to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of the PRC
subsidiaries. The only obligation of the PRC subsidiaries with respect
to the Scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions under
the Scheme mentioned above. Contributions under the Scheme are

charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Pursuant to the legal requirement of UK, the UK subsidiaries have
participated in an auto-enrolment pension scheme (the “Auto-
enrolment”) operated by UK government whereby the UK subsidiaries
are required to contribute 1% of qualifying earnings of the employees
to the Auto-enrolment to fund their retirement benefits. The only
obligation of the UK subsidiaries with respect to the Auto-enrolment
is to pay the ongoing required contributions under the Auto-enrolment

mentioned above.

During the reporting period, the total amounts contributed by the
Group to the Scheme and the Auto-enrolment which were charged
to profit or loss representing contribution payable to the Scheme and
auto-enrolment by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the

Scheme are as follows:

47.

fo A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
#2018 4F 12 7 31 HAL4FJE

S8 g At 1

AR B U A B > o BB
20 b T U AR A P R PR
wt# (TR st 3 ]) > BRut - o S
R AR B S A T 18% itk T % st
# > DA R RE AR E S o T
B AR AR BT A B ) 2 R BLA K
ARACR PR A 8 B Y8 PR AR A AL o P
BEF S 2 W sk w0 ) M — AT A R AL
i b 7R BT AR o AR BIAE
H B BE RO 2 A IR I HR AR T IR o

MR L EAE > KEMBARC 2
S35 [ UM 2 AR /9 B B 2 B At B
(TEBYZ ) - M2 B B 2 72
1% 1 B & S8 2R 2 A B 2 8L A
AR PRAR I o it 1 ) 2 B () A
J& 2 G E— BEAT A AR R L | ) 2 B
FHEBA PRI -

T i S TH] > A T ol o w3t 4
B e E AR 4 TR AR 1Y) RS AN AR 4%
T HRE U4 E 1Y LE 2 AT 2 A 1k
SN UE

2018 2017
2018 4 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T YNESLi T
Amount contributed and charged PR e B 48 1 AR ) S5
to profit or loss 80,183 71,787

As at 31 December 2018, there was no outstanding contributions
payable to the Scheme (2017: nil).

THERBEERARARE =%

20184512 A 31 H - HEAE ) A (B35 A0 IE
ezt S atEk (2017 4F © 4E) o

AR I B
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fo A s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FEE

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Place/Country of

incorporation/

48. FH & 2 vl vt I

establishment and Attributable equity

Name of subsidiary operations interest of the Company Principal activities
G3LY A A3 A 2w AN

it I 2~ w1 44 7 B BR JBe A HiE 2 B 373

2018 2017
2018 4 2017 4F

Held directly by the Company:

AATEA

Best Invent The BVI 100% 100% Investment holding
YeJi i LRt Ei'd gidli'a

Best Value The BVI 100% 100%  Investment holding
By ) ale il Ei'd gl

Allied Great Hong Kong 100% 100%  Investment holding

o 5 ] % . T A PR ) i BE R

China Ease Hong Kong 100% 100%  Investment holding

FRH D EA PR A RS Ei'a eidile

Hamleys Global UK 100% 100%  Investment holding
S POEHE R

Hamleys Holdings Limited Hong Kong 100% 100%  Investment holding
i Ei'd gdli'a

Held by subsidiaries of the Company:

P [ A E R R S

Mayflower (Nanjing) Enterprise Limited The PRC 100% 100%  Retail sale of branded

(“Nanjing Mayflower”) (Note 1) i fashion footwear
FRBEANE (F) AR A FEAE T WRLIR v A
([t S ERE ) (MEGE 1)
Dongguan Mayflower Footwear The PRC 100% 100%  Contract manufacture and
Corporation Limited (“Dongguan e sale of branded fashion

Mayflower”) (Note 1)
REER BB EEZEA TR A
([RZEFEEEE ) (5T 1)

194
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48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Place/Country of
incorporation/

establishment and

fo A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
#2018 4F 12 7 31 HAL4FJE

48. FiHJ& 2 vl Wt i (a0

Attributable equity

Name of subsidiary operations interest of the Company Principal activities
RS, B, B Aoy W] A
Fi I 2 w1 4 7 BB R JBe A B it FEHEH
2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4F
Held by subsidiaries of the Company (Continued)
Ao v PR A w A ()
Nanjing Soft Garment & Footwear The PRC 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. (“Nanjing Soft”) (Note 1) i branded fashion footwear
T AR AR I i B 2 A R ) and related materials
(I P & MR 1) (BRRE 1) A E e S5 T W i
HEJE N A B E
Xuzhou C.banner Shoes Co., Ltd. The PRC 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(“Xuzhou C.banner”) (Note 2) el branded fashion footwear
BINTHEHEARAF and related materials
(THRINTHEE D (B5E2) A T i R 1
HEJE N A B R
Mega Brilliant International Limited Hong Kong 51% 51% Investment holding
FE R BB 7 s BB
Jiangsu Mega Shoes Co., Ltd The PRC 51% 51% Manufacture and sale of
TLRRE R A PR A #) i branded fashion footwear
(ML#FEE D) (MtsE1) and related materials
A2 B SR i BRI 74
HEE AT B R
Xuzhou Mayflower Footwear Co., Ltd ~ The PRC 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(Note 1) g branded fashion footwear

BN E BT EA R AT
(TRINSEREE |) (k1)

T 0 BB B A B A R

and related materials
A E T B i LI
BRI KA B R

e i
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fo A s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FEE

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 48. P B 2 vl wEdE (s
(CONTINUED)

Place/Country of

incorporation/
establishment and Attributable equity

Name of subsidiary operations interest of the Company Principal activities
wE S, B, B A oy W] A

Fit I8 2 1 44 1 BN R JBe A B it FEHEH

2018 2017
20184 2017 4

Held by subsidiaries of the Company (Continued)
Ao IR A w A ()

Beijing Mei Hao Future Internet The PRC 0% 70% Internet service and sales
Business Co., Ltd (Note 3) el WS AR R A % g

A S AF ARAETE T RS A PR F
([ EHFRA ) (RE3)

Hamleys Group Limited UK 100% 100%  Investment holding
e BB
Hamleys of London Limited UK 100% 100%  Toys retailing
P BrH 2
Hamleys (Franchise) Limited UK 100% 100%  Franchise company
e FRERTREE A A
Hamleys Asia Limited Hong Kong 100% 100%  Import company
GRS HEAAHE
Hamleys Toys (Ireland) Limited Ireland 100% 100%  Toys retailing
T B
Hamleys BV The Netherlands 100% 100% Investment holding
i B Ei'agedle
Scrumpalicious Limited UK 100% 100%  Toys retailing
Yl TLAEE
Luvley Limited UK 100% 100%  Toys retailing
YLl HEEE
Hamleys Toys (China) Co., Ltd The PRC 100% 100%  Toys retailing
(“Hamleys China”) " I HE e
M AR i B AL (PR ) A PR ]
(5 4 S8 1 )

C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Place/Country of
incorporation/

establishment and

48.

fo A s A M e
For the year ended 31 December 2018
#2018 4F 12 7 31 HAL4FJE

o8 2 i) w4 (0

Attributable equity

Name of subsidiary operations interest of the Company Principal activities
G3LY A N3 A 2w AN

it I 2~ w1 44 7 B HR JBe A i 2 B

2018 2017
2018 4 2017 4F

Held by subsidiaries of the Company (Continued)

AR wIE A FRA 2 (8])

Hamleys Toys (Nanjing) Co., Ltd The PRC 100% 100%  Toys retailing

(“Hamleys Najing”) Eal IR T
WU B (Bt A ERAF
([ Py G825 S 2t 1)

Xuzhou Hamleys Toys Co., Ltd The PRC 100% 100%  Toys retailing

(“Hamleys Xuzhou™) AR AEE

RN IS T I B IR A

([ W QB S A M 1)

Hamleys Nordics Denmark 80% 80% Investment holding
F12 PO

Hamleys Finland Oy Finland 80% 80%  Toys retailing
M HLH

Hamleys Denmark ApS Denmark 80% 80%  Toys retailing
P SLAEE

Hamleys Norway AS Norway 80% 80%  Toys retailing
£71979 TR

Hamleys Swenden AB Sweden 80% 80%  Toys retailing
Fiv it HEE

Notes: Bk

(1) wholly-foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC
2) sino-foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC
3) the company was deregistered during the year

None of the Company’s subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

At 31 December 2018, out of the total 29 subsidiaries (2017:
30), 22 subsidiaries (2017: 22) are wholly-owned by the Group.
The remaining 7 subsidiaries (2017: 8) do not have material non-
controlling interests.

THERBEERARARE =%

1) APERSLA R S
)  PBISLZ AN A
(3) AR N O A

TAAAEFEAR > AL TR B J8g 2 A8 M %
TR 5 o

2018412 H31H » A 3L29[H] (20174F -
30 [8]) Bt 2~ | H > A 22 [H] (2017 4F : 22
) B A A AR M 2 G A - iR T 7
] (2017 4% : 8 [H]) B g 2 w3l Ji 2K 3
el R #R o

AR I B
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fo A s S M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
A 20184F 12 A 31 HIR4FEE

49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

49. Ay JA IR O 7 K it

2018 2017
2018 4F 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥Tt ANR¥Tt
Assets &
Non-current assets FE it B
Investment in subsidiaries BB A 7 2 824,897 1,274,245
Property, plant and equipment LE - & 4] 1 5
Other intangible asset RERE ST 9,920 11,352
Amount due from a subsidiary JRE i — (5] B > ) 3k 266,108 301,190
1,100,926 1,586,792
Current assets Tt A
Dividends receivables from subsidiaries R Az B BB A ] s L 1,701 127,786
Other receivables and prepayments At R WA R T K TR A Sk TE 20,635 20,704
Amount due from subsidiaries JRE WAL o B A ) A 84,842 95,686
Bank balances and cash SRATHEER S Bl 4,208 13,646
111,386 257,822
Assets classified as held for sale DTN EE = 546,300
111,386 804,122
Liabilities a1
Current liabilities B =
Other payables H A B A 87,125 194,266
Amount due to subsidiaries JREAST B 8 2 T 308 410,983 239,192
Borrowings [E§Es 202,446 1,045,221
700,554 1,478,679
Net current liabilities mE (&) EEE (589,168) (674,557)
Non-current liabilities I B
Borrowings — due after one year —AEE R AR SR 75,495 71,876
75,495 71,876
Net assets B FE 436,263 840,359
Capital and reserves G A B it
Share capital k&N 209,097 209,097
Reserves ittt 227,166 631,262
Total equity HARERS 436,263 840,359

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26

April 2019.

Huo Li

Director

Yuan Zhenhua

Director

1 98 C.banner International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ll‘/\ﬁ/ﬂj’ﬁﬁ%lﬂ' Jﬁi
For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 20184F 12 A 31 H IL4FBE

49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

49. A2 v JA B R DL e B Gk (o)

Shares held Share-based Accumulated
Share  under the share ~ compensation profits/
Premium  award scheme reserve (losses) Total
ik
TRlHERT R DRGSR RatiA/
BiE  RERRG B () At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NS NI i AR NS NS
At 1 January 2017 20174 1R 1H 646,042 (49,986) - 71,985 668,041
Loss and total comprehensive ERERR2TH S
expense for the year - - - (36,779) (36,779)
At 31 December 2017 and 2017412 A 31H
1 January 2018 20184 1A 1H 646,042 (49,986) - 35,206 631,262
Loss and total comprehensive AF A R R 2 T A
expense for the year - - - (405,974) (405,974)
Equity-settled share DA 5 81 M 52 Wt
award scheme - - 1,878 - 1,878
Transfer of awarded shares e sl
reserve upon vesting - 9,503 (1,878) (7,625) -
At 31 December 2018 R20184E 12 A 31 H 646,042 (40,483) - (378,393) 227,166
THERBEERARAR T ) EEERE
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Financial Summary

A

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
2014 4F 2015 4F 2016 4F 2017 4F 2018 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Tt AR¥Tx AR¥TT AR¥T T ARETE
Financial results AR 4R
Revenue & 2,820,738 3,045,805 3,206,562 3,063,524 2,923,659
Net profit attributable to E/NGIE SRS SN
equity holders of the JREA 7]
Company 242,224 257,492 206,253 20,492 (387,029)
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
20144 20154 20164 2017 4 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
AR¥TFIE AR¥TR AR¥TT AR¥WTT AR¥ETE
Balance sheet summary HE AR
Total assets B AEER 2,302,078 3,407,717 3,393,785 3,959,830 2,599,748
Total liabilities =Livk | 753,334 1,498,552 1,318,242 1,873,437 925,274
Total equity WE 25 AEAH 1,548,744 1,909,165 2,075,543 2,086,393 1,674,474
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